
Table of Contents

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

 
(Mark One)

☒ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2020
OR

☐ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from             to             
Commission file number: 001-31719

MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

 
Delaware  13-4204626

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)  (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

200 Oceangate, Suite 100  
Long Beach, California 90802

(Address of principal executive offices)  (Zip Code)

(562) 435-3666
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of each class Trading Symbol(s) Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, $0.001 Par Value MOH New York Stock Exchange

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  ☒    No  ☐
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of
Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files).    Yes  ☒    No  ☐
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an
emerging growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large Accelerated Filer  ☒ Accelerated Filer ☐ Non-Accelerated Filer ☐ Smaller reporting company ☐ Emerging growth company ☐

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or
revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section13(a) of the Exchange Act. ☐
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).  Yes  ☐ No  ☒
The number of shares of the issuer’s Common Stock, $0.001 par value, outstanding as of October 23, 2020, was approximately 59,300,000.



Table of Contents

MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC. FORM 10-Q
FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS
ITEM NUMBER Page

PART I
1. Financial Statements 3

2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 24

3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 42

4. Controls and Procedures 43

PART II
1. Legal Proceedings 43

1A. Risk Factors 43

2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds 44

3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities Not Applicable.

4. Mine Safety Disclosures Not Applicable.

5. Other Information Not Applicable.

6. Exhibits 45

Signatures 46



Table of Contents

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2020 2019 2020 2019

(In millions, except per-share amounts)
(Unaudited)

Revenue:
Premium revenue $ 4,768 $ 4,084 $ 13,444 $ 12,085 
Premium tax revenue 170 119 477 367 
Health insurer fees reimbursed 69 — 206 — 
Investment income and other revenue 14 40 61 103 

Total revenue 5,021 4,243 14,188 12,555 
Operating expenses:

Medical care costs 4,098 3,523 11,412 10,360 
General and administrative expenses 368 323 1,030 953 
Premium tax expenses 170 119 477 367 
Health insurer fees 70 — 209 — 
Depreciation and amortization 23 21 64 68 
Other 3 — 9 5 

Total operating expenses 4,732 3,986 13,201 11,753 
Operating income 289 257 987 802 
Other expenses, net:

Interest expense 27 22 72 67 
Other expense (income), net — 2 5 (15)

Total other expenses, net 27 24 77 52 
Income before income tax expense 262 233 910 750 
Income tax expense 77 58 271 181 

Net income $ 185 $ 175 $ 639 $ 569 

Net income per share - Basic $ 3.14 $ 2.81 $ 10.80 $ 9.15 
Net income per share - Diluted $ 3.10 $ 2.75 $ 10.65 $ 8.80 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2020 2019 2020 2019

(In millions)
(Unaudited)

Net income $ 185 $ 175 $ 639 $ 569 
Other comprehensive income:

Unrealized investment income 6 — 43 17 
Less: effect of income taxes 1 — 10 4 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax 5 — 33 13 

Comprehensive income $ 190 $ 175 $ 672 $ 582 

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
September 30,

2020
December 31,

2019

(Dollars in millions,
except per-share amounts)

(Unaudited)
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,196 $ 2,452 
Investments 1,769 1,946 
Receivables 1,775 1,406 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 213 163 
Total current assets 6,953 5,967 

Property, equipment, and capitalized software, net 395 385 
Goodwill and intangible assets, net 265 172 
Restricted investments 93 79 
Deferred income taxes 74 79 
Other assets 101 105 

Total assets $ 7,881 $ 6,787 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Medical claims and benefits payable $ 2,289 $ 1,854 
Amounts due government agencies 640 664 
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other 566 502 
Deferred revenue 61 249 
Total current liabilities 3,556 3,269 

Long-term debt 1,813 1,237 
Finance lease liabilities 226 231 
Other long-term liabilities 85 90 
Total liabilities 5,680 4,827 
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value, 150 million shares authorized; outstanding: 59 million shares at
September 30, 2020, and 62 million shares at December 31, 2019 — — 

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 20 million shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding — — 
Additional paid-in capital 181 175 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 37 4 
Retained earnings 1,983 1,781 

Total stockholders’ equity 2,201 1,960 

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 7,881 $ 6,787 

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Retained
Earnings TotalOutstanding Amount

(In millions)
(Unaudited)

Balance at December 31, 2019 62 $ — $ 175 $ 4 $ 1,781 $ 1,960 
Net income — — — — 178 178 
Common stock purchases (3) — (9) — (437) (446)
Termination of warrants — — (30) — — (30)
Other comprehensive loss, net — — — (19) — (19)
Share-based compensation — — 4 — — 4 

Balance at March 31, 2020 59 — 140 (15) 1,522 1,647 
Net income — — — — 276 276 
Other comprehensive income, net — — — 47 — 47 
Share-based compensation — — 26 — — 26 

Balance at June 30, 2020 59 — 166 32 1,798 1,996 
Net income — — — — 185 185 
Other comprehensive income, net — — — 5 — 5 
Share-based compensation — — 15 — — 15 

Balance at September 30, 2020 59 $ — $ 181 $ 37 $ 1,983 $ 2,201 

Common Stock Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Retained
Earnings TotalOutstanding Amount

(In millions)
(Unaudited)

Balance at December 31, 2018 62 $ — $ 643 $ (8) $ 1,012 $ 1,647 
Net income — — — — 198 198 
Adoption of new accounting standard — — — — 85 85 
Partial termination of warrants — — (103) — — (103)
Other comprehensive income, net — — — 5 — 5 
Share-based compensation 1 — 3 — — 3 

Balance at March 31, 2019 63 — 543 (3) 1,295 1,835 
Net income — — — — 196 196 
Partial termination of warrants — — (321) — — (321)
Other comprehensive income, net — — — 8 — 8 
Share-based compensation — — 18 — — 18 

Balance at June 30, 2019 63 — 240 5 1,491 1,736 
Net income — — — — 175 175 
Partial termination of warrants — — (90) — — (90)
Share-based compensation — — 10 — — 10 

Balance at September 30, 2019 63 $ — $ 160 $ 5 $ 1,666 $ 1,831 

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Nine Months Ended September 30,

 2020 2019

(In millions)
(Unaudited)

Operating activities:
Net income $ 639 $ 569 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 64 68 
Deferred income taxes (3) 7 
Share-based compensation 43 29 
Loss (gain) on debt repayment 5 (15)
Other, net 2 — 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables (369) 50 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (98) (6)
Medical claims and benefits payable 431 14 
Amounts due government agencies (24) (355)
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other 55 37 
Deferred revenue (188) (4)
Income taxes 34 4 

Net cash provided by operating activities 591 398 
Investing activities:

Purchases of investments (670) (1,938)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 891 1,890 
Net cash paid in business combinations (62) — 
Purchases of property, equipment and capitalized software (64) (30)
Other, net 3 (2)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 98 (80)
Financing activities:

Proceeds from senior notes offering, net of issuance costs 789 — 
Repayment of term loan facility (600) — 
Common stock purchases (453) — 
Proceeds from borrowings under term loan facility 380 220 
Cash paid for partial termination of warrants (30) (514)
Cash paid for partial settlement of conversion option (27) (578)
Cash received for partial settlement of call option 27 578 
Repayment of principal amount of convertible senior notes (12) (240)
Other, net (5) 24 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 69 (510)
Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash and cash equivalents 758 (192)
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 2,508 2,926 

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 3,266 $ 2,734 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(continued)

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2020 2019

(In millions)
(Unaudited)

Supplemental cash flow information:

Schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Common stock used for share-based compensation $ (8) $ (7)

Details of business combinations:
Fair value of assets acquired $ (106) $ — 
Fair value of contingent consideration liabilities 40 — 
Fair value of liabilities assumed 4 — 

Net cash paid in business combinations $ (62) $ — 

Details of change in fair value of derivatives, net:
(Loss) gain on call option $ (2) $ 124 
Gain (loss) on conversion option 2 (124)

Change in fair value of derivatives, net $ — $ — 

See accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation
Organization and Operations

Molina Healthcare, Inc. provides managed healthcare services under the Medicaid and Medicare programs, and through the state insurance
marketplaces (the “Marketplace”). We currently have two reportable segments: the Health Plans segment and the Other segment. Our
reportable segments are consistent with how we currently manage the business and view the markets we serve.

As of September 30, 2020, the Health Plans segment consisted of health plans operating in 15 states and the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico, and served approximately 4.0 million members eligible for Medicaid, Medicare, and other government-sponsored healthcare programs
for low-income families and individuals, including Marketplace members, most of whom receive government premium subsidies. The health
plans are generally operated by our respective wholly owned subsidiaries in those states and licensed as health maintenance organizations
(“HMO”).

Our state Medicaid contracts typically have terms of three to five years, contain renewal options exercisable by the state Medicaid agency,
and allow either the state or the health plan to terminate the contract with or without cause. Such contracts are subject to risk of loss in states
that issue requests for proposal (“RFPs”) open to competitive bidding by other health plans. If one of our health plans is not a successful
responsive bidder to a state RFP, its contract may not be renewed.

In addition to contract renewal, our state Medicaid contracts may be periodically amended to include or exclude certain health benefits (such
as pharmacy services, behavioral health services, or long-term care services); populations such as the aged, blind or disabled; and regions
or service areas.

Recent Developments - Health Plans Segment

New York. In September 2020, we entered into a definitive agreement to acquire substantially all of the assets of Affinity Health Plan, Inc.
The net purchase price for the transaction is approximately $380 million, subject to various adjustments at closing, which we intend to fund
with cash on hand. We currently expect the transaction to close as early as the second quarter of 2021.

In July 2020, we completed the acquisition of certain assets of YourCare Health Plan, Inc. See Note 4, “Business Combinations,” for further
information.

Kentucky. In September 2020, we completed the acquisition of certain assets of Passport Health Plan, Inc. See Note 4, “Business
Combinations,” for further information.

In May 2020, our Kentucky health plan had been selected as an awardee pursuant to the statewide Medicaid managed care RFP issued by
the Kentucky Cabinet for Health and Family Services, Department for Medicaid Services. On October 23, 2020, pursuant to a protest filing
appeal with regard to the RFP awards, a court ordered the addition of a sixth health plan to the Kentucky Medicaid program for 2021. That
ruling did not rescind the Medicaid contract award to our Kentucky health plan for 2021, nor did it have any impact on the earlier novation of
the Passport Medicaid contract to us. The new Medicaid contract is currently expected to begin on January 1, 2021.

Acquisition of Magellan Complete Care (“MCC”). In April 2020, we entered into a definitive agreement to acquire the MCC line of business of
Magellan Health, Inc. The purchase price for the transaction is approximately $820 million, net of certain tax benefits, which we intend to fund
with cash on hand. The transaction is subject to federal and state regulatory approvals, and other customary closing conditions, and is
expected to close around the end of 2020. In connection with this transaction, Magellan Health, Inc. has agreed to provide certain transition
services following the closing.

Texas. In March 2020, the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (“HHSC”) notified our Texas health plan that HHSC had upheld
our protest and had canceled all previously awarded contracts associated with the re-procurement awards announced in October 2019 for
the ABD program (known in Texas as “STAR+PLUS”). In addition, HHSC canceled the pending re-procurement associated with the TANF
and CHIP programs (known in Texas as “STAR/CHIP”). HHSC further indicated that it was deliberating next steps with respect to both re-
procurements.
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Puerto Rico. We will exit Puerto Rico’s Medicaid program when our current contract expires on October 31, 2020. We are working closely
with the regulatory authorities and the provider community to ensure that our members in Puerto Rico have reliable continuity of care.

Illinois. In March 2020, we terminated our agreement to acquire all of the capital stock of NextLevel Health Partners, Inc. due to the seller’s
stated unwillingness to close pursuant to the terms of the acquisition agreement.

Consolidation and Interim Financial Information

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Molina Healthcare, Inc., and its subsidiaries. In the opinion of management, all
adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation of the results as of the date and for the interim periods presented have been
included; such adjustments consist of normal recurring adjustments. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated. The consolidated results of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2020, are not necessarily indicative of the
results for the entire year ending December 31, 2020.

The unaudited consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared under the assumption that users of the interim financial data
have either read or have access to our audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019. Accordingly,
certain disclosures that would substantially duplicate the disclosures contained in our December 31, 2019, audited consolidated financial
statements have been omitted. These unaudited consolidated interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with our audited
consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. Estimates also affect the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Principal areas requiring the
use of estimates include:

• The determination of medical claims and benefits payable of our Health Plans segment;
• Health Plans segment contractual provisions that may limit revenue recognition based upon the costs incurred or the profits realized

under a specific contract;
• Health Plans segment quality incentives that allow us to recognize incremental revenue if certain quality standards are met;
• Settlements under risk- or savings-sharing programs;
• Purchase price allocations relating to business combinations, including the determination of contingent consideration;
• The assessment of long-lived and intangible assets, and goodwill for impairment;
• The determination of reserves for potential absorption of claims unpaid by insolvent providers;
• The determination of reserves for the outcome of litigation;
• The determination of valuation allowances for deferred tax assets; and
• The determination of unrecognized tax benefits.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and have a maturity of three months or less on the date of purchase. The following table reconciles cash, cash equivalents, and
restricted cash and cash equivalents reported within the accompanying consolidated balance sheets that sum to the total of the same such
amounts presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows. The restricted cash and cash equivalents presented below
are included in “Restricted investments” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

September 30,
 2020 2019

(In millions)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,196 $ 2,679 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 70 55 

Total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash and cash equivalents presented in the consolidated
statements of cash flows $ 3,266 $ 2,734 
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Investments

Our investments are principally held in debt securities, which are grouped into two separate categories for accounting and reporting
purposes: available-for-sale securities, and held-to-maturity securities. Available-for-sale (“AFS”) securities are recorded at fair value and
unrealized gains and losses, if any, are recorded in stockholders’ equity as other comprehensive income (loss), net of applicable income
taxes. Held-to-maturity (“HTM”) securities are recorded at amortized cost, which approximates fair value, and unrealized holding gains or
losses are not generally recognized. Realized gains and losses, and unrealized losses arising from credit-related factors with respect to AFS
and HTM securities are included in the determination of net income. The cost of securities sold is determined using the specific-identification
method.

Our investment policy requires that all our investments have final maturities of less than 10 years, or less than 10 years average life for
structured securities. Investments and restricted investments are subject to interest rate risk and will decrease in value if market rates
increase. Declines in interest rates over time will reduce our investment income.

In general, our AFS securities are classified as current assets without regard to the securities’ contractual maturity dates because they may
be readily liquidated. We monitor our investments for credit-related impairment. For comprehensive discussions of the fair value and
classification of our investments, see Note 5, “Fair Value Measurements,” and Note 6, “Investments.”

Accrued interest receivable relating to our AFS and HTM securities is presented within “Prepaid expenses and other current assets” in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets, and amounted to $9 million and $12 million at September 30, 2020, and December 31, 2019,
respectively. We do not measure an allowance for credit losses on accrued interest receivable. Instead, we write off accrued interest
receivable that has not been collected within 90 days of the interest payment due date. We recognize such write offs as a reversal of interest
income. No accrued interest was written off during the nine months ended September 30, 2020.

Premium Revenue Recognition and Premiums Receivable

Premium revenue is generated from our Health Plans segment contracts related to our Medicaid, Medicare and Marketplace programs.
Premium revenue is generally received based on per member per month (“PMPM”) rates established in advance of the periods covered.
These premium revenues are recognized in the month that members are entitled to receive healthcare services, and premiums collected in
advance are deferred. The state Medicaid programs and the federal Medicare program periodically adjust premiums. Additionally, many of
our contracts contain provisions that may adjust or limit revenue or profit, as described below. Consequently, we recognize premium revenue
as it is earned under such provisions. Liabilities accrued for premiums to be returned under such provisions are recognized as “Amounts due
government agencies” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, and included the following categories by program:

September 30,
2020

December 31,
2019

(In millions)
Medicaid program:

Minimum MLR and profit sharing $ 136 $ 92 
Other 83 95 

Medicare program:
Risk adjustment and Part D risk sharing 38 14 
Minimum MLR and profit sharing 35 36 
Other 30 21 

Marketplace program:
Risk adjustment 265 368 
Minimum MLR 33 15 
Other 20 23 

Total amounts due government agencies $ 640 $ 664 
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Contractual Provisions That May Adjust or Limit Revenue or Profit

Medicaid Program

Minimum MLR and Medical Cost Corridors. A portion of our premium revenue may be returned if certain minimum amounts are not spent on
defined medical care costs. Under certain medical cost corridor provisions, the health plans may receive additional premiums if amounts
spent on medical care costs exceed a defined maximum threshold.

Profit Sharing. Our contracts with certain states contain profit sharing provisions under which we refund amounts to the states if our health
plans generate profit above a certain specified percentage. In some cases, we are limited in the amount of administrative costs that we may
deduct in calculating the refund, if any.

Retroactive Premium Adjustments. State Medicaid programs periodically adjust premium rates on a retroactive basis. In these cases, we
adjust our premium revenue in the period in which we determine that the adjustment is probable and reasonably estimable, and is based on
our best estimate of the ultimate premium we expect to realize for the period being adjusted.

Various states have implemented temporary premium refunds and related actions in response to the reduced demand for medical services
stemming from COVID-19, which are resulting in a reduction of our medical margin. In some cases, these premium actions are retroactive to
earlier periods in 2020, or as early as the beginning of the states’ fiscal years in 2019. In the second quarter of 2020, we recognized
approximately $75 million for certain of these retroactive premium actions that we believe to be probable, and where the ultimate premium
amount is reasonably estimable. In most of those states, the refund period extended into the third quarter of 2020, and one additional state,
Michigan, enacted a premium refund mechanism in the third quarter of 2020. Consequently, we recognized an additional $88 million related
to these retroactive premium actions in the third quarter of 2020, resulting in $163 million recognized in the nine months ended September
30, 2020.

It is possible that certain states could increase the level of existing premium refunds, and it is also possible that other states could implement
some form of retroactive premium refund during the fourth quarter of 2020. Due to these uncertainties, the ultimate outcomes could differ
materially from our estimates as a result of changes in facts or further developments, which could have an adverse effect on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Medicare Program

Risk Adjustment. Our Medicare premiums are subject to retroactive increase or decrease based on the health status of our Medicare
members (as measured by member risk score). We estimate our members’ risk scores and the related amount of Medicare revenue that will
ultimately be realized for the periods presented based on our knowledge of our members’ health status, risk scores and Centers for Medicare
& Medicaid Services (“CMS”) practices.

Minimum MLR. The Affordable Care Act (“ACA”) established a minimum annual medical loss ratio (“Minimum MLR”) of 85% for Medicare.
The medical loss ratio represents medical costs as a percentage of premium revenue. Federal regulations define what constitutes medical
costs and premium revenue. If the Minimum MLR is not met, we may be required to pay rebates to the federal government. We recognize
estimated rebates under the Minimum MLR as an adjustment to premium revenue in our consolidated statements of income.

Marketplace Program

Risk Corridor Settlement. In April 2020, the United States Supreme Court held that §1342 of the Affordable Care Act obligated the federal
government to pay participating insurers the full Marketplace risk corridor amounts calculated by that statute, and that impacted insurers may
sue the federal government in the U.S. Court of Federal Claims to recover damages for breach of that obligation. In June 2020, the Claims
Court granted us judgment in the amount of $128.1 million for our 2014, 2015, and 2016 Marketplace risk corridor claims, which we received
in October 2020. Since we accounted for the judgment as a gain contingency at September 30, 2020, it will be recognized in our fourth
quarter 2020 financial results. The judgment does not create additional Minimum MLR rebates.

Risk Adjustment. Under this program, our health plans’ composite risk scores are compared with the overall average risk score for the
relevant state and market pool. Generally, our health plans will make a risk adjustment payment into the pool if their composite risk scores
are below the average risk score (risk adjustment payable), and will receive a risk adjustment payment from the pool if their composite risk
scores are above the average risk score (risk adjustment receivable). We estimate our ultimate premium based on insurance policy year-to-
date experience, and recognize estimated premiums relating to the risk adjustment program as an adjustment to premium revenue in our
consolidated statements of income. As of September 30, 2020, Marketplace risk adjustment payables amounted
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to $265 million and related receivables amounted to $59 million, for a net payable of $206 million. This net payable consisted of $230 million
in payables relating to 2020, and $24 million in receivables relating primarily to 2019. As of December 31, 2019, Marketplace risk adjustment
payables amounted to $368 million and related receivables amounted to $63 million, for a net payable of $305 million, which related primarily
to 2019 and prior periods.

Minimum MLR. The ACA established a Minimum MLR of 80% for the Marketplace. If the Minimum MLR is not met, we may be required to
pay rebates to our Marketplace policyholders. The Marketplace risk adjustment program is taken into consideration when computing the
Minimum MLR. We recognize estimated rebates under the Minimum MLR as an adjustment to premium revenue in our consolidated
statements of income.

Quality Incentives

At many of our health plans, revenue ranging from approximately 1% to 4% of certain health plan premiums is earned only if certain
performance measures are met. Such performance measures are generally found in our Medicaid and MMP contracts. As described in Note
1, “Organization and Basis of Presentation–Use of Estimates,” recognition of quality incentive premium revenue is subject to the use of
estimates.

The following table quantifies the quality incentive premium revenue recognized for the periods presented, including the amounts earned in
the periods presented and prior periods.

 Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
 2020 2019 2020 2019

(In millions)
Maximum available quality incentive premium - current period $ 69 $ 47 $ 195 $ 138 

Quality incentive premium revenue recognized in current
period:

Earned current period $ 63 $ 46 $ 180 $ 109 
Earned prior periods 19 5 23 35 

Total $ 82 $ 51 $ 203 144 

Quality incentive premium revenue recognized as a
percentage of total premium revenue 1.7 % 1.2 % 1.5 % 1.2 %

Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of amounts due from government agencies, which may be subject to potential retroactive adjustments.
Because substantially all our receivable amounts are readily determinable and substantially all of our creditors are governmental authorities,
our allowance for credit losses is insignificant.

September 30,
2020

December 31,
2019

(In millions)
Government receivables $ 1,180 $ 1,056 
Pharmacy rebate receivables 175 150 
Health insurer fee reimbursement receivables 180 5 
Other 240 195 

Total $ 1,775 $ 1,406 

Reinsurance

We bear underwriting and reserving risks associated with our health plan subsidiaries. Until the second quarter of 2020, we limited our risk of
catastrophic losses solely by maintaining high deductible reinsurance coverage with a highly-rated, unaffiliated insurance company (the
“third-party reinsurer”). Beginning in the second quarter of 2020, we now retain certain of these risks through our wholly-owned, captive
insurance subsidiary (the “captive”). We continue to reduce our exposure to significant catastrophic losses by insuring levels of coverage,
with the third-party reinsurer, for losses in excess of what we retain with the captive. Because we remain liable to our policyholders in the
event the third-party reinsurer is unable to pay its portion of the losses, we continually monitor the third-party reinsurer’s financial condition,
including its ability to maintain high credit ratings. We report reinsurance premiums as
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a reduction to premium revenue, while related reinsurance recoveries are reported as a reduction to medical care costs. Intercompany
transactions with our captive are eliminated in consolidation.

Premium Deficiency Reserves on Loss Contracts

We assess the profitability of our medical care policies to identify groups of contracts where current operating results or forecasts indicate
probable future losses. If anticipated future variable costs exceed anticipated future premiums and investment income, a premium deficiency
reserve is recognized. In the third quarter of 2020, we recognized a premium deficiency reserve of $10 million for our Medicaid contract in
Puerto Rico. As described in Note 1, “Organization and Basis of Presentation,” we will exit Puerto Rico’s Medicaid program when our current
contract expires on October 31, 2020. No premium deficiency reserve was recorded as of December 31, 2019.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, investments,
receivables, and restricted investments. Our investments and a portion of our cash equivalents are managed by professional portfolio
managers operating under documented investment guidelines. Our portfolio managers must obtain our prior approval before selling
investments where the loss position of those investments exceeds certain levels. Our investments consist primarily of investment-grade debt
securities with final maturities of less than 10 years, or less than 10 years average life for structured securities. Restricted investments are
invested principally in cash, cash equivalents, and U.S. Treasury securities. Concentration of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is
limited because our payors consist principally of the federal government, and governments of each state or commonwealth in which our
health plan subsidiaries operate.

Health Insurer Fee

Under the ACA, the federal government imposes an annual fee, or excise tax, on health insurers for each calendar year (the “HIF”). Public
Law No. 115-120 provided for a HIF moratorium in 2019; therefore, there was no HIF incurred or reimbursed in that year. The HIF was
reinstated in 2020, but the Further Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2020, repealed the HIF effective for years after 2020. The HIF is
allocated to health insurers based on each health insurer's share of net premiums for all U.S. health insurers in the year preceding the
assessment. Our HIF liability for 2020 is $277 million, of which $271 million was accrued as of January 1, 2020 and an additional $6 million
was accrued in the second quarter, with a corresponding deferred expense asset amortized to expense through December 31, 2020, on a
straight-line basis. We settled the 2020 HIF liability in September 2020. The HIF is not deductible for income tax purposes. Due to the
reinstatement of the HIF in 2020, our effective tax rate is higher in 2020 compared with 2019.

Under the Medicaid program, we must secure additional reimbursement from our state partners for this added cost. We have obtained a
contractual commitment or are receiving payments from all states in which we operate Medicaid programs to reimburse us for the HIF, and
such HIF revenue is being recognized ratably throughout the year.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is determined using an estimated annual effective tax rate, which generally differs from the U.S. federal
statutory rate primarily because of foreign and state taxes, nondeductible expenses such as the HIF, certain compensation, and other general
and administrative expenses.

The effective tax rate may be subject to fluctuations during the year as new information is obtained. Such information may affect the
assumptions used to estimate the annual effective tax rate, including projected pretax earnings, the mix of pretax earnings in the various tax
jurisdictions in which we operate, valuation allowances against deferred tax assets, the recognition or the reversal of the recognition of tax
benefits related to uncertain tax positions, and changes in or the interpretation of tax laws in jurisdictions where we conduct business. We
recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of our assets
and liabilities, along with net operating loss and tax credit carryovers.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Adopted

Credit Losses. In June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-13,
Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, which was subsequently
modified by several ASUs issued in 2018 and 2019. We adopted Topic 326 effective January 1, 2020, using the modified retrospective
approach. Under this method we recognized the cumulative effect of adopting the standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings on January 1, 2020, which was immaterial.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

Reference Rate Reform. In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of
Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting, which provides optional expedients and exceptions for applying generally accepted
accounting principles to contracts, hedging relationships, and other transactions affected by a change in the reference rate from the London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) or another reference rate expected to be discontinued, if certain conditions are met. ASU 2020-04 is
effective immediately and expires after December 31, 2022. We are evaluating the effect of reference rate reform and this guidance on our
contracts and other transactions.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force), the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) did not have, nor does management expect such
pronouncements to have, a significant impact on our present or future consolidated financial statements.

3. Net Income per Share
The following table sets forth the calculation of net income per share:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
 2020 2019 2020 2019

 (In millions, except net income per share)
Numerator:
Net income $ 185 $ 175 $ 639 $ 569 
Denominator:
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 58.7 62.2 61.9 62.1 
Weighted-average number of shares issued:

Stock purchases — — (2.8) — 
Stock-based compensation — — 0.1 0.1 

Denominator for basic net income per share 58.7 62.2 59.2 62.2 
Effect of dilutive securities: 

Warrants — 0.8 — 1.8 
Stock-based compensation 0.9 0.6 0.8 0.6 

Denominator for diluted net income per share 59.6 63.6 60.0 64.6 

Net income per share - Basic $ 3.14 $ 2.81 $ 10.80 $ 9.15 

Net income per share - Diluted $ 3.10 $ 2.75 $ 10.65 $ 8.80 

______________________________
(1)    The dilutive effect of all potentially dilutive common shares is calculated using the treasury stock method. All warrants outstanding as of December 31,

2019, were settled in the first quarter of 2020. For more information refer to Note 9, “Stockholders' Equity.”
(2)    Source data for calculations in thousands.

    

(1)

(2)

(2)
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4. Business Combinations
In the third quarter of 2020, we closed on two business combinations in the Health Plans segment, consistent with our strategy to grow in our
existing markets and expand into new markets. For both transactions, we applied the acquisition method of accounting, where the total
purchase price was allocated, or preliminarily allocated, to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed, based on their
fair values as of the acquisition dates. We expect to complete the final determination of the purchase price allocations as soon as practicable,
but no later than one year following the closing date in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 805, Business
Combinations. The table below illustrates the intangible assets acquired, by major class, for the two acquisitions. Acquisition-related costs
were insignificant.

New York. On July 1, 2020, we closed on the acquisition of certain assets of YourCare Health Plan, Inc., a Medicaid health plan, for a cash
purchase price of $42 million. In connection with this transaction, we added approximately 47,000 Medicaid members in New York. We
recorded goodwill of $31 million for this transaction, which is deductible for income tax purposes. The goodwill recorded relates to future
economic benefits arising from expected synergies to be achieved, including the use of our existing infrastructure to support the added
membership.

Kentucky. On September 1, 2020, we closed on the acquisition of certain assets of Passport Health Plan, Inc., a Medicaid health plan.
Effective on that same date, the Kentucky Medicaid agency approved the novation of Passport’s Medicaid contract to Molina Healthcare of
Kentucky, Inc. As a result, we added approximately 325,000 Medicaid members in Kentucky. As of September 30, 2020, the purchase price
allocation was preliminary due to the proximity of the acquisition date to September 30, 2020, and the time and level of effort required to
develop fair value measurements for the assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

The estimated total purchase price of $60 million includes our initial cash payment of $20 million in September 2020, plus estimated
contingent consideration which consists primarily of an amount due to the seller for members we enroll in the open enrollment period for the
2021 plan year, over a minimum threshold, which resulted in an initial contingent consideration liability of $40 million. We expect to settle this
liability in the first quarter of 2021. Contingent consideration liabilities are remeasured to fair value at each quarter until the contingencies are
resolved with fair value adjustments, if any, recorded to operations. See further information in Note 5, “Fair Value Measurements.” We
recorded goodwill of $27 million for this transaction, which is deductible for income tax purposes. The goodwill recorded relates to future
economic benefits arising from the assembled workforce, and the future growth associated with the member contract rights that are
incremental to the contract rights identified.

The following table presents the intangible assets identified in the transactions described above. The weighted-average amortization period
for the identified intangible assets, in the aggregate, is 10.7 years.

Fair Value Life

 (In millions) (Years)
Intangible asset by type:

Contract rights - member list $ 24 5 - 10
Trade name 15 16
Provider network 8 10

$ 47 

5. Fair Value Measurements
We generally consider the carrying amounts of current assets and current liabilities to approximate their fair values because of the relatively
short period of time between the origination of these instruments and their expected realization or payment. For our financial instruments
measured at fair value on a recurring basis, we prioritize the inputs used in measuring fair value according to the three-tier fair value
hierarchy. For a description of the methods and assumptions that we use to a) estimate the fair value; and b) determine the classification
according to the fair value hierarchy for each financial instrument, refer to our 2019 Annual Report on Form 10-K, Note 4, “Fair Value
Measurements.”

As of September 30, 2020, our Level 3 financial instruments recorded at fair value on a recurring basis included contingent consideration
liabilities of $40 million, in connection with the Kentucky acquisition described in Note 4, “Business Combinations.” Such liabilities are
reported in “Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The fair value of the
contingent consideration was estimated using a
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simulation-based option pricing model through the end of the measurement period of approximately 5 months, and included certain non-
observable inputs. The key assumptions included a U.S. Treasury based risk-free rate of return, expected asset volatility of 35%, expected
revenue volatility of 9%, forecasted membership enrollment, and other estimated revenue, asset and payment correlations and discount
rates. The model produced an estimated range of undiscounted amounts Molina could pay under the contingent consideration arrangement
of $25 million to $75 million.

Our financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis at September 30, 2020, were as follows:

Observable Inputs
Directly or Indirectly
Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

Total (Level 1)  (Level 2)  (Level 3)

 (In millions)
Corporate debt securities $ 1,041 $ — $ 1,041 $ — 
Mortgage-backed securities 417 — 417 — 
Municipal securities 168 — 168 — 
Asset-backed securities 136 — 136 — 
Certificates of deposit 5 — 5 — 
U.S. Treasury notes 2 — 2 — 

Total assets $ 1,769 $ — $ 1,769 $ — 

Contingent consideration liabilities $ 40 $ — $ — $ 40 

Total liabilities $ 40 $ — $ — $ 40 

Our financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2019, were as follows:

Observable Inputs
Directly or Indirectly
Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

 (In millions)
Corporate debt securities $ 1,178 $ — $ 1,178 $ — 
Mortgage-backed securities 420 — 420 — 
Municipal securities 78 — 78 — 
Asset-backed securities 127 — 127 — 
Certificates of deposit 1 — 1 — 
U.S. Treasury notes 86 — 86 — 
GSEs 49 — 49 — 
Other 7 — 7 — 

Subtotal 1,946 — 1,946 — 
Call option derivative asset 29 — — 29 

Total assets $ 1,975 $ — $ 1,946 $ 29 

Conversion option derivative liability $ 29 $ — $ — $ 29 
Total liabilities $ 29 $ — $ — $ 29 

The net changes in fair value of Level 3 financial instruments were insignificant to our results of operations for the nine months ended
September 30, 2020.
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Derivatives

The following table summarizes the fair values and the presentation of our derivative financial instruments in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets:

Balance Sheet Location
September 30,

2020
December 31,

2019

 (In millions)
Derivative asset:

Call option Current assets: Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ — $ 29 
Derivative liability:

Conversion option Current liabilities: Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other $ — $ 29 

For additional information regarding our derivative financial instruments, see Note 11, “Debt,” and Note 12, “Derivatives,” in our 2019 Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

In the first quarter of 2020, we received $27 million for the settlement of the call option derivative asset, and we paid $39 million to settle the
outstanding $12 million principal amount of the 1.125% Convertible Notes, and settle the related conversion option. For more information,
refer to Notes 8, “Debt,” and 9, “Stockholders' Equity.”

Fair Value Measurements – Disclosure Only

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of our notes payable are classified as Level 2 financial instruments. Fair value for these
securities is determined using a market approach based on quoted market prices for similar securities in active markets or quoted prices for
identical securities in inactive markets.

 September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019
Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

 (In millions)
4.375% Notes $ 789 $ 816 $ — $ — 
5.375% Notes 697 731 696 745 
4.875% Notes 327 337 327 340 
Term loan facility — — 220 220 
1.125% Convertible Notes — — 12 42 

Total $ 1,813 $ 1,884 $ 1,255 $ 1,347 

______________________
(1) For more information on financing activities, refer to Note 8, “Debt.”

6. Investments
Available-for-Sale

We consider all our investments classified as current assets to be available-for-sale. The following tables summarize our investments as of
the dates indicated:

 September 30, 2020

Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized

Estimated Fair Value Gains Losses

 (In millions)
Corporate debt securities $ 1,007 $ 35 $ 1 $ 1,041 
Mortgage-backed securities 408 10 1 417 
Municipal securities 166 2 — 168 
Asset-backed securities 133 3 — 136 
Certificates of deposit 5 — — 5 
U.S. Treasury notes 2 — — 2 

Total $ 1,721 $ 50 $ 2 $ 1,769 

(1)

(1)
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 December 31, 2019

 
Amortized Cost

Gross Unrealized
Estimated Fair Value Gains Losses

 (In millions)
Corporate debt securities $ 1,174 $ 5 $ 1 $ 1,178 
Mortgage-backed securities 420 1 1 420 
Municipal securities 78 — — 78 
Asset-backed securities 126 1 — 127 
Certificates of deposit 1 — — 1 
U.S. Treasury notes 86 — — 86 
GSEs 49 — — 49 
Other 7 — — 7 

Total $ 1,941 $ 7 $ 2 $ 1,946 

The contractual maturities of our available-for-sale investments as of September 30, 2020 are summarized below:

Amortized Cost
Estimated
Fair Value

 (In millions)
Due in one year or less $ 193 $ 195 
Due after one year through five years 943 975 
Due after five years through ten years 160 165 
Due after ten years 425 434 

Total $ 1,721 $ 1,769 

Gross realized gains and losses from sales of available-for-sale securities are calculated under the specific identification method and are
included in investment income. Gross realized investment gains were insignificant for the three months ended September 30, 2020, and
amounted to $6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2020. Gross realized investment gains amounted to $11 million for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2019. Gross realized investment losses were insignificant for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2020, and 2019.

We have determined that unrealized losses at September 30, 2020, and December 31, 2019, primarily resulted from fluctuating interest
rates, rather than a deterioration of the creditworthiness of the issuers. Therefore, we determined that an allowance for credit losses was not
necessary. So long as we maintain the intent and ability to hold these securities to maturity, we are unlikely to experience losses. In the event
that we dispose of these securities before maturity, we expect that realized losses, if any, will be insignificant. 

The following table segregates those available-for-sale investments that have been in a continuous loss position for less than 12 months as
of September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019:

 September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019

 

Estimated
Fair

Value
Unrealized

Losses

Total
Number of
Positions

Estimated
Fair

Value
Unrealized

Losses

Total
Number of
Positions

 (Dollars in millions)
Corporate debt securities $ 35 $ 1 18 $ 222 $ 1 167 
Mortgage-backed securities 104 1 7 143 1 72 

Total $ 139 $ 2 25 $ 365 $ 2 239 

None of our available-for-sale investments were in a continuous loss position for 12 months or more as of September 30, 2020, or
December 31, 2019.

Held-to-Maturity

Pursuant to the regulations governing our Health Plans segment subsidiaries, we maintain statutory deposits and deposits required by
government authorities primarily in cash, cash equivalents, and U.S. Treasury securities. We also maintain restricted investments as
protection against the insolvency of certain capitated providers. The use of these funds is limited as required by regulations in the various
states in which we operate, or as needed in the event
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of insolvency of capitated providers. Therefore, such investments are reported as “Restricted investments” in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets.

We have the ability to hold these restricted investments until maturity, and as a result, we would not expect the value of these investments to
decline significantly due to a sudden change in market interest rates. Our held-to-maturity restricted investments are carried at amortized
cost, which approximates fair value. Such investments amounted to $93 million at September 30, 2020, of which $91 million will mature in
one year or less, and $2 million will mature in after one through five years.

7. Medical Claims and Benefits Payable
The following table provides the details of our medical claims and benefits payable as of the dates indicated:

September 30,
2020

December 31,
2019

 (In millions)
Fee-for-service claims incurred but not paid (“IBNP”) $ 1,615 $ 1,406 
Pharmacy payable 148 126 
Capitation payable 73 55 
Other 453 267 

Total $ 2,289 $ 1,854 

“Other” medical claims and benefits payable includes amounts payable to certain providers for which we act as an intermediary on behalf of
various government agencies without assuming financial risk. Such receipts and payments do not impact our consolidated statements of
income. Non-risk provider payables amounted to $168 million and $132 million as of September 30, 2020, and December 31, 2019,
respectively.

The following table presents the components of the change in our medical claims and benefits payable for the periods indicated. The
amounts presented for “Components of medical care costs related to: Prior years” represent the amounts by which our original estimates of
medical claims and benefits payable at the beginning of the year were more than the actual liabilities, based on information (principally the
payment of claims) developed since those liabilities were first reported.

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2020 2019

 (In millions)
Medical claims and benefits payable, beginning balance $ 1,854 $ 1,961 
Components of medical care costs related to:

Current year 11,478 10,613 
Prior years (66) (253)

Total medical care costs 11,412 10,360 
Change in non-risk and other provider payables 50 131 
Payments for medical care costs related to:

Current year 9,500 8,996 
Prior years 1,527 1,481 

Total paid 11,027 10,477 

Medical claims and benefits payable, ending balance $ 2,289 $ 1,975 

Our estimates of medical claims and benefits payable recorded at December 31, 2019, and 2018 developed favorably by approximately $66
million and $253 million as of September 30, 2020, and 2019, respectively.

In the nine months ended September 30, 2020, medical care costs related to the prior year reflect the release of additional reserves for
moderately adverse conditions included in our prior year estimates, partially offset by higher than expected costs for settling certain claims
with certain providers. The differences between our original estimates for such claims in 2019, and the ultimate costs in 2020, were not
discernible until additional information was provided to us in 2020 and the effect became clearer over time as claim payments were
processed. The release of
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additional reserves for moderately adverse conditions included in our prior year estimates was substantially offset by the replenishment of the
reserve recorded in medical care costs related to the current year.

8. Debt
All our debt is held at the parent, which is reported in the Other segment. The following table summarizes our outstanding debt obligations
and their classification in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets:

September 30,
2020

December 31,
2019

(In millions)
Current portion of long-term debt: 

Term loan facility $ — $ 6 
1.125% Convertible Notes, net of unamortized discount — 12 

Total $ — $ 18 
Non-current portion of long-term debt:

4.375% Notes due 2028 $ 800 $ — 
5.375% Notes due 2022 700 700 
4.875% Notes due 2025 330 330 
Term loan facility — 214 
Deferred debt issuance costs (17) (7)

Total $ 1,813 $ 1,237 

______________________

(1) Reported in “Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other.”

Credit Agreement

In June 2020, we entered into a credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) that replaced our prior credit agreement. The terms of the Credit
Agreement are substantially similar to the terms of the prior agreement. Among various provisions, significant changes incorporated to the
Credit Agreement included:

• An increase of the revolving credit facility (the “Credit Facility”) from $500 million to $1.0 billion;
• A $15 million swingline sub-facility and a $100 million letter of credit sub-facility;
• An increase of incremental term loans available to finance certain acquisitions from $150 million to $500 million, plus an unlimited

amount as long as our consolidated net leverage ratio is not greater than 3:1;
• The ability to engage in acquisitions where the consummation of such acquisitions is not conditioned on the availability of, or on

obtaining, third-party financing;
• Termination of the term loan facility under the prior credit agreement, which was repaid as described below; and
• LIBOR succession provisions.

The Credit Agreement has a term of five years, and all amounts outstanding will be due and payable on June 8, 2025. Borrowings under the
Credit Agreement bear interest based, at our election, on a base rate or other defined rate, plus in each case, the applicable margin. In
addition to interest payable on the principal amount of indebtedness outstanding from time to time under the Credit Agreement, we are
required to pay a quarterly commitment fee.

The Credit Agreement contains customary non-financial and financial covenants. As of September 30, 2020, we were in compliance with all
financial and non-financial covenants under the Credit Agreement and other long-term debt. As of September 30, 2020, no amounts were
outstanding under the Credit Facility.

In the nine months ended September 30, 2020, we recognized losses on debt repayment of $5 million in connection with repayment of our
term loan facility and other financing transactions. In the third quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2019, we recognized a loss on
debt repayment of $2 million and a gain on debt repayment of $15 million, respectively, in connection with convertible senior notes repayment
transactions.

(1)
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High-Yield Senior Notes

Our high-yield senior notes are described below. Each of these notes are senior unsecured obligations of Molina and rank equally in right of
payment with all existing and future senior debt, and senior to all existing and future subordinated debt of Molina. In addition, each of the
notes contain customary non-financial covenants and change of control provisions.

The indentures governing the high-yield senior notes contain cross-default provisions that are triggered upon default by us or any of our
subsidiaries on any indebtedness in excess of the amount specified in the applicable indenture.

4.375% Notes due 2028. On June 2, 2020, we completed the private offering of $800 million aggregate principal amount of senior notes (the
“4.375% Notes”) due June 15, 2028, unless earlier redeemed. The 4.375% Notes contain optional early redemption provisions, with
redemption prices in excess of par. Interest, at a rate of 4.375% per annum, is payable semiannually in arrears on June 15 and December 15
of each year, commencing December 15, 2020. A portion of the net proceeds from the 4.375% Notes offering was used to repay $600 million
principal amount outstanding under the term loan facility of our prior credit agreement, and the balance is intended to be used for general
corporate purposes. Deferred issuance costs amounted to $11 million.

5.375% Notes due 2022. We had $700 million aggregate principal amount of senior notes (the “5.375% Notes”) outstanding as of
September 30, 2020, which are due November 15, 2022, unless earlier redeemed. Interest, at a rate of 5.375% per annum, is payable
semiannually in arrears on May 15 and November 15.

4.875% Notes due 2025. We had $330 million aggregate principal amount of senior notes (the “4.875% Notes”) outstanding as of
September 30, 2020, which are due June 15, 2025, unless earlier redeemed. Interest, at a rate of 4.875% per annum, is payable
semiannually in arrears on June 15 and December 15.

1.125% Cash Convertible Senior Notes due 2020

For a description of the 1.125% cash convertible senior notes due January 15, 2020 (the “1.125% Convertible Notes”), see Note 11, “Debt,”
in our 2019 Annual Report on Form 10-K. In January 2020, we paid $39 million to settle the outstanding $12 million principal amount of the
1.125% Convertible Notes, and settle the related conversion option.

9. Stockholders' Equity
Stock Purchase Programs

In September 2020, our board of directors authorized the purchase of up to $500 million, in the aggregate, of our common stock. This
program will be funded with cash on hand and extends through December 31, 2021. The exact timing and amount of any repurchase will be
determined by management based on market conditions and share price, in addition to other factors, and subject to the restrictions relating to
volume, price, and timing under applicable law. No shares were purchased under this program through October 29, 2020.

In December 2019, our board of directors authorized the purchase of up to $500 million, in the aggregate, of our common stock. This
program was funded with existing cash on hand and was completed in March 2020. Under this program, pursuant to a Rule 10b5-1 trading
plan, we purchased approximately 3.4 million shares of our common stock for $446 million in the first quarter of 2020 (average cost of
$132.45 per share). In the first quarter of 2020, we also paid $7 million to settle shares purchased in late December 2019.

1.125% Warrants

For a description of the 1.125% Warrants, refer to our 2019 Annual Report on Form 10-K, Note 12, “Derivatives,” and Note 14, “Stockholders’
Equity.” Approximately 310,000 of the 1.125% Warrants were outstanding at December 31, 2019. In the first quarter of 2020, we entered into
privately negotiated termination agreements under which we paid $30 million to the counterparties for the termination of the remaining
1.125% Warrants outstanding, which resulted in a reduction of additional paid-in-capital for the same amount.

Share-Based Compensation

In connection with our employee stock plans, approximately 192,000 shares of common stock vested or were purchased, net of shares used
to settle employees’ income tax obligations, during the nine months ended September 30, 2020.

Share-based compensation is recorded to “General and administrative expenses” in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.
Total share-based compensation expense amounted to $15 million and $10
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million, respectively, in the third quarter of 2020 and 2019. Total share-based compensation expense amounted to $43 million and $29
million, respectively, in the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019.

As of September 30, 2020, there was approximately $76 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested restricted
stock awards (“RSAs”), and performance stock units (“PSUs”), which we expect to recognize over remaining weighted-average periods of 2.4
years and 1.5 years, respectively. This unrecognized compensation cost assumes an estimated forfeiture rate of 11.5% for non-executive
employees as of September 30, 2020.

As of September 30, 2020, unrecognized stock option expense was insignificant. No stock options were granted or exercised in the nine
months ended September 30, 2020.

Activity for RSAs and PSUs is summarized below:

RSAs

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value PSUs

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Unvested balance, December 31, 2019 447,680 $ 102.41 324,078 $ 101.45 
Granted 334,233 125.99 187,028 123.09 
Vested (166,115) 96.19 (7,368) 68.16 
Forfeited (26,439) 114.48 (29,271) 98.72 

Unvested balance, September 30, 2020 589,359 $ 116.99 474,467 $ 110.67 

The aggregate fair values of RSAs and PSUs granted and vested are presented in the following table:

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2020 2019

(In millions)
Granted:

RSAs $ 42 $ 32 
PSUs 23 19 

Total granted $ 65 $ 51 
Vested:

RSAs $ 21 $ 18 
PSUs 1 2 

Total vested $ 22 $ 20 

10. Segments
We currently have two reportable segments: the Health Plans segment and the Other segment. Our reportable segments are consistent with
how we currently manage the business and view the markets we serve.

Margin is the appropriate earnings measure for our reportable segments, based on how our chief operating decision maker currently reviews
results, assesses performance, and allocates resources.

The key metrics used to assess the performance of our Health Plans segment are premium revenue, medical margin and MCR. MCR
represents the amount of medical care costs as a percentage of premium revenue. Therefore, the underlying margin, or the amount earned
by the Health Plans segment after medical costs are deducted from premium revenue, is the most important measure of earnings reviewed
by management. Margin for our Health Plans segment is referred to as “Medical Margin.”

The following table presents total revenue by segment. Inter-segment revenue was insignificant for all periods presented.
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Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019

(In millions)
Total revenue:

Health Plans $ 5,020 $ 4,239 $ 14,181 $ 12,546 
Other 1 4 7 9 

Consolidated $ 5,021 $ 4,243 $ 14,188 $ 12,555 

The following table reconciles margin to consolidated income before income taxes:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019

(In millions)
Margin:

Health Plans $ 670 $ 561 $ 2,032 $ 1,725 
Add: other operating revenues 253 159 744 470 
Less: other operating expenses (634) (463) (1,789) (1,393)

Operating income 289 257 987 802 
Other expenses, net 27 24 77 52 

Income before income tax expense $ 262 $ 233 $ 910 $ 750 

______________________
(1) Other operating revenues include premium tax revenue, health insurer fees reimbursed, and investment income and other revenue.
(2) Other operating expenses include general and administrative expenses, premium tax expenses, health insurer fees, depreciation and amortization, and

other costs.

11. Commitments and Contingencies
COVID-19 Pandemic

We continue to monitor and assess the estimated operating and financial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, and as it evolves, we continue
to process, assemble, and assess member utilization information. We believe that our cash resources, borrowing capacity available under
the Credit Agreement, and cash flow generated from operations will be sufficient to withstand the financial impact of the pandemic, and will
enable us to continue to support our operations, regulatory requirements, debt repayment obligations, and capital expenditures for the
foreseeable future.

Legal Proceedings

The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local governments. Penalties associated with
violations of these laws and regulations include significant fines, exclusion from participating in publicly funded programs, and the repayment
of previously collected revenues.

In the ordinary course of business we are involved in legal actions, some of which seek monetary damages which are not covered by
insurance. We have accrued liabilities for certain matters for which we deem the loss to be both probable and reasonably estimable, but the
outcome of legal actions is inherently uncertain and our estimates of such losses could be understated, and could also subsequently change
as a result of further developments of these matters. For certain pending matters, accruals have not been established because we believe
we are not liable or because such matters have not progressed sufficiently through discovery or factual development to enable us to
reasonably estimate a range of possible loss. An adverse determination in one or more of these pending matters could have an adverse
effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

(1)

(2)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS (“MD&A”)
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements regarding our business, financial condition, and results of operations
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, or Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
or Securities Exchange Act. Many of the forward-looking statements are located under the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Forward-looking statements provide current expectations of future events based on certain
assumptions and include any statement that does not directly relate to any historical or current fact. Forward-looking statements can also be
identified by words such as “guidance,” “future,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “growth,” “intends,” “plans,” “predicts,”
“projects,” “will,” “would,” “could,” “can,” “may,” and similar terms. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking
statements, as forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and the Company’s actual results may differ
significantly due to numerous known and unknown risks and uncertainties. Those known risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited
to, the risk factors identified in the sections titled “Risk Factors” in this Form 10-Q, our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2019, and our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2020, and June 30, 2020, including without
limitation the following:

• the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our operations and financial results;
• the numerous political, judicial, and market-based uncertainties associated with the Affordable Care Act (the “ACA”) or “Obamacare,”

including the ultimate outcome of the Texas et al. v. U.S. et al. matter now pending before the U.S. Supreme Court;
• significant budget pressures on state governments from diminished tax revenues and their efforts to curtail current rates, to implement

expected rate increases, or to maintain existing benefit packages or membership eligibility thresholds or criteria;
• the market dynamics surrounding the ACA Marketplaces, including but not limited to uncertainties associated with the elasticity of

demand for our products based on our pricing, risk adjustment estimates and results, the potential for disproportionate enrollment of
higher acuity members, and the discontinuation of premium tax credits;

• the uncertainties associated with the November 2020 Presidential and Congressional election;
• subsequent adjustments to reported premium revenue based upon subsequent developments or new information, including changes to

estimated amounts payable or receivable related to Marketplace risk adjustment;
• the availability of adequate financing on acceptable terms to fund and capitalize our expansion and growth, repay our outstanding

indebtedness at maturity, and meet our general liquidity needs;
• our ability to consummate, integrate, and realize benefits from acquisitions, including the announced acquisitions of Magellan Complete

Care and of Affinity;
• the outcome of the protest and appeal proceedings in Kentucky with regard to the Medicaid contract award to our Kentucky health plan;
• effective management of our medical costs;
• our ability to predict with a reasonable degree of accuracy utilization rates, including utilization rates associated with the flu or

coronavirus;
• the full reimbursement of the ACA health insurer fee, or HIF;
• the success of our efforts to retain existing or awarded government contracts, and the success of any bid submissions in response to

requests for proposal, including our contracts in Ohio, California, Texas, and Kentucky;
• the ability to manage our operations, including maintaining and creating adequate internal systems and controls relating to

authorizations, approvals, provider payments, and the overall success of our care management initiatives;
• our receipt of adequate premium rates to support increasing pharmacy costs, including costs associated with specialty drugs and costs

resulting from formulary changes that allow the option of higher-priced non-generic drugs;
• our ability to operate profitably in an environment where the trend in premium rate increases lags behind the trend in increasing medical

costs;
• the interpretation and implementation of federal or state medical cost expenditure floors, administrative cost and profit ceilings, premium

stabilization programs, profit-sharing arrangements, and risk adjustment provisions and requirements;
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• our estimates of amounts owed for such cost expenditure floors, administrative cost and profit ceilings, premium stabilization programs,
profit-sharing arrangements, and risk adjustment provisions and requirements;

• the Medicaid expansion medical cost corridor, and any other retroactive adjustment to revenue where methodologies and procedures are
subject to interpretation or dependent upon information about the health status of participants other than Molina members;

• the interpretation and implementation of at-risk premium rules and state contract performance requirements regarding the achievement
of certain quality measures, and our ability to recognize revenue amounts associated therewith;

• cyber-attacks, ransomware attacks, or other privacy or data security incidents resulting in an inadvertent unauthorized disclosure of
protected health information;

• the success and renewal of our duals demonstration programs in California, Illinois, Michigan, Ohio, South Carolina, and Texas;
• the accurate estimation of incurred but not reported or paid medical costs across our health plans;
• efforts by states to recoup previously paid and recognized premium amounts;
• complications, member confusion, eligibility re-determinations, or enrollment backlogs related to the renewal of Medicaid coverage, as

well as the chilling effect of the new so-called public charge rule;
• government audits, reviews, comment letters, or potential investigations, and any fine, sanction, enrollment freeze, monitoring program,

or premium recovery that may result therefrom;
• our expected exit from Puerto Rico, including the successful transfer of our members to alternative health plans, the effective run-out of

claims, and the return of our capital;
• changes with respect to our provider contracts and the loss of providers;
• approval by state regulators of dividends and distributions by our health plan subsidiaries;
• changes in funding under our contracts as a result of regulatory changes, programmatic adjustments, or other reforms;
• high dollar claims related to catastrophic illness;
• the favorable resolution of litigation, arbitration, or administrative proceedings, including litigation involving the ACA to which we are not a

direct party;
• the relatively small number of states in which we operate health plans, including the greater scale and revenues of our California, Ohio,

Texas, and Washington health plans;
• the failure to comply with the financial or other covenants in the Credit Agreement or the indentures governing our outstanding notes;
• the sufficiency of funds on hand to pay the amounts due upon maturity of our outstanding notes;
• the failure of a state in which we operate to renew its federal Medicaid waiver;
• changes generally affecting the managed care industry;
• increases in government surcharges, taxes, and assessments;
• the unexpected loss of the leadership of one or more of our senior executives; and
• increasing competition and consolidation in the Medicaid industry.

Each of the terms “Molina Healthcare, Inc.” “Molina Healthcare,” “Company,” “we,” “our,” and “us,” as used herein, refers collectively to
Molina Healthcare, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, unless otherwise stated. The Company assumes no obligation to revise or update
any forward-looking statements for any reason, except as required by law.

Readers should refer to the section entitled “Risk Factors” in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for
the quarters ended March 31, 2020, and June 30, 2020, and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019, for
a discussion of certain risk factors that could materially affect our business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations. Given
these risks and uncertainties, we can give no assurance that any results or events projected or contemplated by our forward-looking
statements will in fact occur.

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements and the notes to those statements appearing elsewhere in this report,
and the audited financial statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis appearing in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2019.
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OVERVIEW
Molina Healthcare, Inc., a FORTUNE 500 company, provides managed healthcare services under the Medicaid and Medicare programs, and
through the state insurance marketplaces (the “Marketplace”). Through our locally operated health plans in 15 states and the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico, we served approximately 4.0 million members as of September 30, 2020. The health plans are generally operated by our
respective wholly owned subsidiaries in those states and licensed as health maintenance organizations (“HMO”).

THIRD QUARTER 2020 HIGHLIGHTS
We reported net income per diluted share of $3.10 for the third quarter of 2020, with net income of $185 million, which consisted of the
following:

• Premium revenue of $4.8 billion, which increased 16.8% compared with the third quarter of 2019;
• Consolidated medical care ratio (“MCR”) of 85.9%, which decreased 40 basis points compared with 86.3% in the third quarter of

2019;
• General and administrative expense (“G&A”) ratio of 7.3%, which decreased 30 basis points compared with 7.6% in the third quarter

of 2019; and
• After-tax margin of 3.7%.

COVID Impacts

Unlike the second quarter of 2020, in which the combined COVID-related impacts temporarily increased our earnings, in the third quarter of
2020 the combination of COVID-related impacts netted to a negligible to slightly positive impact on earnings and included:

• A modest net decrease in medical costs due primarily to COVID-related utilization curtailment;
• Premium refunds to a number of our state Medicaid customers in response to the COVID-related utilization curtailment, which we

experienced in both the second and third quarters of 2020;
• An increase in our G&A spending on activities related to COVID; and
• A meaningful increase to our Medicaid membership.

As we work through this unprecedented period of the COVID pandemic, we remain focused on executing on the underlying fundamentals of
our business to continue to produce solid results, regardless of the short-term COVID-related impacts on our reported financial metrics and
results.

Growth Initiatives

We made another major stride in the third quarter of 2020 related to the activation of our growth strategy. In September 2020, we signed a
definitive agreement to purchase the net assets of Affinity Health Plan in New York for approximately $380 million, which we currently expect
to close as early as the second quarter of 2021. We believe this purchase is another milestone in a growth-oriented 2020. Our growth
initiatives continue to be anchored by our capital allocation priorities: first, organic growth of our core businesses; second, inorganic growth
through accretive acquisitions; and third, programmatically returning excess capital to shareholders.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
 Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
 2020 2019 2020 2019

 (Dollars in millions, except per-share amounts)
Premium revenue $ 4,768 $ 4,084 $ 13,444 $ 12,085 
Premium tax revenue 170 119 477 367 
Health insurer fees reimbursed 69 — 206 — 
Investment income and other revenue 14 40 61 103 

Medical care costs $ 4,098 $ 3,523 $ 11,412 $ 10,360 
General and administrative expenses 368 323 1,030 953 
Premium tax expenses 170 119 477 367 
Health insurer fees 70 — 209 — 

Operating income $ 289 $ 257 $ 987 $ 802 
Interest expense 27 22 72 67 
Other expense (income), net — 2 5 (15)
Income before income tax expense 262 233 910 750 
Income tax expense 77 58 271 181 
Net income 185 175 639 569 
Net income per share - Diluted $ 3.10 $ 2.75 $ 10.65 $ 8.80 

Operating Statistics:
Ending total membership 4,033,000 3,346,000 4,033,000 3,346,000 
MCR 85.9 % 86.3 % 84.9 % 85.7 %
G&A ratio 7.3 % 7.6 % 7.3 % 7.6 %
Premium tax ratio 3.4 % 2.8 % 3.4 % 2.9 %
Effective income tax rate 29.5 % 24.7 % 29.8 % 24.1 %
After-tax margin 3.7 % 4.1 % 4.5 % 4.5 %
________________________
(1)    MCR represents medical care costs as a percentage of premium revenue; premium tax ratio represents premium tax expenses as a percentage of

premium revenue plus premium tax revenue.
(2)    G&A ratio represents general and administrative expenses as a percentage of total revenue. After-tax margin represents net income as a percentage of

total revenue.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
NET INCOME AND OPERATING INCOME
Net income in the third quarter of 2020 amounted to $185 million, or $3.10 per diluted share, compared with $175 million, or $2.75 per diluted
share, in the third quarter of 2019. Operating income of $289 million in the third quarter of 2020, was higher compared with $257 million in
the third quarter of 2019.

Net income in the nine months ended September 30, 2020, amounted to $639 million, or $10.65 per diluted share, compared with $569
million, or $8.80 per diluted share, in the nine months ended September 30, 2019. Operating income of $987 million in the nine months
ended September 30, 2020, was higher compared with $802 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2019.

The improvement in operating income for both periods was mainly due to higher premium revenues and a reduction in the MCR.

Net income per share in the third quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2020, was favorably impacted by the reduction in common
shares outstanding as a result of our share repurchase program that began in late 2019 and concluded in the first quarter of 2020. See
further discussion in “Liquidity and Financial Condition,” below.

(1)

(2)

(1)

(2)
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PREMIUM REVENUE
Premium revenue increased $684 million in the third quarter of 2020, when compared with the third quarter of 2019, and increased $1,359
million in the nine months ended September 30, 2020, when compared with the nine months ended September 30, 2019.

In both periods, the higher premium revenue reflected the increase in membership, primarily in Medicaid, and included the impact from the
YourCare and Passport acquisitions. In the third quarter of 2020, we added 325,000 members from our acquisition of the Kentucky Passport
business on September 1, 2020, and 47,000 members from our acquisition of the New York YourCare business on July 1, 2020. The
increase in premium revenues from these acquisitions was slightly offset by the decline in membership, in the third quarter of 2020,
associated with our announced exit of operations in Puerto Rico. The increase in premium revenue was net of COVID-related premium
refunds that were enacted in several states.

MEDICAL CARE RATIO
The consolidated MCR in the third quarter of 2020 decreased to 85.9%, compared to 86.3% in the third quarter of 2019, reflecting improved
operating performance in Medicaid and Medicare, partially offset by underperformance in the Marketplace program. Additionally, the net
effect of all of the COVID-related impacts, such as the reduced demand for medical services and the premium refunds, profit corridors and
related actions, had a slightly favorable impact on our overall financial results.

The consolidated MCR in the nine months ended September 30, 2020, decreased to 84.9%, compared to 85.7% in the nine months ended
September 30, 2019. Reserve development for the first nine months of 2020 was not material. The comparable period in the prior year was
positively impacted by 100 basis points of favorable reserve development, primarily in the Medicaid program.

PREMIUM TAX REVENUE AND EXPENSES
The premium tax ratio (premium tax expense as a percentage of premium revenue plus premium tax revenue) was 3.4% in the third quarter
of 2020, compared with 2.8% the third quarter of 2019; and 3.4% compared with 2.9% for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively. The current year ratio increase was mainly due to the state of Illinois’ implementation of a managed care organization
provider assessment in the third quarter of 2019.

INVESTMENT INCOME AND OTHER REVENUE
Investment income and other revenue decreased to $14 million in the third quarter of 2020, compared with $40 million in the third quarter of
2019, and decreased to $61 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2020, compared with $103 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2019. The year-over-year decrease was consistent with our expectation and was due to the low interest rate environment.

G&A EXPENSES
The G&A expense ratio decreased to 7.3% in the third quarter of 2020, from 7.6% in the third quarter of 2019, and decreased to 7.3% in the
nine months ended September 30, 2020, compared with 7.6% in the nine months ended September 30, 2019. In both periods, the ratio
improved due to increased revenues, partially offset by increased costs associated with the COVID-19 pandemic. The third quarter and nine
months ended September 30, 2020, reflected approximately $7 million and $38 million, respectively, of net incremental expenses associated
with a variety of new COVID-related operational protocols, technology implementations, and benefits for our employees.

HEALTH INSURER FEES (“HIF”)
In the third quarter of 2020 and the nine months ended September 30, 2020, HIF expense amounted to $70 million and $209 million,
respectively, and HIF reimbursements amounted to $69 million and $206 million, respectively. Public Law No. 115-120 provided for a HIF
moratorium in 2019; therefore, there was no HIF incurred or reimbursed in that year. The HIF was reinstated in 2020, but the Further
Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2020, repealed the HIF effective for years after 2020.

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest expense increased to $27 million in the third quarter of 2020, compared with $22 million in the third quarter of 2019, and increased to
$72 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2020, compared with $67 million in
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the nine months ended September 30, 2019. Additional interest expense relating to the 4.375% Notes issued in June 2020 was partially
offset by the decrease in interest expense resulting from the settlement of the convertible senior notes in January 2020. As further described
below in “Liquidity,” a portion of the net proceeds from the 4.375% Notes offering was used to repay $600 million principal amount
outstanding under the term loan facility of our prior credit agreement. See further discussion in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
Note 8, “Debt.”

OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME), NET
In the nine months ended September 30, 2020, we recognized losses on debt repayment of $5 million in connection with repayment of our
term loan facility and other financing transactions. In the third quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2019, we recognized a loss on
debt repayment of $2 million, and a gain on debt repayment of $15 million, respectively, in connection with convertible senior notes
repayment transactions.

INCOME TAXES
Income tax expense amounted to $77 million in the third quarter of 2020, or 29.5% of pretax income, compared with income tax expense of
$58 million, or 24.7% of pretax income in the third quarter of 2019. Income tax expense amounted to $271 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2020, or 29.8% of pretax income, compared with income tax expense of $181 million, or 24.1% of pretax income in the nine
months ended September 30, 2019. The effective tax rate has been higher in 2020 due to higher nondeductible expenses in 2020, primarily
related to the nondeductible HIF. As discussed above, the HIF was not applicable in 2019 and has been repealed for years after 2020.

REPORTABLE SEGMENTS
We currently have two reportable segments: the Health Plans segment and the Other segment. Our reportable segments are consistent with
how we currently manage the business and view the markets we serve.

HOW WE ASSESS PERFORMANCE
We derive our revenues primarily from health insurance premiums. Our primary customers are state Medicaid agencies and the federal
government.

The key metrics used to assess the performance of our Health Plans segment are premium revenue, margin and MCR. MCR represents the
amount of medical care costs as a percentage of premium revenue. Therefore, the underlying margin, or the amount earned by the Health
Plans segment after medical costs are deducted from premium revenue, is the most important measure of earnings reviewed by
management.

Margin for our Health Plans segment is referred to as “Medical Margin.” Medical Margin amounted to $670 million in the third quarter of 2020,
and $561 million in the third quarter of 2019. Medical Margin amounted to $2,032 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2020, and
$1,725 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2019. Management’s discussion and analysis of the changes in the individual
components of Medical Margin follows.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 10, “Segments,” for more information on our reportable segments.

HEALTH PLANS
As of September 30, 2020, the Health Plans segment consisted of health plans operating in 15 states and the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico, and served approximately 4.0 million members eligible for Medicaid, Medicare, and other government-sponsored healthcare programs
for low-income families and individuals, including Marketplace members, most of whom receive government premium subsidies.

TRENDS AND UNCERTAINTIES
COVID-19 Pandemic

As the COVID-19 pandemic continues to evolve, its ultimate impact to our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows
is uncertain and difficult to predict. Specific trends and uncertainties related to our Health Plans segment follow.

Molina Healthcare, Inc. September 30, 2020 Form 10-Q | 29



Table of Contents

Federal Economic Stabilization Programs

As a result of the pandemic, various stabilization programs were enacted beginning in March 2020, which may impact our business directly
or indirectly, including the following:

Phase 1 - Coronavirus Preparedness and Response Supplemental Appropriations Act. Enacted on March 6, 2020, this legislation provided
$8.3 billion in COVID-19 response funding for developing a vaccine and preventing further spread of the virus.

Phase 2 - Families First Coronavirus Response Act. Enacted on March 18, 2020, this legislation provided $100 billion in worker assistance,
temporarily increased each qualifying state and territory’s federal medical assistance percentage (“FMAP”) by 6.2% beginning January 1,
2020, and waived cost sharing for COVID-19 testing. The federal government guarantees matching funds to states for qualifying Medicaid
expenditures based on each state’s FMAP.

Effective October 23, 2020, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS”) announced that it has extended the COVID public
health emergency for another 90 days. The renewal extends the emergency period until late January 2021. As a result, the enhanced FMAP
rate will be extended through the end of the first quarter of 2021. The accompanying requirement that bans the loss of coverage from state
eligibility redeterminations would be extended through the end of January 2021. Redetermination is the process through which Medicaid
enrollees demonstrate whether they continue to meet the requirements for participation in the Medicaid program, in particular maximum
household income. This is likely a positive indicator for continued membership gains, and to provide more support for an actuarially sound
rate environment.

Phase 3 - Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the “CARES Act”). Enacted on March 27, 2020, the CARES Act provided an
estimated $2 trillion to fight the COVID-19 pandemic and stimulate the U.S. economy. This assistance included loans and support to major
industries, including airlines and small businesses, direct payments to individuals and families, and $175 billion in relief funds to hospitals and
other healthcare providers.

Phase 3b - Paycheck Protection Program and Health Care Enhancement Act. Enacted on April 24, 2020, this legislation provided $310 billion
for the depleted Paycheck Protection Program, and additional funding for hospitals and testing.

The Phase 4 stimulus package is currently under consideration by Congress.

Due to the uncertainty as to the duration and breadth of the COVID-19 pandemic, we are unable to reasonably estimate the ultimate impact
of the economic stabilization programs to our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Health Plan Operations

The pandemic has impacted our business, and we currently expect it to further impact our business in the areas described below. As noted
above, in the third quarter of 2020 the combination of COVID-related impacts netted to a negligible to slightly positive impact on earnings.

Medical Care Costs and Demand for Healthcare Services. Beginning in early 2020 the pandemic, along with the related quarantine and
social distancing measures, initially reduced demand for certain routine and non-critical medical services, while at the same time increased
demand for other medical services, such as COVID-19 testing and emergency services. Early in the second quarter of 2020, we experienced
significantly lower utilization in a variety of cost categories, representing approximately two-thirds of our total medical cost spend, with
utilization levels increasing slowly as the quarter progressed. We experienced several significant COVID-related impacts on medical care
costs in the third quarter of 2020 as follows:

• At the beginning of the third quarter of 2020, utilization was still moderately curtailed, but rebounded to more normal levels during the
quarter.

• We attracted approximately 300,000 new Medicaid members since March 31, 2020, and we believe that the acuity of that population
is lower than our average.

• Direct costs to care for COVID patients totaled $35 million in the third quarter of 2020, as a resurgence of COVID infections and
episodes has occurred in places such as Texas and California, and also disproportionately impacted certain of our Marketplace
members.

In the third quarter of 2020, the net effect of these three factors reduced medical care costs and increased pretax earnings by a range of
approximately $95 million to $105 million.
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Medicaid Premium Actions. Various states have implemented temporary premium refunds and related actions in response to the reduced
demand for medical services stemming from COVID-19, which are resulting in a reduction of our medical margin. In some cases, these
premium actions are retroactive to earlier periods in 2020, or as early as the beginning of the states’ fiscal years in 2019. In the second
quarter of 2020, we recognized approximately $75 million for certain of these retroactive premium actions that we believe to be probable, and
where the ultimate premium amount is reasonably estimable. In most of those states, the refund period extended into the third quarter of
2020, and one additional state, Michigan, enacted a premium refund mechanism in the third quarter of 2020. Consequently, we recognized
an additional $88 million related to these retroactive premium actions in the third quarter of 2020, resulting in $163 million recognized in the
nine months ended September 30, 2020.

It is possible that certain states could increase the level of existing premium refunds, and it is also possible that other states could implement
some form of retroactive premium refund during the fourth quarter of 2020. Due to these uncertainties, the ultimate outcomes could differ
materially from our estimates as a result of changes in facts or further developments, which could have an adverse effect on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Our position on rate adequacy has been consistent:

• We do not intend, nor do we want, to keep state Medicaid money that was supposed to be spent on medical benefits but was not due
to utilization curtailment caused by COVID;

• In many of our Medicaid states, there are already mechanisms in place to protect against a surplus margin, as there are Minimum
MLRs in seven of our states and profit caps in two others; and

• Once the COVID-19 pandemic abates, we believe that the traditional process of establishing prospective actuarially sound rates
based on a credible medical cost baseline and cost trend off that baseline will resume.

Member Enrollment. We added 625,000 Medicaid members as of September 30, 2020, compared with our Medicaid membership as of
March 31, 2020, when we first began to report on the impacts of the pandemic. Included in this total are 325,000 members added from our
acquisition of the Kentucky Passport business on September 1, 2020. The 47,000 member increase from our acquisition of the New York
YourCare business on July 1, 2020, was offset by the decline in membership, in the third quarter of 2020, associated with our announced exit
of operations in Puerto Rico. The remaining 300,000 increase in membership was mainly due to the suspension of redeterminations, as we
believe that unemployment-related enrollment has not yet materially accessed managed Medicaid.

It remains unclear how high the COVID-related membership peak will be, how quickly it will fall as the economy recovers, and where it will
ultimately settle. However it does now appear that since unemployment nationally is now just under 8%, the initial industry estimates of
unemployment-related Medicaid membership increases were somewhat overstated. On a related note, the declaration of the extension of the
public health emergency period into next year will also likely have an impact. Therefore, we are currently unable to predict the timing or
amount of the expected increases in enrollment. Increased membership would increase our premium revenue, but would also likely result in
a significant increase in medical care claims and related costs. We believe that we have the scalability necessary to both serve new
members, and ably partner with our state customers for increases in membership.

Capital and Financial Resources. Refer to “Liquidity and Financial Condition” below for a discussion of our capital and financial resources.

We continue to monitor and assess the estimated operating and financial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, and as it evolves, we continue
to process, assemble, and assess member utilization information. We believe that our cash resources, borrowing capacity available under
the Credit Agreement, and cash flow generated from operations will be sufficient to withstand the financial impact of the pandemic, and will
enable us to continue to support our operations, regulatory requirements, debt repayment obligations, and capital expenditures for the
foreseeable future.

Affordable Care Act

In December 2018, in a case brought by the state of Texas and nineteen other states, a federal judge in Texas held that the ACA’s individual
mandate is unconstitutional. He further held that since the individual mandate is inseverable from the entire body of the ACA, the entire ACA
is unconstitutional. The effect of his ruling was stayed pending the appeal of the ruling to the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals. In December
2019, a three-judge panel of the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeal, in a two to one decision, affirmed the District Court’s ruling that the individual
mandate
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is unconstitutional, but remanded the case back to the District Court for additional analysis and findings regarding severability and the
consideration of additional arguments.

The U.S. Supreme Court has accepted the appeal of the Fifth Circuit Court’s decision. Oral arguments before the Supreme Court are
scheduled to take place on November 10, 2020, and a decision is expected in the first half of 2021. The ACA remains in effect pending the
issuance of the Supreme Court’s opinion.

As of September 30, 2020, we served a significant number of members enrolled in programs created by the ACA, including approximately
730,000 Medicaid Expansion members and 325,000 Marketplace members. In the nine months ended September 30, 2020, premium
revenue associated with these members amounted to $3,644 million, and contributed Medical Margin of $681 million. A decision by the
Supreme Court that the entirety of the ACA is unconstitutional could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash
flows, or results of operations.

Other Recent Developments

New York. In September 2020, we entered into a definitive agreement to acquire substantially all of the assets of Affinity Health Plan, Inc.
The net purchase price for the transaction is approximately $380 million, subject to various adjustments at closing, which we intend to fund
with cash on hand. We currently expect the transaction to close as early as the second quarter of 2021.

On July 1, 2020, we closed on the acquisition of certain assets of YourCare Health Plan, Inc., a Medicaid health plan, for a cash purchase
price of $42 million. In connection with this transaction, we added approximately 47,000 Medicaid members in New York.

Kentucky. On September 1, 2020, we closed on the acquisition of certain assets of Passport Health Plan, Inc., a Medicaid health plan.
Effective on that same date, the Kentucky Medicaid agency approved the novation of Passport’s Medicaid contract to Molina Healthcare of
Kentucky, Inc. As a result, we added approximately 325,000 Medicaid members in Kentucky.

In May 2020, our Kentucky health plan had been selected as an awardee pursuant to the statewide Medicaid managed care RFP issued by
the Kentucky Cabinet for Health and Family Services, Department for Medicaid Services. On October 23, 2020, pursuant to a protest filing
appeal with regard to the RFP awards, a court ordered the addition of a sixth health plan to the Kentucky Medicaid program for 2021. That
ruling did not rescind the Medicaid contract award to our Kentucky health plan for 2021, nor did it have any impact on the earlier novation of
the Passport Medicaid contract to us. The new Medicaid contract is currently expected to begin on January 1, 2021.

Acquisition of Magellan Complete Care. In April 2020, we entered into a definitive agreement to acquire the MCC line of business of
Magellan Health, Inc. The purchase price for the transaction is approximately $820 million, net of certain tax benefits, which we intend to fund
with cash on hand.

MCC is a managed care organization serving members in six states, including Medicaid members in Arizona and statewide in Virginia, and
Integrated Acute Care members in Florida. Through its Senior Whole Health branded plans, MCC provides fully integrated plans for Medicaid
and Medicare dual beneficiaries in Massachusetts, as well as Managed Long-Term Care in New York. MCC also provides consultative
services to participants who self-direct their care through Wisconsin’s long-term services and supports (“LTSS”) program. As of December
31, 2019, MCC served approximately 155,000 members in managed care plans and provided services to 25,000 LTSS program participants
in Wisconsin, with full year 2019 revenues over $2.7 billion.

The transaction is subject to federal and state regulatory approvals, and other customary closing conditions, and is expected to close around
the end of 2020. In connection with this transaction, Magellan Health, Inc. has agreed to provide certain transition services following the
closing.

Marketplace Risk Corridor Ruling. In April 2020, the United States Supreme Court held that §1342 of the Affordable Care Act obligated the
federal government to pay participating insurers the full Marketplace risk corridor amounts calculated by that statute, and that impacted
insurers may sue the federal government in the U.S. Court of Federal Claims to recover damages for breach of that obligation. In June 2020,
the Claims Court granted us judgment in the amount of $128.1 million for our 2014, 2015, and 2016 Marketplace risk corridor claims, which
we received in October 2020. Since we accounted for the judgment as a gain contingency at September 30, 2020, it will be recognized in our
fourth quarter 2020 financial results. The judgment does not create additional Minimum MLR rebates.

Illinois. In March 2020, we terminated our agreement to acquire all of the capital stock of NextLevel Health Partners, Inc. due to the seller’s
stated unwillingness to close pursuant to the terms of the acquisition agreement.
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Puerto Rico. We will exit Puerto Rico’s Medicaid program when our current contract expires on October 31, 2020. We are working closely
with the regulatory authorities and the provider community to ensure that our members in Puerto Rico have reliable continuity of care. As
discussed in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 2, “Significant Accounting Policies,” we recognized a $10 million premium
deficiency reserve at September 30, 2020, in connection with the exit from this business.

Update on Status of Significant Medicaid Contracts

California. Our managed care contracts with the California Department of Health Care Services (“DHCS”) cover six regions in central and
southern California (including the Los Angeles region covered under a separate subcontract with Health Net, LLC). These contracts are
effective through December 31, 2020, which we expect to be renewed annually until the effectiveness of new forms of contract following RFP
awards. DHCS has publicly indicated it expects to release the final Medicaid RFP in 2021, for implementation in January 2024.

Ohio. Our managed care contract with the Ohio Department of Medicaid (“ODM”) is effective through July 1, 2021. In September 2020, the
ODM released the RFP for the Ohio Medicaid program with a due date of November 20, 2020. The program will be regionally based on the
current three regions (Central/Southeast, Northeast and West); plans may bid on one or all regions, and be awarded one or all regions. The
contracts will be awarded on
January 25, 2021, with a go-live date of January 5, 2022.

Texas. On March 25, 2020, the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (“HHSC”), notified our Texas health plan that HHSC had
upheld our protest and had canceled all previously awarded contracts associated with the re-procurement awards announced in October
2019 for the ABD program (known in Texas as “STAR+PLUS”). In addition, HHSC canceled the pending re-procurement associated with the
TANF and CHIP programs (known in Texas as “STAR/CHIP”). HHSC further indicated that it was deliberating next steps with respect to both
re-procurements. We do not expect the HHSC to re-issue the RFPs in the near future.

Update on Status of MMP Contracts

Our MMP contracts in California, Illinois and Ohio are effective through December 31, 2022. Updates to our current Michigan, South Carolina
and Texas MMP contracts are described below. The Michigan, South Carolina and Texas MMP contracts represented aggregate revenues of
approximately $586 million in nine months ended September 30, 2020.

Michigan. A one-year contract extension has been executed, through December 31, 2021. The state has submitted a formal letter of intent to
extend the contract for five years through 2026; the five-year contract extension is under development.

South Carolina. A three-year contract extension has been executed, effective through December 31, 2023.

Texas. A three-year contract extension amendment, through December 31, 2023, is under review and pending full execution.

For a discussion of additional Health Plans segment trends, uncertainties and other developments, refer to our 2019 Annual Report on Form
10-K, “Item 1. Business—Our Business,” and “—Legislative and Political Environment.”
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MEMBERSHIP
The following tables set forth our Health Plans segment membership as of the dates indicated:

September 30,
2020

December 31,
2019

September 30,
2019

Ending Membership by Government Program:

Medicaid 3,595,000 2,956,000 2,955,000 
Medicare 113,000 101,000 102,000 
Marketplace 325,000 274,000 289,000 

Total 4,033,000 3,331,000 3,346,000 

Ending Membership by Health Plan:
California 584,000 565,000 580,000 
Florida 136,000 132,000 136,000 
Illinois 282,000 224,000 224,000 
Kentucky 325,000 — — 
Michigan 391,000 362,000 361,000 
Ohio 348,000 288,000 292,000 
South Carolina 153,000 131,000 134,000 
Texas 357,000 341,000 350,000 
Washington 947,000 832,000 818,000 
Other 510,000 456,000 451,000 

Total 4,033,000 3,331,000 3,346,000 

_________________________
(1) On September 1, 2020, we closed on the acquisition of certain assets of Passport Health Plan, Inc., a Medicaid health plan. Effective on that same date,

the Kentucky Medicaid agency approved the novation of Passport’s Medicaid contract to Molina Healthcare of Kentucky, Inc.
(2) “Other” includes the Idaho, Mississippi, New Mexico, New York, Puerto Rico, Utah and Wisconsin health plans, which are not individually significant to

our consolidated operating results.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The tables in the section below summarize premium revenue, Medical Margin, and MCR by state health plan and by government program for
the periods indicated (dollars in millions):

HEALTH PLANS

Three Months Ended September 30,
2020 2019

Premium Revenue
Medical
Margin MCR Premium Revenue

Medical
Margin MCR

California $ 554 $ 87 84.3 % $ 567 $ 111 80.3 %
Florida 166 27 83.5 171 19 89.0 
Illinois 339 32 90.5 257 25 90.6 
Kentucky 169 16 90.7 — — — 
Michigan 398 76 80.8 408 72 82.3 
Ohio 808 124 84.6 640 58 91.0 
South Carolina 158 18 88.8 151 13 91.6 
Texas 801 104 87.1 734 89 87.8 
Washington 807 116 85.7 688 85 87.7 
Other 568 70 87.6 468 89 80.9 

Total $ 4,768 $ 670 85.9 % $ 4,084 $ 561 86.3 %

(1)

(2)

(1)
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Nine Months Ended September 30,
2020 2019

Premium Revenue
Medical
Margin MCR Premium Revenue

Medical
Margin MCR

California $ 1,660 $ 280 83.1 % $ 1,682 $ 295 82.4 %
Florida 482 82 83.0 570 115 79.9 
Illinois 953 116 87.8 726 94 87.1 
Kentucky 169 16 90.7 — — — 
Michigan 1,224 256 79.1 1,226 221 81.9 
Ohio 2,279 326 85.7 1,914 208 89.2 
South Carolina 472 60 87.3 427 49 88.7 
Texas 2,273 276 87.9 2,246 292 87.0 
Washington 2,351 364 84.5 2,011 223 88.9 
Other 1,581 256 83.7 1,283 228 82.2 

Total $ 13,444 $ 2,032 84.9 % $ 12,085 $ 1,725 85.7 %
__________________
(1) “Other” includes the Idaho, Mississippi, New Mexico, New York, Puerto Rico, Utah and Wisconsin health plans, which are not individually significant to

our consolidated operating results.

As discussed in “Trends and Uncertainties” above, the combination of all the COVID-19 pandemic-related impacts netted to a negligible to
slightly positive impact on our overall financial results for the third quarter of 2020. Some of these items increased earnings, such as lower
than expected medical costs from the curtailment of utilization that benefited all our state health plans, and a meaningful increase in Medicaid
membership, while others served to decrease earnings, such as the temporary, retroactive Medicaid premium refunds and related actions
enacted by certain states.

Comments relating to the performance of our health plans in California, Ohio, Texas and Washington, which represent our largest health
plans from a premium revenue standpoint, follow:

California. For the third quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2020, Medical Margin declined as the lower medical costs from the
curtailment of utilization were more than offset by Medicaid premium actions and underperformance in the Marketplace.

Ohio. For the third quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2020, Medical Margin was higher when compared with the same periods
in 2019 due to higher premiums and improved operating performance in Medicaid. Premium revenues were higher year-over-year, mainly
due to increased membership, program changes and rate increases in Medicaid established before COVID-19. In the third quarter of 2020,
the combined impacts from COVID-19 were negligible; however, the health plan experienced a modest benefit for the nine months ended
September 30, 2020, as lower medical costs from the curtailment of utilization slightly exceeded the impact of retroactive Medicaid premium
refunds and related actions.

Texas. For the third quarter of 2020, Medical Margin improved compared with the third quarter of 2019, due to a decrease in the MCR in
Medicaid, partially offset by underperformance in Marketplace. For the nine months ended September 30, 2020, performance declined year-
over-year, with a lower Medical Margin compared with the same period in 2019. The decline resulted mainly from underperformance in
Marketplace, due primarily to lower premiums and higher acuity mix for the new members we now serve, partially offset by lower MCRs in
Medicaid and Medicare.

Washington. For the third quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2020, Medical Margin was higher when compared with the same
periods in 2019, mainly driven by improved results in Medicaid. Medicaid premium revenues increased in both the third quarter and nine
months ended September 30, 2020, due to membership growth in Medicaid. In addition, results in the nine months ended September 30,
2020, benefited modestly from lower medical costs due to the curtailment of utilization driven by COVID-19, which was partially offset by
COVID-related provider payments mandated by the state in the second quarter of 2020.

(1)
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PROGRAMS

Three Months Ended September 30,
2020 2019

Premium Revenue
Medical
Margin MCR

Premium
Revenue

Medical
Margin MCR

Medicaid $ 3,754 $ 509 86.4 % $ 3,168 $ 378 88.1 %
Medicare 632 91 85.6 559 80 85.6 
Marketplace 382 70 81.6 357 103 71.2 

Total $ 4,768 $ 670 85.9 % $ 4,084 $ 561 86.3 %

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2020 2019

Premium Revenue
Medical
Margin MCR Premium Revenue

Medical
Margin MCR

Medicaid $ 10,415 $ 1,427 86.3 % $ 9,239 $ 1,088 88.2 %
Medicare 1,896 333 82.4 1,682 249 85.2 
Marketplace 1,133 272 76.0 1,164 388 66.7 

Total $ 13,444 $ 2,032 84.9 % $ 12,085 $ 1,725 85.7 %

Medicaid

Medicaid premium revenue increased $586 million in the third quarter of 2020 when compared with the third quarter of 2019, and increased
$1,176 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2020, when compared with the nine months ended September 30, 2019. The
increase in both periods was mainly due to membership growth and premium increases in several states, partially offset by premium refunds
and related actions stemming from COVID-19. The increase in membership includes the impact of the Passport members in Kentucky that
we assumed on September 1, and the YourCare membership in New York that we assumed on July 1, as well as the impact from suspension
of redeterminations due to COVID-19.

As described above in “Health Plans—Trends and Uncertainties,” we recognized approximately $88 million and $163 million, respectively, in
the third quarter and nine months ended September 2020, for the impact of premium refunds and related actions enacted in several states in
response to the lower utilization of medical services resulting from COVID-19.

The Medical Margin in our Medicaid program increased $131 million, or 35%, in the third quarter of 2020 when compared with the third
quarter of 2019, and increased $339 million, or 31% in the nine months ended September 30, 2020, when compared with the nine months
ended September 30, 2019. The increase in both periods was driven by increased premium revenues and margin associated with the
membership growth discussed above, and from a reduction in the MCR.

The Medicaid MCR decreased to 86.4% in the third quarter of 2020, from 88.1% in the third quarter of 2019, or 170 basis points, and
decreased to 86.3% in the nine months ended September 30, 2020, from 88.2% in the nine months ended September 30, 2019, or 190 basis
points. The improvements were generally present across all our programs. The year-over-year decrease in the third quarter of 2020 was due
to increases in the premium revenue per member per month (“PMPM”) and improved operating performance, including enhanced medical
cost initiatives. The combined impacts from COVID-19 were negligible to slightly positive in the third quarter of 2020. At the beginning of the
third quarter of 2020, utilization was still moderately curtailed but reverted more to normal levels by the end of the quarter. For the nine
months ended September 30, 2020, the MCR benefited from lower medical costs due to the curtailment of utilization from COVID-19, which
modestly exceeded the impact of the retroactive Medicaid premium refunds and related actions enacted in several states.

In the third quarter of 2020, we recognized a $10 million premium deficiency reserve (“PDR”) associated with the Puerto Rico Medicaid
business. As previously announced, we will exit this business when our current contract expires on October 31, 2020. The PDR represents
the estimated remaining claims and administrative costs that exceed the estimated remaining premiums associated with the contract.

The MCR for TANF and CHIP was relatively flat in the third quarter of 2020, when compared with the third quarter of 2019, while the MCR for
the ABD program decreased 180 basis points, and the MCR for Medicaid Expansion decreased by 440 basis points. The MCR for TANF and
CHIP reflected the impact of the Puerto Rico PDR
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discussed above. Excluding the PDR, the MCR in all our Medicaid programs improved year-over-year, mainly from increases in the premium
revenue PMPM rates and improved operating performance.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2020, the MCR decreased 40 basis points for TANF and CHIP, decreased 190 basis points for
ABD, and decreased 440 basis points for Medicaid Expansion, when compared with the same period in 2020. The year-over-year
improvement in the nine months ended September 30, 2020, was due to the increase in premium revenue PMPM, operating improvements,
and the COVID-19 related net impacts. These improvements were partially offset by unfavorable year-over-year changes in prior year
reserve development.

Medicare

Medicare premium revenue increased $73 million in the third quarter of 2020 and $214 million in the nine months ended September 30,
2020, primarily due to increases in premium revenue PMPM and member months. PMPMs improved due to increased revenue resulting from
risk scores that are more commensurate with the acuity of our population and increases in quality incentive premium revenues.

The Medical Margin for Medicare increased $11 million, or 14%, in the third quarter of 2020, and increased $84 million, or 34%, in the nine
months ended September 30, 2020, when compared with the same periods, respectively, in 2019. The year-over-year improvement in both
periods was mainly attributed to the increased revenues described above, and to a lesser extent, lower utilization of medical services
stemming from COVID-19.

The Medicare MCR was unchanged at 85.6% in the third quarter of 2020. The 280 basis point year-over-year decrease in the MCR in the
nine months ended September 30, 2020, was due to the same factors impacting the year-over-year changes in Medical Margin as discussed
above.

Marketplace

Marketplace premium revenue increased $25 million in the third quarter of 2020, but decreased $31 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2020, mainly due to lower pricing in an effort to be more competitive, and lower risk scores that were not commensurate with
the risk of the population. The decrease in the nine months period also resulted from the impact of more health plans being subject to
minimum medical loss ratio rebates when compared with the prior year, and the benefit from favorable retrospective adjustments to risk
adjustment premiums was higher in the prior year.

The Marketplace Medical Margin decreased $33 million in the third quarter of 2020, and $116 million in the nine months ended September
30, 2020, when compared with the same periods, respectively, in 2019. In both periods, the Medical Margin decrease was primarily due to
the decline in premium revenues discussed above, and a higher than expected member acuity mix. Our risk scores continue to lag the acuity
of our membership, and the rebound in utilization for Marketplace has been much more pronounced than our Medicaid and Medicare
programs. The COVID-19 related utilization impact was unfavorable to the Marketplace business and contributed to the year-over-year
decline.

The Marketplace MCR increased in the third quarter and the nine months ended September 30, 2020, attributable to same factors impacting
the year-over-year changes in Medical Margin discussed above.

OTHER
The Other segment includes certain corporate amounts not allocated to the Health Plans segment. Such amounts are immaterial to our
consolidated results of operations.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL CONDITION
LIQUIDITY
We manage our cash, investments, and capital structure to meet the short- and long-term obligations of our business while maintaining
liquidity and financial flexibility. We forecast, analyze, and monitor our cash flows to enable prudent investment management and financing
within the confines of our financial strategy.

We maintain liquidity at two levels: 1) the regulated health plan subsidiaries; and 2) the parent company. Our Health Plans segment regulated
subsidiaries generate significant cash flows from premium revenue, which is generally received a short time before related healthcare
services are paid. Premium revenue is our primary source of liquidity. Thus, any decline in the receipt of premium revenue, and our
profitability, could have a negative impact on
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our liquidity. In the nine months ended September 30, 2020, we did not experience noticeable delays of, or changes in, the timing and level of
premium receipts as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, but there can be no assurances that we will not experience such delays in the
future. See further discussion below regarding various states’ premium actions in “Future Sources and Uses of Liquidity—Future Uses.”

A majority of the assets held by our regulated health plan subsidiaries is in the form of cash, cash equivalents, and investments. When
available and as permitted by applicable regulations, cash in excess of the capital needs of our regulated health plan subsidiaries is generally
paid in the form of dividends to our parent company to be used for general corporate purposes. In the third quarter and nine months ended
September 30, 2020, the parent received $120 million and $355 million, respectively, in dividends from the regulated health plan subsidiaries.
See further discussion of dividends below in “Future Sources and Uses of Liquidity—Future Sources.”

The parent company may also contribute capital to the regulated health plan subsidiaries to satisfy minimum statutory net worth
requirements, including funding for newer health plans with growing enrollment. In the third quarter and nine months ended September 30,
2020, the parent contributed capital of $10 million and $62 million, respectively, to the regulated health plan subsidiaries.

Cash, cash equivalents and investments at the parent company amounted to $1,286 million, and $997 million as of September 30, 2020, and
December 31, 2019, respectively. The increase as of September 30, 2020, was mainly due to net proceeds of $789 million for the 4.375%
Notes issued in June 2020, $380 million drawn on the term loan facility in the first quarter of 2020, and $355 million of dividends received
from our regulated health plan subsidiaries year to date. The increase was partially offset by the $600 million repayment of the term loan
facility, purchases of our common stock amounting to $453 million, $62 million contributed to our health plan subsidiaries (including $42
million for the YourCare acquisition), $63 million for purchases of property, equipment and capitalized software, $42 million net cash paid for
the aggregate convertible notes-related transactions, and $20 million for the initial cash payment for the Passport acquisition. As described in
Note 2,” Significant Accounting Policies,” we received $128.1 million for the Marketplace risk corridor settlement in October 2020.

Investments

After considering expected cash flows from operating activities, we generally invest cash of regulated subsidiaries that exceeds our expected
short-term obligations in longer term, investment-grade, and marketable debt securities to improve our overall investment return. These
investments are made pursuant to board-approved investment policies which conform to applicable state laws and regulations.

Our investment policies are designed to provide liquidity, preserve capital, and maximize total return on invested assets, all in a manner
consistent with state requirements that prescribe the types of instruments in which our subsidiaries may invest. These investment policies
require that our investments have final maturities of less than 10 years, or less than 10 years average life for structured securities.
Professional portfolio managers operating under documented guidelines manage our investments and a portion of our cash equivalents. Our
portfolio managers must obtain our prior approval before selling investments where the loss position of those investments exceeds certain
levels.

We believe that the risks of the COVID-19 pandemic, as they relate to our investments, are minimal. The overall rating of our portfolio
remains strong and is rated AA. Our investment policy has directives in conjunction with state guidelines to minimize risks and exposures in
volatile markets. Additionally, our portfolio managers assist us in navigating the current volatility in the capital markets.

Our restricted investments are invested principally in cash, cash equivalents, and U.S. Treasury securities; we have the ability to hold such
restricted investments until maturity. All of our unrestricted investments are classified as current assets.
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Cash Flow Activities

Our cash flows are summarized as follows:

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2020 2019 Change

(In millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 591 $ 398 $ 193 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 98 (80) 178 
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 69 (510) 579 

Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash and cash
equivalents $ 758 $ (192) $ 950 

Operating Activities

We typically receive capitation payments monthly, in advance of payments for medical claims; however, government payors may adjust their
payment schedules, positively or negatively impacting our reported cash flows from operating activities in any given period. For example,
government payors may delay our premium payments, or they may prepay the following month’s premium payment.

Net cash provided by operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 was $591 million, compared with $398 million in the nine
months ended September 30, 2019. The $193 million increase in cash flow was due to stronger operating results in the nine months ended
September 30, 2020, and the net impact of timing differences in government receivables and payables.

Investing Activities

Net cash provided by investing activities was $98 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2020, compared with $80 million used in
investing activities in the nine months ended September 30, 2019, an increase in cash flow of $178 million. The year over year increase was
primarily due to decreased purchases of investments in the nine months ended September 30, 2020.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $69 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2020, compared with $510 million used in
financing activities in the nine months ended September 30, 2019, an increase in cash flow of $579 million. In the nine months ended
September 30, 2020, cash inflows included $789 million from the issuance of the 4.375% Notes and $380 million borrowed under the term
loan facility. Cash outflows included the $600 million repayment of the term loan facility, common stock purchases of $453 million, which
included $7 million to settle shares purchased in late December 2019, and net cash paid for the aggregate convertible senior notes‑related
transactions amounting to $42 million. In the nine months ended September 30, 2019, net cash paid for the aggregate convertible senior
notes-related transactions amounted to $754 million, partially offset by proceeds of $220 million borrowed under the term loan facility.

FINANCIAL CONDITION
We believe that our cash resources, borrowing capacity available under the Credit Agreement as discussed further below in “Future Sources
and Uses of Liquidity—Future Sources,” and internally generated funds will be sufficient to support our operations, regulatory requirements,
debt repayment obligations and capital expenditures for at least the next 12 months.

On a consolidated basis, at September 30, 2020, our working capital was $3,397 million, compared with $2,698 million at December 31,
2019. At September 30, 2020, our cash and investments amounted to $5,058 million, compared with $4,477 million at December 31, 2019.

Regulatory Capital and Dividend Restrictions

Each of our regulated HMO subsidiaries must maintain a minimum amount of statutory capital determined by statute or regulations. Such
statutes, regulations and capital requirements also restrict the timing, payment and amount of dividends and other distributions, loans or
advances that may be paid to us as the sole stockholder. To the extent our HMO subsidiaries must comply with these regulations, they may
not have the financial flexibility to transfer funds to us. Based upon current statutes and regulations, the minimum capital and surplus (net
assets) requirement for these subsidiaries was estimated to be approximately $1,300 million at September 30, 2020, compared with
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$1,110 million at December 31, 2019. Our HMO subsidiaries were in compliance with these minimum capital requirements as of both dates.

Under applicable regulatory requirements, the amount of dividends that may be paid by our HMO subsidiaries without prior approval by
regulatory authorities as of September 30, 2020, is approximately $187 million in the aggregate. Our HMO subsidiaries may pay dividends
over this amount, but only after approval is granted by the regulatory authorities.

Based on our cash and investments balances as of September 30, 2020, management believes that its regulated health plan subsidiaries
remain well capitalized and exceed their regulatory minimum requirements. We have the ability, and have committed to provide, additional
capital to each of our health plans as necessary to ensure compliance with statutory capital and surplus requirements.

Debt Ratings

Each of our high-yield senior notes is rated “BB-” by Standard & Poor’s, and “Ba3” by Moody’s Investor Service, Inc. A downgrade in our
ratings could adversely affect our borrowing capacity and increase our borrowing costs.

Financial Covenants

The Credit Agreement contains customary non-financial and financial covenants, including a net leverage ratio and an interest coverage
ratio. Such ratios are computed as defined by the terms of the Credit Agreement. As of September 30, 2020, we were in compliance with all
financial and non-financial covenants under the Credit Agreement and other long-term debt.

In addition, the indentures governing the high-yield notes contain cross-default provisions that are triggered upon default by us or any of our
subsidiaries on any indebtedness in excess of the amount specified in the applicable indenture.

FUTURE SOURCES AND USES OF LIQUIDITY
Future Sources

Our Health Plans segment regulated subsidiaries generate significant cash flows from premium revenue, which is generally received a short
time before related healthcare services are paid. Premium revenue is our primary source of liquidity. Thus, any decline in the receipt of
premium revenue, and our profitability, could have a negative impact on our liquidity.

Potential Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic. We added 625,000 Medicaid members as of September 30, 2020, compared with our Medicaid
membership as of March 31, 2020, when we first began to report on the impacts of the pandemic. Included in this total are 325,000 members
added from our acquisition of the Kentucky Passport business on September 1, 2020. The 47,000 member increase from our acquisition of
the New York YourCare business on July 1, 2020, was offset by the decline in membership, in the third quarter of 2020, associated with our
announced exit of operations in Puerto Rico. The remaining 300,000 increase in membership was mainly due to the suspension of
redeterminations, as we believe that unemployment-related enrollment has not yet materially accessed managed Medicaid. It remains
unclear how high the COVID-related membership peak will be, how quickly it will fall as the economy recovers, and where it will ultimately
settle. However it does now appear that since unemployment nationally is now just under 8%, the initial industry estimates of unemployment-
related Medicaid membership increases were somewhat overstated. On a related note, the declaration of the extension of the public health
emergency period into next year will also likely have an impact. Therefore, we are currently unable to predict the timing or amount of the
expected increases in enrollment. Increased membership would increase our premium revenue, but would also likely result in a significant
increase in medical care claims and related costs.

Dividends from Subsidiaries. When available and as permitted by applicable regulations, cash in excess of the capital needs of our regulated
health plans is generally paid in the form of dividends to our unregulated parent company to be used for general corporate purposes. As a
result of the COVID-19 pandemic, state regulators could restrict the ability of our regulated health plan subsidiaries to pay dividends to the
parent company, which would reduce the liquidity of the parent company.

Credit Agreement Borrowing Capacity. As of September 30, 2020, we had available borrowing capacity of $1 billion under the revolving credit
facility of our Credit Agreement. In addition, the Credit Agreement provides for a $15 million swingline sub-facility and a $100 million letter of
credit sub-facility, as well as incremental term loans available to finance certain acquisitions up to $500 million, plus an unlimited amount of
such term loans as long as
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we maintain a minimum consolidated net leverage ratio. See further discussion in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 8,
“Debt.”

Future Uses

Common Stock Purchases. In September 2020, our board of directors authorized the purchase of up to $500 million, in the aggregate, of our
common stock. This program will be funded with cash on hand and extends through December 31, 2021. The exact timing and amount of
any repurchase will be determined by management based on market conditions and share price, in addition to other factors, and subject to
the restrictions relating to volume, price, and timing under applicable law. No shares were purchased under this program through October 29,
2020.

Acquisitions. We have a disciplined and steady approach to growth. Organic growth, which includes leveraging our existing health plan
portfolio and winning new territories, is our highest priority. In addition to organic growth, we will consider targeted acquisitions that are a
strategic fit that we believe will leverage operational synergies, and lead to incremental earnings accretion. For further information on our
acquisitions, refer to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 4, “Business Combinations.”

In September 2020, we entered into a definitive agreement to acquire substantially all of the assets of Affinity Health Plan, Inc. The net
purchase price for the transaction is approximately $380 million, subject to various adjustments at closing, which we intend to fund with cash
on hand. We currently expect the transaction to close as early as the second quarter of 2021.

In September 2020, we completed the acquisition of certain assets of Passport Health Plan, Inc. The estimated total purchase price of
$60 million includes our initial cash payment of $20 million in September 2020, plus estimated contingent consideration which consists
primarily of an amount due to the seller for members we enroll in the open enrollment period for the 2021 plan year, over a minimum
threshold, which resulted in an estimated contingent consideration liability of $40 million. We expect to settle this liability in the first quarter of
2021.

In April 2020, we entered into a definitive agreement to acquire the MCC line of business of Magellan Health, Inc. The purchase price for the
transaction is approximately $820 million, net of certain tax benefits, which we intend to fund with cash on hand. The transaction is subject to
federal and state regulatory approvals, and other customary closing conditions, and is expected to close around the end of 2020. In
connection with this transaction, Magellan Health, Inc. has agreed to provide certain transition services following the closing.

Outcome of ACA Litigation. As described above in “Health Plans Segment—Trends and Uncertainties,” the U.S. Supreme Court has
accepted the appeal of the Fifth Circuit Court’s decision regarding the constitutionality and severability of the individual mandate. The ACA
remains in effect pending the issuance of the Supreme Court’s opinion. A decision by the Supreme Court that the entirety of the ACA is
unconstitutional could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.

Potential Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic. Beginning in early 2020 the pandemic, along with the related quarantine and social distancing
measures, initially reduced demand for certain routine and non-critical medical services, while at the same time increased demand for other
medical services, such as COVID-19 testing and emergency services. At the beginning of the third quarter of 2020, utilization was still
moderately curtailed, but rebounded to more normal levels during the quarter. Increased demand for medical services, which we are
presently unable to predict the timing or magnitude, could result in a significant increase in medical care costs and related provider claims
payments.

Also, as described above in “Health Plans Segment—Trends and Uncertainties,” we have been subject to Medicaid premium actions as a
result of the pandemic. Various states have implemented temporary premium refunds and related actions in response to the reduced demand
for medical services stemming from COVID-19, which are resulting in a reduction of our medical margin. In some cases, these premium
actions are retroactive to earlier periods in 2020, or as early as the beginning of the states’ fiscal years in 2019. In the second quarter of
2020, we recognized approximately $75 million for certain of these retroactive premium actions that we believe to be probable, and where the
ultimate premium amount is reasonably estimable. In most of those states, the refund period extended into the third quarter of 2020, and one
additional state, Michigan, enacted a premium refund mechanism in the third quarter of 2020. Consequently, we recognized an additional
$88 million related to these retroactive premium actions in the third quarter of 2020, resulting in $163 million recognized in the nine months
ended September 30, 2020.

It is possible that certain states could increase the level of existing premium refunds, and it is also possible that other states could implement
some form of retroactive premium refund during the fourth quarter of 2020. Due to these uncertainties, the ultimate outcomes could differ
materially from our estimates as a result of changes in facts
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or further developments, which could have an adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Regulatory Capital Requirements and Dividend Restrictions. We have the ability, and have committed to provide, additional capital to each of
our health plans as necessary to ensure compliance with statutory capital and surplus requirements.

The Molina Healthcare Charitable Foundation. In August 2020, we announced our commitment of $150 million to fund The Molina Healthcare
Charitable Foundation (the “Foundation”), an independent not-for-profit charitable foundation. We intend to make a sizable contribution to the
Foundation in the fourth quarter of 2020.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
A summary of future obligations under our various contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2019, was disclosed in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Other than the financing transactions described in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 8, “Debt,” there were no significant
changes to our contractual obligations and commitments outside the ordinary course of business during the nine months ended September
30, 2020.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
When we prepare our consolidated financial statements, we use estimates and assumptions that may affect reported amounts and
disclosures; actual results could differ from these estimates. Our critical accounting estimates relate to:

• Medical claims and benefits payable. Refer to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 7, “Medical Claims and Benefits
Payable,” for a table that presents the components of the change in medical claims and benefits payable, and for additional
information regarding the factors used to determine our changes in estimates for all periods presented in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. Other than the discussion as noted above, there have been no significant changes during the nine
months ended September 30, 2020, to our disclosure reported in “Critical Accounting Estimates” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2019.

• Contractual provisions that may adjust or limit revenue or profit. For a discussion of this topic, including amounts recorded in our
consolidated financial statements, refer to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 2, “Significant Accounting Policies.”

• Quality incentives. For a discussion of this topic, including amounts recorded in our consolidated financial statements, refer to Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 2, “Significant Accounting Policies.”

• Goodwill and intangible assets, net. There have been no significant changes, during the nine months ended September 30, 2020, to
our disclosure reported in “Critical Accounting Estimates” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Our earnings and financial position are exposed to financial market risk relating to changes in interest rates, and the resulting impact on
investment income and interest expense.

Substantially all of our investments and restricted investments are subject to interest rate risk and will decrease in value if market interest
rates increase. Assuming a hypothetical and immediate 1% increase in market interest rates at September 30, 2020, the fair value of our
fixed income investments would decrease by approximately $42 million. Declines in interest rates over time will reduce our investment
income.

For further information on fair value measurements and our investment portfolio, please refer to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
Note 5, “Fair Value Measurements,” and Note 6, “Investments.”

Borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear interest based, at our election, on a base rate or other defined rate, plus in each case, the
applicable margin. For further information, see Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 8, “Debt.”
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CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and our chief
financial officer, has concluded, based upon its evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this report, that the Company’s “disclosure
controls and procedures” (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act), are effective to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the
fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2020, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over
financial reporting.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
For information regarding legal proceedings, see Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 11, “Commitments and Contingencies.”

RISK FACTORS
Certain risks may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows, results of operations, or stock price, and
you should carefully consider them before making an investment decision with respect to our securities. In addition to the other information
set forth in this report, you should carefully consider the risk factors set forth below and those discussed under the caption “Risk Factors,” in
our Annual Report on Form 10‑K for the year ended December 31, 2019, and in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended
March 31, 2020 and June 30, 2020. The risk factors below, together with those described in the reports listed above, are not the only risks
that we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial may also materially
adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows, results of operations, or stock price. In addition to the risks relating to the
COVID-19 pandemic in the reports listed above, the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic may also have the effect of significantly heightening
many of the other risks associated with our business.

The May 2020 contract award to our Kentucky Medicaid plan is the subject of a legal challenge.

On October 23, 2020, pursuant to the appeal of a protest denial with regard to the May 2020 Kentucky RFP awards, a court ordered the
addition of a sixth health plan to the Kentucky Medicaid program for 2021. That ruling did not rescind the Medicaid contract award to our
Kentucky health plan for 2021, nor did it impact the earlier novation of the Passport Medicaid contract to us. On October 27, 2020, a different
health plan filed an appeal with regard to the court’s October 23  order. The outcome of litigation and appellate proceedings is inherently
unpredictable. In the event the contract award to our Kentucky health plan or the novation of the Passport Medicaid contract is challenged or
overturned, the business and revenues of our Kentucky health plan may be materially affected.

rd
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UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Purchases of common stock made by us, or on our behalf during the quarter ended September 30, 2020, including shares withheld by us to
satisfy our employees’ income tax obligations, are set forth below:

Total Number
of Shares

Purchased 
Average Price Paid

per Share

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of

Publicly 
Announced 

Plans or 
Programs

Approximate 
Dollar Value

of Shares that
May Yet Be

Purchased Under
the Plans or
Programs 

July 1 - July 31 821 $ 179.12 — $ — 
August 1 - August 31 — $ — — $ — 
September 1 - September 30 — $ — — $ 500,000,000 

Total 821 $ — — 

_______________________

(1) During the three months ended September 30, 2020, we withheld 821 shares of common stock, to settle employee income tax obligations, for releases
of awards granted under the Molina Healthcare, Inc. 2019 Equity Incentive Plan. For further information refer to Note 9, “Stockholders' Equity.”

(2) In September 2020, our board of directors authorized the purchase of up to $500 million, in the aggregate, of our common stock. This program will be
funded with cash on hand and extends through December 31, 2021. The exact timing and amount of any repurchase will be determined by
management based on market conditions and share price, in addition to other factors, and subject to the restrictions relating to volume, price, and timing
under applicable law. No shares were purchased under this program through October 29, 2020.

(1) (2)
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS 

Exhibit No. Title Method of Filing
2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2020, by and between

Molina Healthcare, Inc. and Affinity Health Plan, Inc.*
Filed herewith.

31.1 Section 302 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Filed herewith.

31.2 Section 302 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Filed herewith.

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Filed herewith.

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Filed herewith.

101.INS XBRL Taxonomy Instance Document. Filed herewith.

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document. Filed herewith.

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document. Filed herewith.

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document. Filed herewith.

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document. Filed herewith.

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document Filed herewith.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data file (formatted as Inline XBRL and embedded within
Exhibit 101)

Filed herewith.

* Certain portions of this agreement have been omitted in accordance with Item 601(b)(10) of Regulation S-K. A copy of any omitted portion will
be furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC.
(Registrant)

Dated: October 29, 2020 /s/ JOSEPH M. ZUBRETSKY
Joseph M. Zubretsky

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: October 29, 2020 /s/ THOMAS L. TRAN
Thomas L. Tran

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This Asset Purchase Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated as of September 28, 2020, is entered into by and between
AFFINITY HEALTH PLAN, INC., a New York not-for-profit corporation (“Affinity”), and MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC., a
Delaware corporation (“Buyer”). Affinity and Buyer are sometimes referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively
as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Affinity is a prepaid health services plan pursuant to Section 4403-a of the New York Public Health Law and
provides health care coverage under the New York State Medicaid Managed Care, Health and Recovery Plan, Child Health Plus,
and Essential Plan programs (collectively, the “Business”);

WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Affinity desires to sell to Buyer, and Buyer
desires to purchase from Affinity, substantially all of the assets owned or leased by Affinity that are used or held for use in the
operation of the Business; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof, the Parties desire to work cooperatively to obtain the requisite
approvals, licenses, certificates, authorizations and permits to effect the sale, transfer, conveyance, assignment and delivery by
Affinity to Buyer of the aforesaid assets so that all of Affinity’s members enrolled under the Payor Contracts (as defined herein)
relating to the Business (“Enrollees”) at the time of transfer would be enrolled in a health plan operated by Buyer providing or
arranging for health services to such Enrollees (except to the extent such Enrollees elect not to be so enrolled).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth and for other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I.
DEFINITIONS

The following terms have the definitions set forth below or otherwise ascribed thereto in the Section of this Agreement
identified below:

“Acquisition Proposal” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.03(a).

“Action” means any claim, action, suit, corrective action plan, cause of action, lawsuit, arbitration, audit, written notice of
violation, administrative proceeding, litigation, citation, summons, subpoena, inquiry or investigation of any nature, civil,
criminal, administrative, regulatory or otherwise, whether at law or in equity, before or by any Governmental Authority.

“Adverse Claim Consequences” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.05(b).
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“AEP Schedule” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.06(b).

“Affiliate” of a Person means any other Person that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with, such Person. The term “control” (including the terms “controlled by” and
“under common control with”) means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the
management and policies of a Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise. For the
avoidance of any doubt, the Parties acknowledge and agree that the FQHC Members shall not be deemed to be Affiliates of
Affinity for purposes of this Agreement.

“Affinity” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

“Affinity Employee Payables” means, solely to the extent set forth and itemized on the AEP Schedule, each of the
following:

(a)    any payments or other amounts due to employees of Affinity by reason of this Agreement or the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including any retention, stay or change in control payments;

(b)    amounts payable to any Person (including additional contribution credits as a result of this Agreement or the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and Tax gross-up payments or amounts for which there is an acceleration of
vesting) under any nonqualified deferred compensation plan of Affinity;

(c)    all accrued but unpaid salaries, wages, commissions, severance (solely with respect to any employees of
Affinity terminated by Affinity on or prior to the Closing Date), vacation or sick pay, personal leave, incentive compensation or
other compensation or payroll items earned by, or accrued in respect of, any current employee of Affinity for any period through
and including the Closing Date; and

(d)    with respect to the payments described in each of the foregoing clauses (i)-(iii), all employer related payroll
Tax Liabilities.

“Affinity Employee Plan” means each “employee benefit plan” within the meaning of Section 3(3) of ERISA (whether or
not subject to ERISA) and each other employment, consulting, deferred compensation, incentive, change in control, retention,
severance, vacation, paid time off, health, medical, fringe-benefit and other compensatory agreement, plan, policy, practice,
program or arrangement which is or has been adopted, entered into, maintained, sponsored, contributed to, or required to be
contributed to by Affinity with or for the benefit of any current or former employee, officer, or director of Affinity or the
Business (or with or for the benefit of their respective spouses or dependents) or with respect to which Affinity otherwise has any
Liabilities.

“Affinity Fundamental Representations” means the representations and warranties of Affinity set forth in Section 4.01
(Organization and Qualification), Section 4.02 (Authority) and Section 4.15 (Brokers).
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“Affinity Indemnitees” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.03.

“Affinity Parties” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.03(a).

“Affinity Representative” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.17(e).

“Affinity Transaction Expenses” means the aggregate amount of all fees, commissions, costs and expenses of Affinity
incurred or to be incurred or reimbursed in connection with, or related to, the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, to the
extent not paid in full at or prior to the Closing, including all legal, accounting, financial advisory, broker, consulting and all other
fees and expenses of third parties, including service providers; provided, however, that Affinity Transaction Expenses shall
exclude any item included in the definition of Affinity Employee Payables.

“Agreement” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

“Antitrust Laws” means applicable federal, state, local or foreign antitrust, competition, premerger notification or trade
regulation Laws, including the Sherman Antitrust Act of 1890, the Clayton Act of 1914, the HSR Act and the Federal Trade
Commission Act of 1914.

“Applicable Accounting Principles” means the following: (a) the accounting principles, judgments, methodologies,
practices, classifications, estimation techniques and assumptions, including as to the establishment of premiums receivable
accruals, reserves and determination of contingencies, set forth in Exhibit F, (b) to the extent not addressed in (a), the accounting
principles, judgments, methodologies, practices and classifications used in the preparation of the Audited Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2019, and (c) to the extent not addressed in (a) or (b), SAP. For the avoidance of doubt (a) takes
precedence over (b) and (c), and (b) takes precedence over (c).

“Assigned Contracts” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.01(a)(vii).

“Assignment and Assumption Agreement” means an assignment and assumption agreement in substantially the form
attached hereto as Exhibit C, duly executed by Buyer and Affinity, effecting the assignment to and assumption by Buyer of the
Purchased Assets and the Assumed Liabilities.

“Assumed Liabilities” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.03.

“Audited Financial Statements” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.04(a).

“Balance Sheet” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.04(a).

“Balance Sheet Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.04(a).

“Basket Amount” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.04(a).

- 3 -



“Bill of Sale” means a bill of sale in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, duly executed by Affinity,
transferring the personal property included in the Purchased Assets to Buyer.

“Books and Records” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.01(a)(xii).

“Business” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“Business Day” means any day except Saturday, Sunday or any other day on which commercial banks located in the State
of New York are authorized or required by Law to be closed for business.

“Business Intellectual Property” means the Licensed Intellectual Property and the Purchased Intellectual Property.

“Business IT Assets” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.09(g).

“Business Software” means all Software used in or material to the Business, including but not limited to Software
embodied in products of the Business, other than commercially available “off the shelf” Software that has not been modified or
customized for use by Affinity.

“Buyer” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

“Buyer Disclosure Schedules” means the disclosure schedules delivered by Buyer to Affinity concurrently with the
execution and delivery of this Agreement.

“Buyer Fundamental Representations” means the representations and warranties of Buyer set forth in Section 5.01
(Organization), Section 5.02 (Authority) and Section 5.04 (Brokers).

“Buyer Indemnitees” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.02.

“Cap” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.04(a).

“Cash” means, as of any date of determination, cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities, security entitlements, and
short-term investments of Affinity, checks and funds received by Affinity, less the amount of checks written by Affinity but not
yet cleared, in each case calculated as of such date in accordance with SAP applied on a consistent basis with the Audited
Financial Statements. For the avoidance of doubt, “Cash” shall not include the Statutory Escrow Account, Retained Cash and
Investments and any petty cash, and shall include all balances held in the operating accounts.

“Cash Purchase Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.05(a).

“Cause” shall mean (a) poor performance or any misconduct identified as a ground for termination in Buyer’s human
resources policies, code of business conduct, or other written policies, practices or procedures, (b) commission of any criminal,
fraudulent, or dishonest act in
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connection with the individual’s employment, or (c) conviction of any felony or crime of moral turpitude.

“Change in Health Care Law” means any adoption, implementation, promulgation, repeal, modification, amendment,
reinterpretation, or change of any applicable New York state Law relating to Medicaid or otherwise relating to the health care,
health insurance or managed care industry.

“Claim Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.05(a).

“Claims” has the meaning set forth in Section 10.16.

“Closing” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.01.

“Closing Affinity Employee Payables” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.06(b).

“Closing Cash” means Cash as of the Measurement Time.

“Closing Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.01.

“Closing Date Indebtedness” means all Indebtedness incurred by Affinity and outstanding as of immediately prior to the
Closing.

“Closing Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.07(c).

“Closing Statement Disputed Items” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.07(e).

“Closing Statement Objection Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.07(d).

“CMS” means the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services.

“COBRA” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.04(c).

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Contract” means any agreement, contract, lease, deed, mortgage, license, instrument, promissory note, evidence of
Indebtedness, security agreement, commitment, undertaking, indenture or joint venture, whether written or oral.

“Court” means any court, arbitrator or tribunal of the United States, any domestic state, or any foreign country, and any
political subdivision thereof.

“Direct Claim” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.05(c).

“Disclosure Schedules” means the disclosure schedules delivered by Affinity to Buyer concurrently with the execution
and delivery of this Agreement.

“Disclosure Update” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.04(a)(i).
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“DOH” means the New York State Department of Health.

“Dollars” or “$” means the lawful currency of the United States.

“DSRIP EIP” means the New York State Delivery System Reform Incentive Payment program’s Equity Infrastructure
Program.

“DSRIP EIP Liabilities” means any payable by Affinity (or for which Affinity may have any liability) in connection with
DSRIP EIP represented by the line item “Payable for NYSDOH Equity Program” on the Balance Sheet.

“DSRIP EIP Receivables” means any and all proceeds due and payable to Affinity in connection with DSRIP EIP
represented by the line item “Restricted Funds, NYSDOH DSRIP Equity Program” on the Balance Sheet.

“Effective Time” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.01.

“Emblem Claim” means any and all proceeds due and payable to Affinity pursuant to or otherwise arising from Affinity’s
rights under that certain Asset Purchase Agreement by and between Affinity and Greater Health Plan of New York dated as of
October 27, 2018.

“Encumbrance” means any encumbrance, charge, claim, pledge, equitable interest, lien (statutory or other), option,
security interest, mortgage, hypothecation, easement, encroachment, right of way, right of first refusal, restriction, levy or charge
of any kind, including any restriction on use, voting, transfer, receipt of income or exercise of any other attribute of ownership.

“Enrollees” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“Environmental Law” means any applicable Law relating to the regulation or protection of the environment, natural
resources, or human health or safety, including Laws relating to the manufacture, processing, distribution, sale, use, treatment,
storage, disposal, transport, handling, remediation, cleanup, Release or threatened Release of or exposure to pollutants,
contaminants, chemicals or other hazardous, harmful or deleterious materials or substances, including the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 et seq.

“ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.

“Escrow Agent” means Citibank, National Association.

“Escrow Agreement” means an Escrow Agreement, in substantially the form of Exhibit A attached hereto, to be entered
into among Buyer, Affinity and the Escrow Agent.

“Escrow Amount” means Thirty-Seven Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($37,500,000), as it may be increased or
decreased from time to time as provided herein.
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“Escrow Fund” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.06(e).

“Estimated Closing Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.07(a).

“Estimated Net Asset Value” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.07(a).

“Excluded Assets” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.02.

“Excluded Contracts” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.02(e).

“Excluded Liabilities” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.04.

“Excluded Matter” means any one or more of the following: (i) any change in the United States or foreign economies or
securities or financial markets; (ii) any change that generally affects the Medicaid managed care industry (other than as a result of
any Change in Health Care Law); (iii) any changes or proposed changes in applicable Laws or accounting rules (other than any
Change in Health Care Law); (iv) taking of any action that is required by the terms of this Agreement or the consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement; (v) any failure, in and of itself, by Affinity to meet internal forecasts or projections
(it being understood and agreed that the underlying facts and circumstances that cause such failure that are not otherwise
excluded from the definition of a Material Adverse Effect may be taken into account in determining whether there has been a
Material Adverse Effect); and (vi) any outbreak of hostilities, acts of war, sabotage or terrorism or military actions or any
escalation or material worsening of any such hostilities, acts of war, sabotage or terrorism or military actions existing or
underway as of the date hereof; provided, however, that any event, occurrence, fact, condition, change or effect referred to in
clauses (i), (ii), (iii), and (vi) shall be taken into account for purposes of determining whether a Material Adverse Effect has
occurred solely to the extent that such occurrence, fact, condition, change or effect has a disproportionate adverse effect on
Affinity or the Business, in each case, taken as a whole, relative to the adverse effect such events or changes have on other
companies that participate in the geographic markets and industries in which Affinity operates.

“Expenses” means, with respect to any Person, all reasonable and documented out-of-pocket fees and expenses (including
all fees and expenses of counsel, accountants, financial advisors and investment bankers of such Person and its Affiliates, but
excluding any Transfer Taxes), incurred by such Person or on its behalf in connection with or related to the authorization,
preparation, negotiation, execution and performance of this Agreement and any transactions related thereto, any litigation with
respect thereto, or in connection with other regulatory approvals, and all other matters related to transactions contemplated
hereby.

“Federal Health Care Program” has the meaning given to such term in 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b-(f).

“Final Closing Adjustment” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.07(g).

- 7 -



“Final Net Asset Value” means the Net Asset Value of Affinity as finally determined in accordance with Section 2.07.

“Financial Statements” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.04(a).

“FQHC Members” means Charles B. Wang Community Health Center, Inc., Cornerstone Family Health Care, The
Institute for Family Health, Morris Heights Health Center, Inc., William F. Ryan Community Health Center, Inc., and Urban
Health Plan, Inc.

“FQHC Non-Compete Agreement” means the Non-Compete Agreements, in substantially the form attached hereto as
Exhibit G, to be entered into among Buyer, Affinity and each FQHC Member.

“GAAP” means United States generally accepted accounting principles in effect as of the date hereof, consistently
applied.

“Governmental Authority” means any federal, state, local, municipal or foreign government or political subdivision
thereof, or any authority, commission, department, board, official or other instrumentality of such government or political
subdivision, or any self-regulated organization or other non-governmental regulatory authority or quasi-governmental authority
(to the extent that the rules, regulations or orders of such organization or authority have the force of Law), or any Court of
competent jurisdiction.

“Hazardous Materials” means any waste, substance, chemical, radiation or material regulated, listed, defined or which
forms the basis for Liability under Environmental Laws.

“Health Plans” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.01(a)(xvii).

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended and supplemented by the
Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (Pub. L. No. 111-5) and the implementing regulations of
each, when each is effective and as each is amended from time to time.

“Hired Employee” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.05(a).

“HSR Act” means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended.

“Inactive Employee” means an employee of the Business who is on a leave of absence as a result of (a) accident,
sickness, family, pregnancy, parental or medical leave, (b) disability or salary continuation under the terms of an Affinity
Employee Plan, (c) workers’ compensation leave, (d) any leave required by applicable Law, or (e) military service.

“Indebtedness” means, as of any date without duplication, all obligations (including any principal, accrued and unpaid
interest, premium, penalty, breakage costs, termination fees or other payment) of Affinity (i) for indebtedness for borrowed
money, including with respect to deposits or advances of any kind, (ii) evidenced by notes, bonds, debentures or other similar
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instruments, (iii) with respect to any interest rate hedging, swap agreements, foreign currency exchange agreements or similar
arrangements and related break-up fees, (iv) for any liability for all or any part of the deferred purchase price of property, assets,
securities, goods or services (other than trade payables incurred in the ordinary course of business to the extent not included in
Net Asset Value), at the maximum value, whether contingent or not, including any “earn-out”, purchase price adjustment, release
of “holdback” or similar payment or any non-compete payments, (v) for any liability under any reimbursement obligation relating
to a surety bond, letter of credit, bankers’ acceptance, note purchase facility or similar credit transactions, (vi) under leases
required in accordance with GAAP to be recorded as capital leases or leases classified as a capital/finance lease in the Financial
Statements and excluding operating leases, (vii) for indebtedness secured by an Encumbrance, except for Permitted
Encumbrances, (viii) under conditional sale or other title retention agreements relating to any property purchased, (ix) for all
negative balances in bank accounts and all overdrafts, (x) for deferred rent Liabilities recorded in accordance with GAAP, (xi) for
any accounts payable or loans of any kind or nature between Affinity, on the one hand, and any officers, directors, employees or
agents of Affinity, on the other hand, (xii) escheat Liabilities, (xiii) audit settlement Liabilities, (xiv) bankruptcy reserves, and
(xv) any guarantee of the payment or performance of, or any contingent obligation in respect of, any Indebtedness of any other
Person. “Indebtedness” shall not include any item included in the definition of Net Asset Value.

“Indemnified Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.05.

“Indemnifying Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.05.

“Independent Accountants” means a nationally or regionally recognized firm of independent accountants as to which
Buyer and Affinity mutually agree.

“Ineligible Person” means any Person that (a) is currently excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise ineligible to
participate in any Federal Health Care Program or in federal procurement or non-procurement programs or (b) to the Knowledge
of Affinity has been convicted of a criminal offense that falls within the ambit of 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7(a), but has not yet been
excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise declared ineligible.

“Information Privacy and Security Laws” means all Laws concerning the privacy or security of Personal Information,
and all regulations promulgated and guidance issued by any Governmental Authority thereunder, including, but not limited to,
HIPAA, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, the Fair and Accurate Credit Transaction Act, the
Telephone Consumer Protection Act, Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act as it applies to the receipt, access, use,
disclosure, and security of Personal Information, the CAN-SPAM Act, Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act, PCI DSS, Part
500 of Title 23 of the New York Codes, Rules and Regulations, Article 27-F of the New York Public Health Law, state data
breach notification Laws, state data security Laws, state social security number protection Laws, state consumer protection Laws,
any health care Laws pertaining to privacy or data security and any applicable Laws concerning requirements for website and
mobile application privacy policies and practices, or any outbound communications (including e-mail marketing, telemarketing
and text messaging), tracking and marketing.
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“Initial Termination Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.01(d)(ii).

“Intellectual Property” means all intellectual property, intangible property and proprietary rights, title, interests and
protections, however arising, pursuant to the Laws of any jurisdiction throughout the world, including: (i) all United States,
foreign and international patents, patent applications and statutory invention registrations, utility models, reissues, divisionals,
continuations, continuations-in-part, extensions and reexaminations thereof; (ii) all trademarks, service marks, trade dress, logos,
trade names and corporate names, uniform resource locator addresses, symbols, slogans, and other indicia of source or origin,
including the goodwill of the business symbolized thereby or associated therewith, common law rights, registrations and
applications therefor throughout the world; (iii) internet domain names, website content, social media handles, tags, hashtags,
social media accounts, or any other online indicia of source; (iv) original works of authorship in any medium of expression,
whether or not published, all copyrights and copyrightable works, all registrations and applications for registration of such
copyrights, and all issuances, extensions and renewals of such registrations and applications; (v) trade secrets, formulas, designs,
devices, technical data, technology, know-how, research and development, advertising and promotional materials, inventions and
invention disclosures, methods or processes, and other confidential or proprietary technical, business and other information; (vi)
computer software (including source and object code) and computer programs and databases in any form, including firmware,
development tools, algorithms, data, data files, records, database management code, utilities, graphical user interfaces, internet
web sites, all versions, updates, corrections, enhancements and modifications of any of the foregoing, and all related
documentation (collectively, “Software”); (vii) all rights to sue and recover and retain damages, costs and attorneys’ fees for past,
present and future infringement and any other rights relating to any of the foregoing; and (viii) all tangible embodiments of any
of the foregoing.

“Interim Financial Statements” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.04(a).

“IP Assignment Agreement” means an intellectual property assignment agreement in substantially the form attached
hereto as Exhibit D, duly executed by Buyer and Affinity.

“IRS” means the Internal Revenue Service.

“IT Assets” means all computer systems, including software, hardware, databases, firmware, middleware and platforms,
interfaces, systems, networks, information technology equipment, facilities, websites, infrastructure, workstations, switches, data
communications lines and associated documentation used or held for use by or on behalf of Affinity in connection with the
conduct of the Business.

“Key Provider” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.07(a).

“Knowledge of Affinity” or “Affinity’s Knowledge” or any other similar knowledge qualification, means the actual
knowledge of Michael Murphy, Clara Hansen, Rachel Amalfitano, Lisa Mingione, Scott Breidbart and Jason Robinson after
reasonable due inquiry and investigation.
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“Law” means any federal, state or local law (statutory or otherwise), ordinance, regulation, rule, code, constitution, treaty,
convention, ruling, administrative opinion, subregulatory requirement or other requirement enacted, adopted, promulgated or
applied by or on behalf any Governmental Authority, any Order having the effect of law in any jurisdiction, and applicable
common law.

“Leased Real Property” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.08(b).

“Liabilities” means any debts, liabilities, obligations or commitments of any nature whatsoever, asserted or unasserted,
known or unknown, absolute or contingent, accrued or unaccrued, matured or unmatured, monetary or non-monetary, direct or
indirect, determined or determinable or any other nature whether due or to become due, and regardless of when asserted or
whether it is accrued or required to be accrued or disclosed pursuant to Applicable Accounting Principles.

“Licensed Intellectual Property” means Intellectual Property licensed to or held for use by Affinity, but excluding the
Purchased Intellectual Property.

“Losses” means losses, damages, Liabilities, deficiencies, Actions, judgments, interest, awards, penalties, fines, costs or
expenses of whatever kind, including reasonable fees of accountants, attorneys and other similar professionals, the cost of
enforcing any right to indemnification hereunder, the cost of pursuing any insurance providers, lost profits, multiples of earnings,
diminution in value and consequential damages, excluding, any other indirect, special or punitive damages (other than damages
awarded as part of a Third Party Claim). For the avoidance of doubt, consequential damages means Losses that were reasonably
foreseeable but were not a direct result of the related breach or alleged breach of this Agreement.

“Material Adverse Effect” means any event, occurrence, fact, condition, change or effect that (a) has had, or could
reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on (1) the business, results of
operations, or financial condition of the Business, or (2) the Purchased Assets and Assumed Liabilities, taken as a whole, or (b)
has materially impaired, or could reasonably be expected to materially impair or delay, individually or in the aggregate, the
ability of Affinity to perform its obligations under this Agreement or consummate the transactions contemplated hereby;
provided, however, that, in determining whether there has been a Material Adverse Effect, any event, occurrence, fact, condition,
change, effect, development or circumstance to the extent resulting from or attributable or relating to an Excluded Matter shall be
disregarded and no Excluded Matter shall be deemed to constitute a Material Adverse Effect.

“Material Contracts” means (i) the Provider Contracts; (ii) the Payor Contracts; (iii) Contracts related to the provision of
management services or functions to Affinity and that have required the approval of DOH under 10 N.Y.C.R.R. § 98-1.11 during
the past three (3) years; (iv) Contracts containing a provision or covenant that purports to (A) materially restrict the business
activity of Affinity as it relates to the Business as it is currently conducted, (B) materially limit the freedom of Affinity to engage
in the Business or compete with any Person in the Business, (C) provide “most favored nation” or similar status to any customer
or Provider,
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(D) require the purchase of any product or service exclusively from a single party or grant exclusive rights to marketing or
distribution or (E) grant to any Person (other than Affinity) an option or a first refusal, first-offer or similar preferential right to
purchase or acquire any assets which are material to Affinity or the Business; (v) Contracts for joint venture agreements or
similar partnerships entered into within the last three (3) years; (vi) Contracts with any licensed producer or broker relating to the
sale of Affinity’s health plans providing for annual payments by Affinity in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000); (vii)
Contracts relating to the settlement of any Actions, other than (A) settlements immaterial in nature or amount to Affinity and the
Business, taken as a whole, entered into with former employees or current or former independent contractors in the ordinary
course of business, and (B) settlement agreements under which Affinity does not have any continuing obligations or Liabilities
equal to or greater than Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000) or rights (excluding releases); (viii) any other Contract with a
Governmental Authority; (ix) Contracts with vendors providing for payments by or to Affinity in excess of One Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($100,000) during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019; (x) any Contracts for the sale or purchase of any
assets or business (whether by merger, sale of stock, sale of assets or otherwise) within the last three (3) years with a value in
excess of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) or pursuant to which there are continuing indemnification, “earn-out” or other
contingent payment Liabilities, including Contracts providing for indemnification to or from any Person with respect to
Liabilities relating to any current or former business of Affinity; (xi) Contracts or agreements relating to or evidencing
Indebtedness of Affinity or any mortgage, pledge, indenture or security agreement or similar arrangement constituting an
Encumbrance that is material to the Purchased Assets, taken as a whole; (xii) Contracts that relate to any off-balance sheet
arrangements, loss sharing, or loss guarantee and contingent purchase transactions, special purpose entity transactions or other
similar transactions of Affinity, and any hedging, derivatives or similar Contracts or arrangements; (xiii) Contracts that require
additional capital expenditures in excess of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) that are not reflected on the Balance Sheet; and
(xiv) all other Contracts involving annual payments of more than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000).

“Measurement Time” means 12:01 a.m., Eastern Time, on the Closing Date.

“Medical Claims” means, with respect to any measurement period, the aggregate dollar amount of claims incurred by
Affinity with respect to covered medical services provided.

“Medical Claims Reserve” means, with respect to Affinity, the amount accrued or reserved by Affinity for Liabilities for
Medical Claims incurred but not reported, and incurred but pending or otherwise unpaid, in each case, calculated as of the
Measurement Time in accordance with the Applicable Accounting Principles.

“MHNY” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.17(e).

“Minimum Network Requirements” means a sufficient number of Provider Contracts required to have been successfully
assigned to Buyer as set forth in the DOH’s approval for the transactions contemplated hereby, in each case with reimbursement
rates that do not exceed Affinity’s reimbursement rates immediately prior to Closing.
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“MMCOR” means Medicaid Managed Care Operating Report statements required to be filed with DOH.

“Montefiore Claim” means any and all proceeds due and payable to Affinity pursuant to or otherwise arising from
Affinity’s rights under various agreements with Montefiore Medical Center, including but not limited to that certain Agreement
for Hospital Services by and between Affinity and Montefiore Medical Center dated as of July 16, 2002, as amended from time to
time and as extended by those certain letter agreements dated March 26, 2019 and November 8, 2019.

“Murphy Executive Employment Contract” means that certain executive employment agreement by and between
Affinity and Michael Murphy dated as of January 1, 2019.

“Net Asset Value” means an amount equal to Affinity’s capital and surplus calculated by subtracting (i) the sum of all
Assumed Liabilities from (ii) the sum of all Purchased Assets, in each case as determined as of the Measurement Time on a basis
consistent with and in accordance with the Applicable Accounting Principles. Net Asset Value shall account for the Medical
Claims Reserve and the Premiums Receivable Accrual.

“Network Failure” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.19.

“Non-Recourse Party” means, with respect to a particular Person, any of such Person’s past, present or future equity
holders, controlling Persons, incorporators, directors, officers, employees, agents, attorneys, advisors, representatives, financing
sources, Affiliates, members, managers, general or limited partners or assignees or successors (or any past, present or future
equity holders, controlling Persons, incorporators, directors, officers, employees, agents, attorneys, advisors, representatives,
financing sources, Affiliates, members, managers, general or limited partners or assignees or successors of any of the foregoing).

“NPI” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.20.

“Order” means any order, writ, judgment, injunction, decree, stipulation, determination or award entered by or with any
Governmental Authority (in each such case whether preliminary or final).

“Party” and “Parties” have the meanings set forth in the Preamble.

“Payor Contracts” means all Contracts between Affinity and Payor and any renewal or replacement of the foregoing
Contracts.

“Payor” shall mean the New York State Department of Health.

“PCI DSS” means the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard, issued by the Payment Card Industry Security
Standards Council, as may be revised from time to time.

“Permits” means all permits, licenses, franchises, approvals, authorizations, registrations, certificates, variances and
similar rights obtained, or required to be obtained, from Governmental Authorities.
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“Permitted Encumbrances” means (a) liens for Taxes that are not yet due and payable or that may hereafter be paid
without material penalty or that are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and for which adequate reserves
have been established if and as may be required by and in accordance with SAP, (b) statutory or contractual liens of landlords
with respect to real property and incurred in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and which are not,
individually or in the aggregate, material to Affinity and the Business taken as a whole, (c) liens of carriers, warehousemen,
mechanics, materialmen, repairmen and similar liens incurred in the ordinary course of business, (d) liens incurred in connection
with workers’ compensation, unemployment compensation and other types of social security or in connection with obligations
for sums which are not yet delinquent or which are being contested in good faith and which are not, individually or in the
aggregate, material to Affinity and the Business taken as a whole, (e) in the case of real property, in addition to items (a), (b),
(c) and (d), zoning, building or other restrictions, variances, use permits, use restrictions, covenants, rights of way, encumbrances,
easements and other exceptions to title, none of which, individually or in the aggregate, interfere in any material respect with the
present use of or occupancy of the affected parcel by Affinity, (f) liens securing the Indebtedness that is being repaid prior to or at
Closing, (g) in the case of Business Intellectual Property, third-party license agreements entered into in the ordinary course of
business, (h) liens incurred in connection with capital lease obligations of the Business, (i) liens that constitute purchase money
security interests on any property securing debt incurred for the purpose of financing all or any part of the cost of acquiring such
property, (j) liens with respect to the properties or assets of the Business that do not singly or in the aggregate materially detract
from the value of the property or materially detract from or interfere with the use of property in the ordinary course of Affinity’s
operation of the Business, (k) the replacement, extension or renewal of any of the foregoing, (l) liens set forth on
Schedule 1.1(a), and (m) liens created by or through Buyer.

“Person” means an individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company, unincorporated
organization, trust, association or other entity.

“Personal Information” means any information that (a) identifies or relates to a natural person including information that
alone or in combination with other information held by Affinity can be used to identify, contact or precisely locate a natural
person or can be linked to a natural person; (b) any information that is governed, regulated or protected by one or more
Information Privacy and Security Laws, including Protected Health Information as defined by HIPAA; (c) any information that
Affinity receives from or on behalf of an Enrollee; or (d) any information that is covered by the PCI DSS.

“Pre-Closing Tax Period” means any Tax period ending on or before the Closing Date and the portion of any Straddle
Period ending on the Closing Date.

“Premiums Receivable Accrual” means the aggregate dollar amount attributable to the premium capitation receivables
for services performed by or on behalf of Affinity with respect to the period of time prior to the Measurement Time, calculated in
accordance with the Applicable Accounting Principles.

“Prohibitive Order” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.01(c).
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“Provider” means any physician, hospital, pharmacy or other health care professional, independent practice association,
facility or supplier that has contracted to provide or arrange for the provision of health care services, dental services, prescription
drugs or supplies to Enrollees, as well as any vendor required to be part of Affinity’s network under any Payor Contract.

“Provider Contract” means any Contract between Affinity and any Provider.

“Provider Contract Termination” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.19.

“Provider Network” means all Providers that are contracted directly with Affinity’s provider network.

“Purchase Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.05(a).

“Purchased Assets” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.01(a).

“Purchased Intellectual Property” means all Intellectual Property owned or controlled by Affinity or used or held for use
in or related to the Business.

“Real Property Leases” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.08(b).

“Registered Intellectual Property” means any Purchased Intellectual Property that is the subject of an application,
certificate, filing, registration or other document issued by, filed with, or recorded by, any Governmental Authority at any time,
and that is owned by or held in the name of Affinity.

“Regulatory Filings” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.16(c).

“Regulatory Material Adverse Effect” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.08(c).

“Release” means any emission, spill, seepage, leak, escape, leaching, discharge, injection, pumping, pouring, emptying,
dumping, disposal, migration, or release of Hazardous Materials from any source.

“Released Claims” has the meaning set forth in Section 10.16.

“Released Parties” has the meaning set forth in Section 10.16.

“Releasing Parties” has the meaning set forth in Section 10.16.

“Representative” means, with respect to any Person, any and all directors, officers, employees, partners, members,
consultants, financial advisors, counsel, accountants and other agents of such Person.

“Required Governmental Approvals” has the meaning specified in Section 6.08(a).

“Required Third Party Consents” has the meaning specified in Section 7.02(i).
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“Restricted Business” means operating any health care insurance related business, including (a) any Medicaid plan,
(b) any health maintenance organization, any preferred provider organization, or (c) any management services or care
management administrative services to any of the businesses listed in the foregoing items (a) through (b).

“Restricted Period” means the five (5) year period commencing on the Closing Date.

“Retained Cash and Investment Amount” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.02(g).

“Retained Cash and Investments” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.02(g).

“Review Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.07(d).

“Risk Corridor Claim” means the Action brought by Affinity under Section 1342 of the Affordable Care Act seeking
damages against the United States for its failure to fully pay risk-corridor payments promised by the Affordable Care Act.

“Routine Reconciliations” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.16(e).

“SAP” means the statutory accounting procedures prescribed or permitted by DOH in consultation with the New York
Department of Financial Services.

“Software” has the meaning set forth in the definition of “Intellectual Property.”

“Special DOH Indemnity” means any Losses incurred by the Buyer Indemnitees in connection with (a) any audit by the
New York State Medicaid Inspector General or its agents of Affinity’s compliance with requirements under the Medicaid
managed care program, (b) Liabilities due to DOH or any other Governmental Authority in connection with the matters set forth
on Schedule 1.1(b), including Liabilities represented by the line item “Due to NYSDOH” on the Balance Sheet, and (c)
Liabilities due to CMS or any other Governmental Authority in connection with the matters set forth on Schedule 1.1(c),
including Liabilities represented by the line item “Due to Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services” on the Balance Sheet.

“Special DOH Payables” means all Liabilities set forth on Schedule 1.1(d).

“Special HCRA Indemnity” means any Losses incurred by the Buyer Indemnitees in connection with any audit by DOH
or its designee of (i) assessments paid by Affinity pursuant to §2807-j or §2807-t of the New York Public Health Law or (ii)
obligations otherwise required by Affinity under the New York Health Care Reform Act.

“Statutory Escrow Account” means the escrow account maintained by Affinity in accordance with the requirements of
Section 98-1.11 of Part 98, Title 10, New York Codes, Rules and Regulations.

“Straddle Period” means any Tax period beginning before or on and ending after the Closing Date.

- 16 -



“Subsidiary” of any Person means any corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company, trust, estate or
other Person of which (or in which) more than 50% of (a) the issued and outstanding capital stock, or other equity interests
having ordinary voting power to elect a majority of the board of directors of such corporation or Persons performing similar
functions of any other Person (irrespective of whether at the time capital stock, membership or other equity interests of any other
class or classes of such corporation or other Person shall or might have voting power upon the occurrence of any contingency),
(b) the interest in the capital or profits of such partnership, joint venture or limited liability company or other Person, or (c) the
beneficial interest in such trust or estate is at the time directly or indirectly owned or controlled by such Person, by such Person
and one or more of its other Subsidiaries or by one or more of such Person’s other Subsidiaries.

“Survival Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.01.

“Tangible Personal Property” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.01(a)(viii).

“Target NAV Amount” means One Hundred Thirty-Three Million Seven Hundred Seventy Thousand Dollars
($133,770,000).

“Tax Return” means any return, declaration, report, claim for refund, information return or statement or other document
relating to Taxes, including any schedule or attachment thereto, and including any amendment thereof.

“Taxes” means all federal, state, local, foreign and other income, gross receipts, sales, use, production, ad valorem,
transfer, documentary, franchise, registration, profits, license, lease, service, service use, withholding, payroll, employment,
unemployment, estimated, excise, escheat, severance, environmental, stamp, occupation, premium, property (real or personal),
real property gains, windfall profits, customs, duties or other taxes, fees, assessments or charges of any kind whatsoever, together
with any interest, additions or penalties with respect thereto and any interest in respect of such additions or penalties.

“Terminating Provider” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.19.

“Termination Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.01(d)(ii).

“Territory” means the counties of Bronx, Kings (Brooklyn), Nassau, New York (Manhattan), Orange, Queens, Richmond
(Staten Island), Rockland, Suffolk, and Westchester in the State of New York and any other location in which the Business is
conducted on the date hereof and as of the Closing.

“Third Party Claim” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.05(a).

“Transfer Taxes” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.18.

“Transaction Documents” means this Agreement, the Escrow Agreement, the Bill of Sale, the Assignment and
Assumption Agreement, the IP Assignment Agreement, the FQHC
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Non-Compete Agreements, and the other agreements, instruments and documents required to be delivered at the Closing.

“Union” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.13(b).

“Updated Net Asset Value” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.07(c).

“Wind-Up Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.20.

ARTICLE II
PURCHASE AND SALE

Section 2.01    Purchase and Sale of Assets

(a)    General. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, at the Closing, Affinity shall sell, assign,
transfer, convey and deliver to Buyer (or its designee), and Buyer (or its designee) shall purchase from Affinity, free and clear of
any Encumbrances other than Permitted Encumbrances, all of Affinity’s rights, title and interest in, to and under all assets,
properties, rights and claims of Affinity (other than the Excluded Assets), whether real or personal, tangible or intangible, vested
or unvested, contingent or otherwise, wherever located (the “Purchased Assets”), including:

(i)    the Closing Cash and the bank accounts of Affinity set forth on Section 2.01(a)(i) of the Disclosure
Schedules;

(ii)    all right, title and interests in and to the “AFFINITY” name and derivations thereof;

(iii)    all premiums, accounts or notes receivable of the Business, including premium capitation receivables
for services performed by or on behalf of Affinity;

(iv)    all prepaid expenses, credits, advance payments, security, deposits, charges, sums and fees of the
Business set forth on Section 2.01(a)(iv) of the Disclosure Schedules;

(v)    all of Affinity’s rights, title and interests in and to any of Affinity’s Business Intellectual Property;

(vi)    all of Affinity’s rights, title and interests in and to Business Software (whether proprietary or non-
proprietary), Business IT Assets, servers, data storage devices, systems, networks and other computer assets, laptop computers
and all technology underlying or enabling Internet sites, URLs, systems or networks, e-mail addresses, telephone numbers and
fax numbers;

(vii)    the Murphy Executive Employment Contract, the Provider Contracts, the Payor Contracts and all
other Contracts, other than the Excluded Contracts, relating to the Business (the “Assigned Contracts”);
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(vii)    all furniture, fixtures, equipment, supplies and other tangible personal property of the Business or
Affinity used or held for use in the Business (the “Tangible Personal Property”);

(ix)    all Permits, but only to the extent such Permits may be transferred under applicable Law;

(x)    the Real Property Leases, including any prepaid rent, security deposits (to the extent not theretofore
applied under the Real Property Leases), and options to renew in connection therewith;

(xi)    all of Affinity’s rights under warranties, indemnities and all similar rights against third parties to the
extent related to any Purchased Assets;

(xii)    originals, or where not available, copies, of all books and records and all other data and information
in the possession or control of Affinity, including books of account, ledgers and general, financial and accounting records,
machinery and equipment maintenance files, customer lists, customer purchasing histories, price lists, distribution lists, supplier
lists, production data, quality control records and procedures, customer complaints and inquiry files, personnel records, research
and development files, records and data (including all correspondence with any Governmental Authority), sales material and
records, strategic plans, and internal financial statements that relate to the Business, the Purchased Assets or the Assumed
Liabilities, other than (A) books and records set forth in Section 2.01(a)(xii) of the Disclosure Schedules and (B) Tax Returns
and any other Tax books and records not related to the operation of the Business, copies of which, for the avoidance of doubt will
be retained by Affinity (“Books and Records”);

(xiii)    all goodwill, going concern and other similar intangibles relating to the Purchased Assets;

(xiv)    (A) any and all occurrence-based third party liability insurance policies of Affinity or its Affiliates
and any workers’ compensation insurance policies or comparable workers’ compensation self-insurance programs sponsored by
Affinity or its Affiliates and that apply to the locations at which the Business operates, and (B) the insurance policies of Affinity
or its Affiliates relating to losses or damages relating to the Business, the Purchased Assets or the Assumed Liabilities prior to the
Closing;

(xv)    all of Affinity’s rights, title and interests in and to Personal Information;

(xvi)    all of Affinity’s rights, title and interests in and to the DSRIP EIP Receivables;

(xvii)    all of Affinity’s rights, title and interests in and to the portion of the Montefiore Claim that is
treated as an admitted asset under SAP as of the Measurement Time, calculated in accordance with the Applicable Accounting
Principles; and
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(xviii)    all of Affinity’s right, title and interest in, to and under any other assets, properties, rights and
claims of Affinity (other than the Excluded Assets), whether real or personal, tangible or intangible, vested or unvested,
contingent or otherwise, wherever located, which are used or held for use by Affinity in connection with Affinity’s operation and
maintenance of the health plans comprising the Business (such health plans, Affinity’s “Health Plans”), including:

(A)    Rights with Respect to Enrollees. Any and all rights of Affinity to provide services to
Enrollees in any of Affinity’s Health Plans and any other individuals who would be default-assigned to Affinity’s Health Plans
from and after the Closing Date if Affinity retained the right to serve Enrollees after the Closing, and the corresponding right to
receive revenues (and bonuses) payable by Payors with respect to such Enrollees (and other individuals); and

(B)    Claims and Rights. Claims and rights of every kind relating to the Purchased Assets and/or
the ownership of the Business arising from the conduct of the Business by Buyer on and after the Effective Time, except to the
extent such claims and rights constitute or relate to an Excluded Asset or an Excluded Liability.

Section 2.02    Excluded Assets. The purchase of the Purchased Assets by Buyer and sale of the Purchased Assets by
Affinity contemplated by this Agreement shall not include the following assets of Affinity (which assets shall be referred to as
the “Excluded Assets”):

(a)    all communications involving attorney-client confidences between Affinity and counsel;

(b)    all rights and obligations relating to, and any and all proceeds due to Affinity in connection with, the Risk
Corridor Claim;

(c)    all books and records of Affinity to the extent not listed in Section 2.01(a)(xii);

(d)    Affinity’s rights and claims under this Agreement (including, for the avoidance of any doubt, Affinity’s right
to the Cash Purchase Price);

(e)    Affinity’s rights and claims under the Contracts on Section 2.02(e) of the Disclosure Schedules (the
“Excluded Contracts”);

(f)    the Emblem Claim (to the extent not fully and finally resolved prior to the Closing);

(g)    the Statutory Escrow Account and all investment accounts (including accrued interest receivable) of Affinity
set forth on Section 2.02(g) of the Disclosure Schedules (the “Retained Cash and Investments”, and the dollar amount of the
cash and investments held in such accounts as of the Measurement Time, the “Retained Cash and Investment Amount”); and
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(h)    Affinity’s rights and claims to the assets set forth on Section 2.02(h) of the Disclosure Schedules.

Section 2.03    Assumed Liabilities. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, at the Closing, Buyer shall
assume and shall pay, perform and discharge all Liabilities of Affinity (whether arising before or after the Closing), other than
Excluded Liabilities (collectively, the “Assumed Liabilities”), including the following:

(a)    all trade accounts payable of Affinity to third parties in connection with the Business and all claims under
any Provider Contracts or the Health Plans that remain unpaid as of the Closing Date;

(b)    all Liabilities under the Assigned Contracts, including any regulatory liabilities;

(c)    solely to the extent set forth and itemized on the AEP Schedule, any Liabilities of Affinity to or with respect
to any present or former employee, officer, or director who provided or provides services to the Business (or with or for the
benefit of their respective spouses or dependents);

(d)    all Liabilities directly relating to Buyer’s ownership or operation of the Business and the Purchased Assets;
and

(e)    the DSRIP EIP Liabilities.

Section 2.04    Excluded Liabilities. Buyer shall not assume and shall not be responsible to pay, perform or otherwise
discharge (and Affinity shall retain, pay, perform and otherwise discharge) any of the following Liabilities of Affinity
(collectively, the “Excluded Liabilities”):

(a)    any Liabilities of Affinity arising or incurred in connection with the negotiation, preparation, investigation
and performance of this Agreement, the other Transaction Documents and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby,
including fees and expenses of counsel, accountants, consultants, advisers and others;

(b)    any Liabilities relating to or arising out of the Excluded Assets;

(c)    except to the extent specifically set forth and itemized on the AEP Schedule, all Liabilities in connection
with, relating to or arising from any current or former (i) employee of Affinity or the Business and (ii) employee benefit or
compensation plan, program, agreement, policy, practice, agreement or arrangement (including all Affinity Employee Plans), in
each case including any related compensation, Tax and other Liabilities, and including any claims or Liabilities in connection
with any related disputes, grievances, administrative actions or lawsuits, in each case, relating to or arising at any time prior to
and including the Closing, other than as may be required by the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as
amended (“COBRA”) with respect to individuals that are “M&A qualified beneficiaries” as
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such term is defined in Treasury Regulation Section 54.4980B�9 with respect to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement;

(d)    all Liabilities relating to any payable to any broker or finder engaged by or on behalf of Affinity in
connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Transaction Documents;

(e)    any Liability for Taxes (i) attributable to, incurred in connection with or arising out of the operation of the
Business or the ownership of the Purchased Assets for any Pre-Closing Tax Period or (ii) of or attributable to Affinity or its
Affiliates;

(f)    the Special DOH Payables; and

(g)    Liabilities due to CMS or any other Governmental Authority in connection with the matters set forth on
Schedule 1.1(c); provided, for the avoidance of doubt, that any indemnification for Losses arising from the Special DOH
Indemnity shall only be payable pursuant to Section 8.02(d), subject in all respects to the limitations set forth in Section 8.04
hereof.

Section 2.05    Purchase Price.

(a)    The aggregate purchase price for the Purchased Assets and the assumption of the Assumed Liabilities shall
be Five Hundred Million Dollars ($500,000,000) (the “Purchase Price”). The portion of the Purchase Price payable to Affinity in
cash at the Closing (the “Cash Purchase Price”) shall equal (i) the Purchase Price, minus (ii) the Closing Affinity Employee
Payables (which remain outstanding as of the Closing Date), minus (iii) the Affinity Transaction Expenses, minus (iv) the amount
(if any) by which the Target NAV Amount is greater than Estimated Net Asset Value in terms of absolute value, plus (v) the
amount (if any) by which Estimated Net Asset Value is greater than the Target NAV Amount in terms of absolute value, minus
(vi) Closing Date Indebtedness (if any), and minus (vii) the Escrow Amount.

Section 2.06    Payment.

(a)    Cash to Affinity. At the Closing, Buyer shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, to Affinity an amount equal to
the Cash Purchase Price by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account or accounts designated by Affinity in
writing at least three (3) Business Days prior to the Closing Date.

(b)    Payment of Affinity Employee Payables. At least five (5) Business Days prior to the Closing Date, Affinity
shall deliver to Buyer a complete and accurate list, and the estimated value thereof as of the Closing Date, assuming for purposes
thereof that the transactions contemplated hereby will be consummated (the “AEP Schedule”), of (i) Affinity Employee Payables
(itemized individually) that will become Purchased Assets and/or Assumed Liabilities, and (ii) Affinity Employee Payables
(itemized individually) that Affinity shall pay
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immediately prior to Closing, or cause to be paid from the Cash Purchase Price at Closing (the “Closing Affinity Employee
Payables”).

(c)    Payment of Closing Date Indebtedness. At least five (5) Business Days prior to the Closing Date, Affinity
shall deliver to Buyer a complete and accurate list, and the estimated value thereof as of the Closing Date, of Affinity’s Closing
Date Indebtedness (if any) as of the date hereof. At the Closing, Buyer, on behalf of Affinity (as applicable), shall pay the Closing
Date Indebtedness (if any) in accordance with debt payoff letters, in form and substance reasonably acceptable to Buyer, to each
counterparty or holder of Closing Date Indebtedness in order to fully discharge such Closing Date Indebtedness and terminate all
applicable obligations and Liabilities of Affinity related thereto, in each case, by wire transfer of immediately available funds to
the account or accounts designated in the debt payoff letters.

(d)    Payment of Affinity Transaction Expenses. At least five (5) Business Days prior to the Closing Date, Affinity
shall deliver to Buyer a complete and accurate list, and the estimated value thereof as of the Closing Date, of the outstanding
Affinity Transaction Expenses (if any) as of the date hereof. At the Closing, Buyer, on behalf of Affinity, shall pay the Affinity
Transaction Expenses (if any) in order to fully discharge such Affinity Transaction Expenses and terminate all applicable
obligations and Liabilities of Affinity related thereto, in each case, by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the account
or accounts designated by Affinity.

(e)    Payment to Escrow Agent. At the Closing, Buyer shall deliver the Escrow Amount (such amount, including
any interest or other amounts earned thereon or added thereto and less any disbursements therefrom in accordance with the
Escrow Agreement, the “Escrow Fund”) to the Escrow Agent for deposit into an escrow fund under the Escrow Agreement.

(f)    Payment of Special DOH Payables. At the Closing, Affinity shall pay, or cause to be paid, from the Cash
Purchase Price, the outstanding Special DOH Payables (if any) to Governmental Authorities in order to fully discharge such
Special DOH Payables and terminate all applicable obligations and Liabilities of Affinity related thereto, in each case, by wire
transfer of immediately available funds to the account or accounts designated by such Governmental Authorities.

Section 2.07    Determination of Net Asset Value Purchase Price Adjustment.

(a)    At least five (5) Business Days prior to the Closing Date, Affinity shall deliver to Buyer a written statement
(as revised in accordance with this Section 2.07, the “Estimated Closing Statement”) setting forth Affinity’s good faith estimate
of the Net Asset Value of Affinity (the “Estimated Net Asset Value”) along with reasonable supporting detail to evidence the
calculation thereof. The Estimated Closing Statement shall be accompanied by a written certification by Affinity’s chief actuary
attesting that the Estimated Net Asset Value (including the Medical Claims Reserve and the Premiums Receivable Accrual
included therein) were determined in accordance with the Applicable Accounting Principles. The Estimated Net Asset Value shall
be prepared in accordance with the Applicable Accounting Principles; provided, however, that the Estimated Net Asset Value (1)
shall not include any changes in assets
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or Liabilities of Affinity as a result of purchase accounting adjustments arising from or resulting as a consequence of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (2) shall be based solely on facts and circumstances as they are reasonably
expected to exist as of the Measurement Time and shall exclude the effect of any event, change, circumstance, development,
occurrence, condition, effect or state of facts occurring after the Measurement Time, except as specifically set forth in the
Applicable Accounting Principles or otherwise in accordance with this Agreement.

(b)    In connection with Buyer’s review of the Estimated Closing Statement, Affinity shall, prior to the Closing,
cooperate with Buyer in good faith to resolve any disagreements between the Parties over the amount of any items set forth in the
Estimated Closing Statement, and the items set forth in the Estimated Closing Statement shall for all purposes in this Agreement
be equal to the amounts initially proposed by Affinity together with any revisions thereto that are mutually agreed by Affinity and
Buyer, each acting reasonably, prior to the Closing. To facilitate Buyer’s review of the Estimated Closing Statement, and upon
Buyer’s reasonable written request, Affinity will use commercially reasonable efforts to (i) provide Buyer with supporting data
reasonably necessary to allow Buyer to verify the amounts set forth in the Estimated Closing Statement, and (ii) subject to
applicable Law and other obligations to which Affinity may be bound, provide to Buyer reasonable access (that shall be during
normal business hours and shall not interfere with Affinity’s normal business operations) to all relevant books and records of
Affinity and make appropriate personnel reasonably available to discuss Buyer’s reasonable inquiries regarding the Estimated
Closing Statement.

(c)    As soon as reasonably practicable but in no event later than the ten (10) month anniversary of the Closing
Date, Buyer shall prepare and deliver to Affinity a statement (the “Closing Statement”) setting forth Buyer’s calculation of the
Net Asset Value of Affinity (the “Updated Net Asset Value”), along with reasonable supporting detail as part of the Closing
Statement to evidence the calculation thereof. The Updated Net Asset Value shall be prepared in accordance with the Applicable
Accounting Principles; provided, however, that the Updated Net Asset Value (1) shall not include any changes in assets or
Liabilities of Affinity as a result of purchase accounting adjustments arising from or resulting as a consequence of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (2) shall be based solely on facts and circumstances as they existed as of the
Measurement Time and shall exclude the effect of any event, change, circumstance, development, occurrence, condition, effect or
state of facts occurring after the Measurement Time, except as specifically set forth in the Applicable Accounting Principles.

(d)    Affinity shall have thirty (30) days following Buyer’s delivery of the Closing Statement (the “Review
Period”) to review the same. If Affinity objects to any portion of the Closing Statement on or before the expiration of the Review
Period, Affinity shall deliver to Buyer a written statement setting forth in reasonable detail and accompanied by reasonable
supporting information, its objection to the Closing Statement (the “Closing Statement Objection Notice”), which shall include
Affinity’s proposed revised amounts and calculations. During the Review Period, Buyer shall upon reasonable advance notice
and during normal business hours permit Affinity and its Representatives to have reasonable access, subject to their execution of
standard hold harmless letters, to the books, records and other documents (including
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work papers, schedules, financial statements, memoranda, etc.) and shall reasonably cooperate with Affinity in obtaining work
papers from Buyer’s accountants pertaining to or used in connection with the preparation of the Closing Statement and
calculation of the Updated Net Asset Value, and provide Affinity with copies thereof (as reasonably requested by Affinity). If
Affinity does not deliver a Closing Statement Objection Notice to Buyer on or before the expiration of the Review Period,
Affinity shall be deemed to have accepted the Closing Statement and the calculations therein in full. Any determination set forth
on the Closing Statement which is not specifically objected to in the Closing Statement Objection Notice shall be deemed
accepted by Affinity and shall be final and binding upon Affinity upon delivery of the Closing Statement Objection Notice.

(e)    In the event that Affinity delivers a Closing Statement Objection Notice objecting to all or any portion of the
Closing Statement within the Review Period, Buyer and Affinity shall promptly meet and in good faith attempt to resolve such
objections. Any such objections set forth in the Closing Statement Objection Notice which cannot be resolved between Buyer and
Affinity within thirty (30) days following Buyer’s receipt of the Closing Statement Objection Notice (the “Closing Statement
Disputed Items”) shall be resolved in accordance with this Section 2.07(e). Should Affinity and Buyer not be able to resolve such
Closing Statement Disputed Items within the thirty (30) day period described above, either party may submit the matter to the
Independent Accountants for review and resolution, with instructions to complete the same as promptly as practicable, but in any
event within thirty (30) days of its engagement, and to resolve any objections consistent with the terms of this Agreement,
including making the calculations in accordance with the definition of “Net Asset Value” as set forth in this Agreement. The
Independent Accountants shall only have authority to make determinations in respect of Closing Statement Disputed Items, and
all determinations shall be based solely on the written presentations of Buyer and Affinity and their respective representatives,
and not by independent review. Buyer and Affinity each shall provide the Independent Accountants with their respective
determinations of the Closing Statement Disputed Items. In resolving any Closing Statement Disputed Item, the Independent
Accountants: (i) shall be bound by the principles set forth in this Section 2.07 and the terms and provisions of this Agreement,
(ii) shall not assign a value to any item greater than the greatest value for such item claimed by either Party or less than the
smallest value for such item claimed by either Party, and (iii) shall act as an expert and not an arbitrator. The Parties shall instruct
the Independent Accountants to deliver to each of Buyer and Affinity a written statement setting forth its resolution of the dispute
within thirty (30) days of the submission of the dispute to such firm, which resolution, absent manifest error, shall be binding and
conclusive on the Parties and not subject to appeal or further review. The Closing Statement shall be modified if necessary to
reflect such determination by the Independent Accountants, as well as the resolution by or on behalf of the Parties of any Closing
Statement Disputed Item. All Closing Statement Disputed Items that are resolved between Affinity and Buyer and all Closing
Statement Disputed Items that are determined by the Independent Accountants will be final, conclusive and binding on the
Parties hereto and may be entered in any Court of competent jurisdiction, and each of the Parties hereto agrees that it shall not
have any right to, and shall not, institute any Action of any kind challenging such determination or with respect to the matters that
are the subject of this Section 2.07. The other Party’s only defense to such a request for enforcement shall be fraud by or upon the
Independent
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Accountant or manifest error. Absent such fraud or manifest error, such other party shall reimburse the Party seeking enforcement
for all of its expenses related to the enforcement of the Independent Accountant’s determination. The fees and costs of the
Independent Accountants, if one is required, shall be borne by Buyer, on the one hand, and Affinity, on the other hand, in inverse
proportion as they may prevail on the matters resolved by the Independent Accountants, which proportionate allocation will also
be determined by the Independent Accountants. For example, if Affinity claims that the appropriate adjustments are One
Thousand Dollars ($1,000) greater than the amount determined by Buyer and if the Independent Accountants ultimately resolve
such items by awarding to Affinity Three Hundred Dollars ($300) of the One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) contested, then the fees,
costs and expenses of the Independent Accountants will be allocated 30% (i.e., 300 ÷ 1,000) to Buyer and 70% (i.e., 700 ÷ 1,000)
to Affinity. Affinity and Buyer shall enter into an engagement letter with the Independent Accountants, including customary
indemnity, confidentiality and other provisions.

(f)    Determinations; Adjustments. If the Final Net Asset Value as finally determined pursuant to this Section
2.07 is greater than the Estimated Net Asset Value, Buyer shall pay to Affinity the full amount by which the Final Net Asset
Value exceeds the Estimated Net Asset Value in accordance with Section 2.07(g). If the Final Net Asset Value as finally
determined pursuant to this Section 2.07 is less than the Estimated Net Asset Value, Affinity shall pay to Buyer the full amount
by which Estimated Net Asset Value exceeds the Final Net Asset Value in accordance with Section 2.07(g).

(g)    Final Payments. The amount (if any) owed to Affinity, on the one hand, or to Buyer, on the other hand,
pursuant to Section 2.07(f) shall be referred to as the “Final Closing Adjustment.” If Buyer is obligated to pay the Final Closing
Adjustment, it shall make the payment in cash by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the Escrow Agent for deposit
into the Escrow Fund. If Affinity is obligated to pay the Final Closing Adjustment, Buyer shall proceed against the Escrow
Amount in order to recover such amounts, and Affinity shall, at Buyer’s request, execute and deliver a joint written direction to
the Escrow Agent to authorize such disbursement. Any payment required under this Section 2.07(g) shall be made within five (5)
Business Days of the final determination of the Final Closing Adjustment.

Section 2.08    Third Party Consents. To the extent that Affinity’s rights under any Contract constituting a Purchased
Asset, or any other Purchased Asset, may not be assigned to Buyer without the consent of another Person which has not been
obtained prior to the Closing, this Agreement shall not constitute an agreement to assign the same if an attempted assignment
would constitute a breach thereof or be unlawful, and Affinity and Buyer shall cooperate in good faith and shall use their
respective reasonable best efforts to obtain any such required consent(s) as promptly as possible. If any such consent shall not be
obtained or if any attempted assignment would be ineffective or would impair Buyer’s rights under the Purchased Asset in
question so that Buyer would not in effect acquire the benefit of all such rights, Affinity shall cooperate with Buyer in order to
obtain for Buyer the benefits thereunder and in any other reasonable arrangement designed to provide such benefits to Buyer.
Notwithstanding any provision in this Section 2.08 to the contrary, (a) Buyer shall not be deemed to have waived its rights under
Section 7.02(b) hereof unless and until Buyer either provides written waivers thereof or elects to
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proceed to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement at the Closing, and (b) any Provider Contract requiring
consent of the Provider to transfer or assign it shall be addressed in and governed by Section 6.09 below.

ARTICLE III
CLOSING

Section 3.01    Closing. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the consummation of the sale, assignment,
transfer, conveyance and delivery of the Purchased Assets, the assumption of the Assumed Liabilities, and the payment of the
Cash Purchase Price (the “Closing”) shall take place remotely via the exchange of executed documents and other deliverables on
the first Business Day of the month following the month in which all of the conditions to Closing set forth in ARTICLE VII are
either satisfied or waived (other than conditions which, by their nature, are to be satisfied on the Closing Date), or at such other
time, date or place as Affinity and Buyer may mutually agree upon in writing. The date on which the Closing actually occurs is
herein referred to as the “Closing Date”. The Closing shall be deemed to have occurred and to be effective as of 12:01 a.m. New
York time on the Closing Date (the “Effective Time”); provided, that if the Closing occurs on a day other than the first calendar
day of the month, the Effective Time shall be deemed to be 12:01 a.m. New York time on the first calendar day of the month in
which the Closing Date occurs. For example, if the Closing Date is Monday, November 2, 2020, the Effective Time would be
12:01 a.m. on Sunday, November 1, 2020.

Section 3.02    Closing Deliverables. At the Closing, Affinity shall deliver to Buyer the documents set forth in Section
7.02 and Buyer shall deliver to Affinity the documents set forth in Section 7.03.

ARTICLE IV
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF AFFINITY

Except as set forth in the Disclosure Schedules, Affinity hereby represents and warrants to Buyer that the statements
contained in this ARTICLE IV are true and correct as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date, except to the extent that any
such representation or warranty refers to a specified date, in which event such representation or warranty shall be true and correct
as of such specified date. The Disclosure Schedules have been arranged in separately numbered sections corresponding to the
Sections of this ARTICLE IV; however, the disclosure of any item in any section of the Disclosure Schedules shall be deemed to
incorporate by reference all information disclosed in any other section of the Disclosure Schedules to which the relevance of such
item is reasonably apparent on its face. Capitalized terms used in the Disclosure Schedules and not otherwise defined therein
have the meanings given to them in this Agreement.

Section 4.01    Organization and Qualification. Affinity is a New York not-for-profit corporation duly organized, validly
existing and in good standing under the Laws of the State of New York and has full corporate power and authority to own,
operate or lease the properties and assets now owned, operated or leased by it and to carry on the Business as currently
conducted. Except as set forth on Section 4.01 of the Disclosure Schedules, Affinity does not control,
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directly or indirectly, or have any direct or indirect equity participation or direct or indirect membership interest in any
corporation, partnership, limited liability company, trust or other business association.

Section 4.02    Authority. Affinity has full corporate power and authority to enter into this Agreement and the other
Transaction Documents to which it is or will be a party, to carry out its obligations hereunder and thereunder and to consummate
the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. The execution and delivery by Affinity of this Agreement and any other
Transaction Document to which Affinity is or will be a party, the performance by Affinity of its obligations hereunder and
thereunder and the consummation by Affinity of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly authorized by
all requisite corporate action on the part of Affinity, and no other proceedings on the part of Affinity are requisite to authorize the
execution, delivery and performance thereof by Affinity. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Affinity, and
(assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by Buyer) this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of
Affinity, enforceable against Affinity in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar Laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and by general equitable principles
(regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding at law or in equity). When each other Transaction Document to
which Affinity is or will be a party has been duly executed and delivered by Affinity (assuming due authorization, execution and
delivery by each other party thereto), such Transaction Document will constitute a legal and binding obligation of Affinity,
enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium or similar Laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and by general equitable principles (regardless of
whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding at law or in equity). Each member of Affinity is set forth on Section 4.02 of the
Disclosure Schedules.

Section 4.03    No Conflicts; Consents. Except as set forth on Section 4.03 of the Disclosure Schedules, the execution
and delivery by Affinity of this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents to which it is or will be a party, and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, and performance by Affinity of the obligations hereunder
and thereunder, do not and will not:

(a)    conflict with or result in a violation or breach of, or default under, any provision of the certificate of
incorporation, bylaws, operating agreement or other organizational documents of Affinity;

(b)    conflict with or result in a violation or breach of any provision of any Law or Order applicable to Affinity,
the Business or the Purchased Assets;

(c)    require the consent, notice or other action by any Person under, conflict with, result in a violation or breach
of, constitute a default or an event that, with or without notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute a default under, result in
the termination or acceleration of or create in any party a right of termination, cancellation, acceleration, modification, purchase
or sale under, any Material Contract or Permit to which Affinity is a party or by which Affinity or the Purchased Assets are bound
or affected;
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(d)    result in the creation or imposition of any Encumbrance on the Purchased Assets; or

(e)    require the consent, approval, Permit, Order, declaration or filing with, or notice to, any Governmental
Authority by or with respect to Affinity.

Section 4.04    Financial Statements.

(a)    Affinity has provided Buyer with complete and correct copies of the audited consolidated financial
statements consisting of the balance sheet of Affinity as at December 31st in each of the 2019, 2018 and 2017 fiscal years and the
related statements of income and cash flow, including the notes thereto, and schedules thereto, accompanied by the reports
thereon of Affinity’s independent auditors for the years then ended (the “Audited Financial Statements”), and unaudited
consolidated financial statements consisting of the balance sheet of Affinity as at May 31, 2020 and the related statements of
income and cash flow for the five-month period then ended (the “Interim Financial Statements” and together with the Audited
Financial Statements, the “Financial Statements”). The Financial Statements have been prepared from the books and records of
Affinity and have been prepared in accordance with GAAP applied on a consistent basis throughout the period involved, subject,
in the case of the Interim Financial Statements, to normal and recurring year-end adjustments (none of which year-end
adjustments would, alone or in the aggregate, be material) and the absence of notes. The Financial Statements fairly and
accurately present in all material respects the consolidated financial condition of Affinity as of the respective dates they were
prepared and the results of the operations and cash flows of Affinity for the periods indicated. The balance sheet of Affinity as of
May 31, 2020 is referred to herein as the “Balance Sheet” and the date thereof as the “Balance Sheet Date”. Affinity has also
delivered to Buyer copies of Affinity’s 2018 and 2019 quarterly and annual MMCORs, as filed with DOH, which have been
prepared in accordance with SAP consistently applied and fairly present the financial position of Affinity as of such dates and the
results of operations for such periods to the extent required by SAP.

(b)    Except as set forth in Section 4.04(b) of the Disclosure Schedules, Affinity does not have any Liabilities,
except for (i) Liabilities specifically disclosed, and adequately reflected in or reserved against in the Balance Sheet, (ii) Liabilities
arising from executory obligations under Contracts to which Affinity or any of its assets may be bound that were entered into in
the ordinary course of business, other than any such Liabilities resulting from a breach of such Contracts, (iii) Liabilities which
have arisen in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice since the Balance Sheet Date, none of which is a
material Liability arising from a breach of contract, breach of warranty, tort, infringement, action or a violation of Law, and (iv)
Liabilities under this Agreement.

(c)    Affinity maintains, and during the last three (3) years has maintained, systems of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide reasonable assurances regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with SAP in all material respects, including but not limited to internal accounting
controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that: (i) transactions are executed in accordance with management’s general or
specific authorization; (ii) transactions are recorded as
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necessary to permit the preparation of financial statements of Affinity in conformity with SAP and maintain accountability for
assets; and (iii) the recorded accountability for assets is maintained at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with
respect to any differences. During the last three (3) years, (A) no written or, to Affinity’s Knowledge, verbal complaints from any
source outside Affinity regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters relating to Affinity, and (B) no
concerns, charges, or complaints from any employees of Affinity regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters relating
to Affinity, have been received by Affinity or members of the management of Affinity.

(d)    The accounts receivable and other receivables reflected on the Audited Financial Statements, and those
arising in the ordinary course of business after the date thereof, (i) are calculated in accordance with SAP, (ii) are valid
receivables that have arisen from bona fide transactions in the ordinary course of business, (iii) to the Knowledge of Affinity, are
not subject to any counterclaims, setoffs, adjustments, defenses, security interests or Encumbrances, other than Permitted
Encumbrances, and (iv) have not been factored or sold.

(e)    Other than the Indebtedness as set forth in Section 4.04(e) of the Disclosure Schedules, Affinity has no
other outstanding Indebtedness.

Section 4.05    Absence of Certain Changes, Events and Conditions. Except as set forth in Section 4.05 of the
Disclosure Schedules, or otherwise contemplated by this Agreement, during the period since the Balance Sheet Date, Affinity
has operated the Business in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and there has not been, with respect to
the Business or the Purchased Assets, any:

(a)    event, occurrence or development that has had, or could reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse
Effect;

(b)    incurrence of any Indebtedness or the making of any loans, advances or guarantees, in each case, having an
aggregate principal amount outstanding any time greater than Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000), except in the ordinary course of
business consistent with past practice;

(c)    imposition of any Encumbrance upon any of the Purchased Assets, except for Permitted Encumbrances;

(d)    material increase in the compensation payable by Affinity (or for which Affinity may have any liability) to
any Provider except as set forth in writing in a Provider Contract;

(e)    adoption of any plan of merger, consolidation, reorganization, liquidation or dissolution or filing of a petition
in bankruptcy under any provisions of federal or state bankruptcy Law or consent to the filing of any bankruptcy petition against
it under any similar Law;
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(f)    purchase or other acquisition (by merger, exchange, consolidation, acquisition of stock or assets or
otherwise), or sale, lease or disposal, of any property, material asset, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability
company or other business organization or division, or assets thereof, in each case, as would be material to Affinity and the
Business, taken as a whole, other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(g)    (i) amendment, waiver, modification or consent to the termination of any Material Contract, or amendment,
waiver, modification or consent to the termination of Affinity’s rights thereunder other than in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice or (ii) entry into any Material Contract in connection with the Business or the Purchased Assets
other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(h)    receipt of any communications or reports or any notifications from a Payor regarding an adverse change to
any material Payor Contract except for changes applicable to all similarly situated plans, and except for renewal or extension
negotiations with Payor in the ordinary course of business consistent with its past practice;

(i)    payment, discharge or satisfaction of any material claim or Liability relating to the Business or the Purchased
Assets, other than the payment, discharge or satisfaction, in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, of
Liabilities reflected or reserved against on the Balance Sheet or subsequently incurred in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice;

(j)    material increase in the compensation or benefits of any employee of Affinity or the Business, or adoption,
implementation, termination, modification, or amendment of any Affinity Employee Plan, in each case other than in the ordinary
course of business consistent with past practice;

(k)    lapse of any existing policy of insurance material to the Business or the Purchased Assets, taken as a whole;

(l)    acceleration of the collection of or discounting of any accounts receivable and other receivables reflected on
the Audited Financial Statements, delay in the payment of Liabilities that would become Assumed Liabilities or deferment of
expenses, or other increase in the cash on hand in connection with the Business, except in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice;

(m)    commencement or settlement of any Action material to the Business, the Purchased Assets or the Assumed
Liabilities, except for settlements of Actions or potential Actions in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice
and so long as such settlement will not create any material obligation on behalf of Buyer at Closing;

(n)    conclusion of or agreement to any corrective action plans, consents, decrees, actions or Orders material to the
Business or the Purchased Assets, other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice; or

- 31 -



(o)    commitment or agreement to do any of the foregoing, or any action or omission that would result in any of
the foregoing.

Section 4.06    Material Contracts.

(a)    Section 4.06(a) of the Disclosure Schedules contains a true and complete list and description of all Material
Contracts, excluding the Provider Contracts (disclosure of which shall be governed solely by Section 4.07 below) and Payor
Contracts (disclosure of which shall be governed solely by Section 4.06(b) below), that includes the name of the contracting
parties, the name of the Material Contract and the date of the Material Contract and all amendments or modifications to it, except
for immaterial schedules, exhibits or modifications that do not have, individually or in the aggregate, a material impact on such
Material Contract. Affinity has delivered or made available to Buyer accurate and complete copies of all Material Contracts and
other Contracts, including all amendments, waivers or changes thereto. Except as set forth on Section 4.06(a) of the Disclosure
Schedules, all such Material Contracts are in full force and effect and are the valid and binding obligations of Affinity,
enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, except that (i) such enforcement may be subject to applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar Laws, now or hereafter in effect, affecting creditors’ rights generally, and
(ii) the remedy of specific performance and injunctive and other forms of equitable relief may be subject to equitable defenses
and to the discretion of the court before which any proceeding therefore may be brought. Affinity is not in default of or breach
under (or is alleged in writing to be in breach of or default under) the observance or the performance of any term or obligation to
be performed by it under any Material Contract if such breach would result in a Material Adverse Effect. To Affinity’s
Knowledge, no event or circumstance has occurred that, with notice or lapse of time or both, would result in a breach of or
constitute an event of default under any Material Contract or result in a termination thereof or would cause or permit the
acceleration or other changes of any right or obligation or the loss of any benefit thereunder, in each case, that is, individually or
in the aggregate, material to Affinity and the Business.

(b)    All of Affinity’s Contracts with Payor are listed and described on Section 4.06(b) of the Disclosure
Schedules and accurate and complete copies of such have been made available to Buyer.

Section 4.07    Provider Contracts.

(a)    Section 4.07(a) of the Disclosure Schedules contains a true and complete list of the top forty (40) Providers
for Affinity based on aggregate payments made by Affinity to such Providers for the period January 1, 2019 to December 31,
2019 (the “Key Providers”). Affinity has in place a written Provider Contract with each such Provider that is currently in effect.
Except as set forth on Section 4.07(a) of the Disclosure Schedules, Affinity has delivered or made available to Buyer complete
copies of all Provider Contracts with the Key Providers, including all amendments, waivers or changes thereto.

(b)    Except as set forth on Section 4.07(b) of the Disclosure Schedules, since December 31, 2019 no Provider
reflected on Section 4.07(a) of the Disclosure Schedules has
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given written notice to Affinity of a termination of its relationship with Affinity, no Provider Contract with a Key Provider has
changed in its essential commercial terms, no Key Provider has materially altered the aggregate amount of provider claims it
submits to Affinity except in the ordinary course of business, and no Key Provider has otherwise notified Affinity that it intends
to terminate its business relationship with Affinity.

(c)    During the current term of each applicable Provider Contract, Affinity has compensated and currently
compensates each Provider for services to Enrollees in accordance with the rates and fees set forth in the applicable Provider
Contract. Except as set forth on Section 4.07(c)(i) of the Disclosure Schedules, Affinity has in place a written Provider Contract
with each Provider that is currently in effect. Except as set forth on Section 4.07(c)(i)(ii) of the Disclosure Schedules, there are
no renegotiations, attempts to renegotiate or outstanding rights to negotiate any material amount to be paid or payable to or by
Affinity under any Provider Contract other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with the past practices of Affinity.

Section 4.08    Title to and Sufficiency of Purchased Assets; Leased Real Property.

(a)    Affinity has good and marketable title to, a valid leasehold interest in, or a valid license to use all of the
Purchased Assets (whether tangible or intangible), free and clear of all Encumbrances except for Permitted Encumbrances. After
giving effect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents, except as set forth on
Section 4.08(a) of the Disclosure Schedules, the Purchased Assets constitute all assets, services, properties, goodwill and rights
(including intellectual property rights) that (i) were used in the Business immediately prior to the Closing and (ii) are sufficient to
operate the Business following the Closing in the same manner as the Business is operated as of the date hereof and immediately
prior to the Closing.

(b)    Section 4.08(b) of the Disclosure Schedules sets forth all real property leased, licensed or occupied by
Affinity and used in connection with the Business (collectively, the “Leased Real Property”), and a list, as of the date of this
Agreement, of all leases, licenses and occupancy agreements for each Leased Real Property (collectively, the “Real Property
Leases”). The Real Property Leases constitute valid leasehold interests, are valid and binding on Affinity, and are in full force
and effect. To Affinity’s Knowledge, there are no contractual or legal restrictions that preclude or restrict the ability of Affinity to
use the Leased Real Property for the purposes for which they are currently being used. Affinity hereby represents and warrants
Affinity does not own a fee interest in any real property. The Leased Real Property is adequate and suitable for the purposes for
which it is presently being used and Affinity has adequate rights of ingress and egress into and from each Leased Real Property
as is necessary for the operation of the Business as it is currently conducted by Affinity in the ordinary course of business.
Affinity has not subleased, licensed or otherwise granted to any Person the right to use or occupy any portion of the Leased Real
Property.
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Section 4.09    Intellectual Property; Claims.

(a)    Affinity owns (or has the right to use pursuant to an Assigned Contract) all Business Intellectual Property
free and clear of any Encumbrances other than Permitted Encumbrances. As of the date of this Agreement, the Registered
Intellectual Property (i) is owned by Affinity, (ii) is subsisting, in full force and effect, and to Affinity’s Knowledge valid and (iii)
has not expired, or, to Affinity’s Knowledge been cancelled, or abandoned, as applicable. The Business Intellectual Property
constitutes all of the Intellectual Property necessary for the conduct of the Business as currently conducted.

(b)    To the Knowledge of Affinity, the conduct of the Business as currently conducted and as has been conducted
for the past three (3) years does not and has not infringe(d), misappropriate(d) or otherwise violate(d) the Intellectual Property
rights of any Person, nor does the Purchased Intellectual Property owned by Affinity nor Affinity’s products or services, infringe,
misappropriate or violate any Intellectual Property rights of any Person. Affinity has not received any written or, to Affinity’s
Knowledge, oral offer of a license or complaint, claim, demand or notice (i) alleging or implying that it has infringed or
misappropriated any Intellectual Property rights of any third party or, with the giving of notice or lapse of time or both, would be
infringing or misappropriating any such rights (including any claim that Affinity must license or refrain from using any
Intellectual Property rights of any third party), or (ii) contesting or seeking to deny or restrict or otherwise concerning the
validity, use, ownership, registrability or enforceability of any Business Intellectual Property. To Affinity’s Knowledge, no Person
is infringing, misappropriating or otherwise violating or has infringed, misappropriated or otherwise violated any Purchased
Intellectual Property, and no such claims have been made by Affinity.

(c)    Section 4.09(c) of the Disclosure Schedules sets forth a complete and accurate list of all Registered
Intellectual Property, indicating for each such item the registration or application number and the applicable filing jurisdiction,
and the date of expiration. Except as set forth on Section 4.09(c) of the Disclosure Schedules, there are no deadlines falling
within ninety (90) days of the Closing Date related to (i) registration, maintenance or renewal fees with respect to the Registered
Intellectual Property or (ii) the filing of any documents, applications or certificates (including responses to office actions) or
payment of fees that are required to maintain any of the Registered Intellectual Property.

(d)    Section 4.09(d) of the Disclosure Schedules identifies each item of Licensed Intellectual Property, other
than commercially available “off the shelf” Software that has not been modified or customized for use by Affinity, and lists all
Contracts pertaining to Licensed Intellectual Property. Affinity has made available to Buyer correct and complete copies of all
Contracts pursuant to which Affinity has received the right to use such Licensed Intellectual Property (as amended to date).

(e)    Section 4.09(e) of the Disclosure Schedules lists all Contracts pursuant to which Affinity has granted any
license or option to any third party with respect to any Business Intellectual Property. With respect to each Contract listed on
Section 4.09(d) or Section 4.09(e) of the Disclosure Schedules, neither Affinity nor any other party thereto is in material breach
or
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default of, or has repudiated, any provision of the Contract. All such Contracts shall be deemed “Assigned Contracts” for
purposes of this Agreement.

(f)    Affinity has taken commercially reasonable actions consistent at least with industry-standard practice to
protect (i) the confidentiality, integrity and security of all trade secrets and confidential information stored or contained in the
Business Intellectual Property or transmitted thereby from any unauthorized use, access, destruction or modification, and to
Affinity’s Knowledge no such use, access, destruction or modification has occurred, and (ii) its rights in the Purchased
Intellectual Property owned by Affinity.

(g)    Affinity has sufficient rights to use all Software, middleware and systems, information technology
equipment, and associated documentation used or held for use in connection with the operation of the Business (the “Business IT
Assets”). The Business IT Assets have not malfunctioned or failed in the past three (3) years, except for malfunctions or failures
that would not reasonably be expected, individually or in the aggregate, to have a Material Adverse Effect. Affinity has taken
commercially reasonable steps to provide for the backup and recovery of data and information and has taken commercially
reasonable steps to implement such plans and procedures. During the last 12 months, (A) there has not been any failure,
breakdown or continued substandard performance, introduction of any malware, viruses, ransomware, bugs or other malicious
codes affecting any of the Business IT Assets of Affinity that have caused any disruption or interruption in any of such Business
IT Assets, except, in each case, as would not reasonably be expected to be material to Affinity and the Business; (B) there have
been no privacy or data security breaches (including ransomware or a cyber-attack) resulting in the unauthorized access,
acquisition, exfiltration, manipulation, erasure, use, intrusion, or disclosure of any sensitive data or that triggered any reporting
requirement under any breach notification Law or Contract provision, except, in each case, as would not reasonably be expected
to be material to Affinity and the Business, and (C) to the Knowledge of Affinity, no service provider (in the course of providing
services for or on behalf of Affinity) has suffered any privacy or data security breach that resulted in the unauthorized access,
acquisition, exfiltration, manipulation, erasure, use, or disclosure of Affinity’s sensitive data, except, in each case, as would not
reasonably be expected to be material to Affinity and the Business. Affinity has established, implemented, and maintains
cybersecurity policies, programs and procedures that are in compliance with any applicable Law, applicable industry
requirements, and Affinity’s obligations under any Contracts, including reasonable and appropriate administrative, technical and
physical safeguards, and disaster recovery, business continuity, and incident response plans, designed to protect the
confidentiality, integrity, availability and security of sensitive data in its possession, custody or control against unauthorized
access, use, disclosure or other misuse, and to safeguard the Business IT Assets against the risk of business disruption, except, in
each case, as would not reasonably be expected to be material to Affinity and the Business.

(h)    Except as set forth on Section 4.09(h) of the Disclosure Schedules, each item of Business Intellectual
Property will be owned, licensed and available for use by Buyer on similar terms following the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby as such items were owned, licensed and available for use to Affinity for the operation of the Business as
operated prior to the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.
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Section 4.10    Legal Proceedings; Orders.

(a)    Other than as set forth in Section 4.10(a) of the Disclosure Schedules, there are no material Actions pending
or, to Affinity’s Knowledge, threatened against (including by any Governmental Authority) or by Affinity (i) relating to or
affecting the Business, the Purchased Assets or the Assumed Liabilities; or (ii) that challenge or seek to prevent, enjoin, restrain,
prohibit or otherwise delay the execution and delivery by Affinity of this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby.

(b)    Other than as set forth in Section 4.10(b) of the Disclosure Schedules, there are no outstanding Orders or
consent decrees or other similar agreements, and no such Order or consent decree or other similar agreement is, to Affinity’s
Knowledge, threatened, and there are no unsatisfied judgments, penalties or awards against, relating to or affecting the Business,
the Purchased Assets or the Assumed Liabilities. Affinity is not subject to any outstanding Order which would reasonably be
expected to have a material adverse effect on the ability of Affinity to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. Other
than as set forth in Section 4.10(b) of the Disclosure Schedules Affinity has not received written notice of, and for the past six
(6) years Affinity has not received written notice of any Claim pending (or, to Affinity’s Knowledge, threatened) related to
Affinity that would be material to the Business and the Purchased Assets, taken as a whole, or that would reasonably be expected
to prevent, impair or hinder Affinity from complying with its obligations hereunder.

Section 4.11    Compliance With Laws.

(a)    Nothing in this Section shall apply to Affinity’s compliance with HIPAA or any other Information Privacy
and Security Laws, which shall be exclusively addressed in and governed by Section 4.12 below. Other than as set forth in
Section 4.11(a) of the Disclosure Schedules, Affinity is, and for the past six (6) years has been, in compliance in all material
respects with all Laws and Orders applicable to the conduct of the Business or the ownership and use of the Purchased Assets.
Neither Affinity, nor any of its officers or directors has, within the past six (6) years, received any written notice, Order,
complaint, claim, investigation or other written communication from any Governmental Authority or any other Person regarding
any actual or alleged material violation of any Law or Order applicable to Affinity. No Governmental Authority has instituted,
implemented, taken or threatened in writing to take, and to the Knowledge of Affinity, no Governmental Authority intends to
take, any other action the effect of which, individually or in the aggregate, would be reasonably expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect.

(b)    All Permits required for Affinity to conduct the Business or for the ownership and use of the Purchased
Assets have been duly obtained by Affinity and are valid and in full force and effect. Section 4.11(b) of the Disclosure
Schedules sets forth a complete and correct list of all material Permits that are necessary for Affinity to conduct the Business or
for the ownership and use of the Purchased Assets, including the names of the Permits and their respective dates of issuance and
expiration. Affinity is and has been in compliance in all material respects with such Permits and no event has occurred or
circumstances exist that (with or without the lapse of time or the giving of notice, including as a result of the transactions
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contemplated by this Agreement) would reasonably be expected to constitute or result in Affinity’s material failure, default or
violation under any of their respective Permits, or that could reasonably be expected to result in any material loss, expiration, or
termination of any such Permit, and there are no Actions pending or, to the Knowledge of Affinity, threatened in writing relating
to the suspension, failure to renew, revocation, withdrawal, penalty, payment, fine or modification of any of the Permits. All such
Permits are in full force and effect and have not been revoked. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will not adversely affect, in any material respect, any such Permits or
result in the revocation, cancellation, suspension or modification, in any material respect, of any such Permits. Except as
otherwise disclosed in Section 4.11(b) of the Disclosure Schedules, all such Permits shall be available for use by Buyer
immediately after the Closing, in each case, to the same extent such Permits were available for use by Affinity immediately prior
to the Closing.

(c)    Neither Affinity, any officer of Affinity nor, to the Knowledge of Affinity, any director, employee or agent of
Affinity, in each case acting in their capacity thereof, have (i) offered, authorized, promised, made or agreed to make gifts of
money, other property or similar benefits or contributions (other than incidental gifts or articles of nominal value) to any actual or
potential customer, provider, supplier, governmental employee, Governmental Authority or other Person in a position to assist or
hinder Affinity in connection with any actual or proposed transaction or to any political party, political party official or candidate
for federal, state or local public office in violation of any Law or (ii) maintained any unrecorded fund or asset of Affinity for any
improper purpose or made any intentional false entries on its books and records for any reason. No person while serving as an
officer or director of Affinity has ever been debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from participating in any state or
federally funded health care program.

Section 4.12    HIPAA and Privacy.

(a)    Affinity operates, and for the past six (6) years has operated, the Business in compliance with the applicable
privacy, security, transaction standards, breach notification, and other provisions and requirements of HIPAA except where any
violation or failure to comply would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse
Effect. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Affinity has executed business associate agreements meeting all
requirements set forth in the HIPAA privacy, security and breach notification regulations with all contractors that meet the
definition of a business associate under HIPAA. Affinity has established and implemented such policies, programs, procedures,
contracts and systems as are necessary to comply in all respects with Information Privacy and Security Laws, except where any
violation or failure to comply with such Information Privacy and Security Laws has not had, and would not reasonably be
expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect. Affinity is not subject to a corporate integrity
agreement, consent order or similar agreement with any Governmental Authority.

(b)    Affinity’s receipt, collection, monitoring, maintenance, creation, transmission, use, analysis, disclosure,
storage, disposal and security of Personal Information
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has, for the past six (6) years, complied, and complies, in all material respects, with (i) any Contracts to which Affinity is party,
(ii) applicable Information Privacy and Security Laws, (iii) if applicable, PCI DSS, and (iv) all consents and authorizations that
apply to Affinity’s receipt, access, use and disclosure of Personal Information. Affinity has all necessary authority, consents and
authorizations to receive, access, use and disclose the Personal Information in Affinity’s possession or under its control in
connection with the operation of the Business.

(c)    For the past six (6) years Affinity has, in all material respects, protected the confidentiality, integrity and
security of its Personal Information and IT Assets against any unauthorized control, use, access, interruption, modification or
corruption in conformance with Information Privacy and Security Laws.

(d)    Except as set forth on Section 4.12(d) of the Disclosure Schedules, for the past six (6) years there has been
no data security breach or unauthorized access, control, use, modification or destruction of any IT Asset, or unauthorized access,
use, acquisition or disclosure of any Personal Information owned, used, stored, received, or controlled by or on behalf of Affinity,
including any unauthorized access, use or disclosure of Personal Information that would constitute a breach for which notification
to individuals and/or Governmental Authorities is required under any applicable Information Privacy and Security Laws or
Contracts to which Affinity is a party.

(e)    Affinity is not subject to any Orders, nor are any Orders pending or, to the Knowledge of Affinity, threatened
against Affinity or its “workforce” (as defined under HIPAA) regarding or relating to Affinity’s processing of Personal
Information.

(f)    The (i) collection, storage, processing, transfer, sharing and destruction of Personal Information in connection
with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (ii) execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the
other agreements and instruments contemplated hereby and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby complies with Affinity’s applicable privacy notices and policies and with all applicable Information Privacy and Security
Laws. Affinity has the right to assign to Buyer, and Buyer shall have the right to possess and use following the Closing, all
Personal Information as used or held for use by Affinity in the Business prior to the Closing.

(g)    For the past six (6) years Affinity has performed a security risk assessment no less frequently than annually
that meets (i) the standards set forth at 45 C.F.R. § 164.308(a)(1)(ii)(A), including an assessment as described at 45 C.F.R. §
164.306(d)(3), taking into account factors set forth in 45 C.F.R. § 164.306(a)–(c); (ii) to the extent applicable, the requirements of
the PCI DSS; (iii) any requirements to perform security assessments under any Information Privacy and Security Law; and
(iv) any obligations to perform security assessments set forth in any Contracts to which Affinity is party and has addressed all
threats and deficiencies identified therein.

(h)    Limitations. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the representations and
warranties set forth above in this Section 4.12 shall constitute the sole and exclusive representations and warranties made by
Affinity with respect to HIPAA
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and Information Privacy and Security Law matters, and no other representation or warranty contained in any other section of this
Agreement shall be deemed to be made with respect to HIPAA and Information Privacy and Security Law matters.

Section 4.13    Employment and Benefits Matters.

(a)    As of the date hereof, Affinity has provided, for each employee of Affinity, the following: (i) name; (ii) title
or position (including whether full or part time); (iii) hire date; (iv) current annual base compensation rate; (v) commission, bonus
or other incentive-based compensation; (vi) employing entity; (vii) current active/leave status and the type of leave (e.g., short-
term disability, long-term disability, military); and (viii) exempt or non-exempt status, to be updated following the date hereof
upon reasonable request of Buyer.

(b)    Affinity is not a party to, bound by, or negotiating any collective bargaining agreement or other Contract with
a union, works council or labor organization (collectively, “Union”), and there is not any Union representing or purporting to
represent any employee of Affinity, and, to Affinity’s Knowledge, no Union or group of employees is seeking or has sought to
organize employees for the purpose of collective bargaining. There has never been, nor to Affinity’s Knowledge, has there been
any threat of, any strike, slowdown, work stoppage, lockout, concerted refusal to work overtime or other similar labor disruption
or dispute affecting Affinity or any employees of the Business.

(c)    Affinity is, and for the past six (6) years has been, in compliance in all material respects with all applicable
Laws regarding employment and employment practices (including anti-discrimination), terms and conditions of employment and
wages and hours (including classification of employees and independent contractors, and equal pay practices) and other laws in
respect of any reduction in force (including notice, information and consultation requirements).

(d)    Affinity has not received notice of any pending or, to Affinity’s Knowledge, threatened (i) unfair labor
practice charge or complaint against Affinity before the National Labor Relations Board or any similar state or local agency
relating to an alleged violation or breach of any Laws or (ii) Action against Affinity concerning employment-related matters,
employees of Affinity, or violation of any Laws regarding employment and employment practices or breach of any contractual
obligations.

(e)    There are no Actions, including audits, requests for information, investigations, complaints, charges, or
claims with respect to any regular or leased employee, consultant, or independent contractor of Affinity pending with or
threatened in writing by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the Department of Labor, the Internal Revenue
Service, the National Labor Relations Board, or any other Governmental Authority.

(f)    Section 4.13(f) of the Disclosure Schedules contains a list of each Affinity Employee Plan. With respect to
each Affinity Employee Plan, Affinity has furnished or made available to Buyer true and complete copies of the governing plan
document and amendments thereto and, as applicable, (i) the trust agreement or other governing document for
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any related funding vehicle, (ii) the current summary plan description and any related summary of material modifications, or (iii)
any written notices or other written material correspondence with any Governmental Authority.

(g)    Each Affinity Employee Plan and related trust or other funding vehicle has been established, administered,
funded and maintained in all material respects in accordance with its terms and in compliance in all material respects with
applicable Law. All contributions, benefit payments and premium deposits or payments required to be made by Affinity under the
Affinity Employee Plans have been made or paid by the due date thereof, and all contributions, benefit payments and premium
deposits or payments that have accrued but have not been made or paid because they are not yet due have been properly accrued
in the Financial Statements. No claims, investigations or other proceedings (other than routine claims for benefits in the ordinary
course of business) are pending or, to the Knowledge of Affinity, threatened against or with respect to any Affinity Employee
Plan.

(h)    In the last six (6) years, Affinity has not participated in, maintained or been liable for contributions to, nor
does Affinity have any Liability, contingent or otherwise, pursuant to Title IV of ERISA or otherwise with respect to a plan that is
a “pension plan” (within the meaning of Section 3(2) of ERISA) that is or was subject to Section 412 of the Code or Section 302
or Title IV of ERISA or that is or was a “multiemployer plan” (within the meaning of Section 3(37) of ERISA).

(i)    No Encumbrance has been imposed on the Purchased Assets pursuant to Section 302, 303 or Title IV of
ERISA or Section 412 or 430 of the Code and no fact exists that would reasonably be expected to give rise to any such
Encumbrance. Other than as required by Section 4980B of the Code or other similar applicable Law, no Affinity Employee Plan
provides benefits or coverage in the nature of health, life or disability insurance following retirement or other termination of
employment (other than death benefits when termination occurs upon death).

(j)    Except as set forth on the AEP Schedule, neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement nor the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will (either alone or in conjunction with any other event) result in the
acceleration of vesting or payment, trigger any payment or funding, or increase the amount or value of any compensation,
payment or benefits (including severance and unemployment compensation) to any current or former employee or consultant of
Affinity.

(k)    No provision of a benefit, acceleration, or amount to be paid with respect to any current or former employee
of, or consultant to, Affinity, would individually or in the aggregate, whether alone or in combination with any other event, (i)
result in “excess parachute payments” within the meaning of Section 280G(b) of the Code; or (ii) require a “gross-up” or other
payment to any “disqualified individual” within the meaning of Section 280G(c) of the Code.
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(l)    All employees of the Business are located within the United States. No Affinity Employee Plan (i) was
established or is maintained outside of the United States, or (ii) is subject to the Laws of any jurisdiction outside of the United
States.

(m)    No Affinity Employee Plan or other contract, plan, program, agreement or arrangement provides for retiree
medical or welfare benefits to any current or former employees of the Business.

(n)    Each Affinity Employee Plan or other contract, plan, program, agreement or arrangement that is a
“nonqualified deferred compensation plan” (within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code) has (i) been maintained and
operated in compliance with Section 409A of the Code and all applicable Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder so as to
avoid any Tax, penalty or interest under Section 409A of the Code, and (ii) been in documentary and operational compliance with
Section 409A of the Code and all applicable Internal Revenue Service guidance promulgated thereunder.

Section 4.14    Taxes.

(a)    All Tax Returns required to be filed by Affinity or otherwise in respect of the Business or the Purchased
Assets have been timely filed. Such Tax Returns are true, complete and correct in all material respects. All Taxes due and owing
by Affinity or otherwise in respect of the Business or the Purchased Assets (whether or not shown on any Tax Return) have been
or will be timely paid.

(b)    There are no pending or threatened audits, investigations, disputes, notices of deficiency, claims or other
Actions for or relating to any Taxes of Affinity or otherwise in respect of the Business or the Purchased Assets. Affinity has not
waived any statute of limitations in respect of Taxes or agreed to any extension of time with respect to a Tax assessment or
deficiency that has not been resolved.

(c)    There are no Encumbrances for Taxes upon any of the Purchased Assets other than Permitted Encumbrances.

(d)    Affinity is not a “foreign person” as that term is used in Treasury Regulations Section 1.1445-2.

(e)    Affinity is exempt from tax within the meaning of Code section 501(a) and is an organization described in
Code section 501(c)(3).

(f)    The IRS has not revoked Affinity’s status as an organization exempt from tax under Code section 501(c)(3)
by ruling letter or otherwise.

(g)    Affinity has not participated in any “reportable transaction” within the meaning of Treasury Regulation
Section 1.6011-4.
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(h)    No claim has been made or threatened in writing by a taxing authority in a jurisdiction where Affinity has not
filed a Tax Return asserting that Affinity is or may be subject to Taxes imposed by that jurisdiction.

(i)    Affinity has properly and timely paid to the appropriate taxing authorities all payroll, unemployment and
similar Taxes due on or before the Closing Date and has properly withheld and timely paid to the appropriate taxing authorities
all other Taxes required to have been withheld and paid in connection with amounts paid or owing to any employee, independent
contractor, creditor, stockholder, or other third party with respect to the Business and the Purchased Assets, and has complied
with all information reporting, backup withholding and Tax Return requirements, including maintenance of required records with
respect thereto, in connection with any such amounts.

Section 4.15    Brokers. No broker, finder, investment banker or similar intermediary is entitled to any brokerage, finder’s
or other fee or commission or similar compensation in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or any
other Transaction Document based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of Affinity, other than as set forth in Section 4.15 of
the Disclosure Schedules.

Section 4.16    Health Care Matters.

(a)    Compliance with Health Care Laws. (i) The Business operations of Affinity (including its form and rate
filing, reserving, marketing, investment, financial, claims, taxation, underwriting, premium collection and refunding, securities
compliance and other practices, if applicable) are, and for the past six (6) years have been, operated in compliance in all material
respects with all applicable Laws, (ii) other than as set forth in Section 4.16(a)(ii) of the Disclosure Schedules, Affinity is not,
and has not, been in the past six (6) years, in material violation of any of the provisions of applicable New York Law with respect
to managed care organizations, and (iii) neither Affinity nor any Person acting on behalf of Affinity has violated or has incurred
any Liability under (A) any federal or state fraud and abuse Laws, including the Stark Law (42 U.S.C. §1395nn), the civil False
Claims Act (31 U.S.C. §3729 et seq.), Sections 1320a-7a and 1320a-7b of Title 42 of the United States Code, (B) Medicare (Title
XVIII of the Social Security Act), (C) Medicaid (Title XIX of the Social Security Act), (D) any prompt pay Laws, (E) any
quality, safety or accreditation standards, (F) any applicable licensure Laws or regulations, or (G) any other applicable health care
Law.

(b)    Debarment and Suspension. Neither Affinity nor any officer, director or current employee of Affinity has
ever been debarred, suspended or otherwise excluded from participating in any state or federally funded health care program.
Affinity has not, and, to its Knowledge, its employees have not, engaged in any conduct which could result in debarment or
disqualification by any Governmental Authority, and there are no proceedings pending or, to Affinity’s Knowledge, threatened
that could reasonably be expected to result in criminal liability, debarment or disqualification by any Governmental Authority.
Affinity is in good standing with, and not excluded or suspended from participation in, or limited in its right to participate in any
Federal Health Care Program or any state or local government health care programs.
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(c)    Regulatory Filings. For the past six (6) years Affinity has timely filed (taking into account permitted
extensions timely obtained, if any) all material regulatory reports, schedules, statements, documents, filings, submissions, forms,
registrations and other documents, together with any amendments required to be made with respect thereto, that each was
required to file with any Governmental Authority (“Regulatory Filings”). All such Regulatory Filings are accurate and complete
in all material respects. For the past six (6) years Affinity has timely paid (taking into account permitted extensions timely
obtained, if any) all fees and assessments due and payable in connection therewith, including the assessments required under the
New York Health Care Reform Act.

(d)    Penalties Under Medicaid Programs. Affinity has not been required to pay any civil monetary penalty under
Law regarding false, fraudulent or impermissible claims under, or payments to induce a reduction or limitation of health care
services to beneficiaries of, any state health care program or Federal Health Care Program.  To the Knowledge of Affinity,
Affinity is not currently the subject of any investigation, audit or proceeding that may result in such payment. Affinity is not a
party to any corporate integrity agreement, monitoring agreement, consent decree, settlement order, or similar agreement imposed
by any Governmental Authority. Except as disclosed in Section 4.16(d) of the Disclosure Schedules, Affinity has not received
or otherwise been party to any (i) Orders, letters, communications or other notices from DOH or any other Governmental
Authority relating to Affinity’s failure to meet any of the requirements for continued participation in Federal Health Care
Programs or New York State health care programs (including any Orders, letters, communications or notices stating that
continued participation may be contingent on Affinity developing, adopting, implementing or taking any sort of corrective or
remedial actions), or (ii) corrective action plans developed by Affinity in response to or as a result of the orders, letters,
communications and notices specified in clause (i), in each case, material to Affinity and the Business.

(e)    Recoupment Proceedings. There are no material recoupments, adjustments or recovery proceedings of any
Payor being sought, requested, claimed or threatened against Affinity. Other than set forth in Section 4.16(e) of the Disclosure
Schedules, for the past six (6) years, neither Affinity nor any officers or directors of Affinity has received, or has been the subject
of, any audit, inquiry, or investigation that requires, or could reasonably be expected to require, the payment of money by Affinity
to any Governmental Authority, or requires or prohibits any activity by Affinity, other than routine reconciliations of eligibility,
enrollments and disenrollments, including those conducted by the New York State Medicaid Inspector General, and any
associated recoupments (e.g., audits of incarcerated or deceased Enrollees) (“Routine Reconciliations”). Any and all Routine
Reconciliations of which Affinity has Knowledge and for which Affinity has not made repayment in full of the resulting Liability
to the applicable Governmental Authority are set forth Section 4.16(e) of the Disclosure Schedules. There are no claims,
Actions, payment reviews, or other proceedings of which Affinity has received written notice, or, to Affinity’s Knowledge,
appeals pending or threatened, before any Governmental Authority with respect to any payments received by Affinity, which
could have a Material Adverse Effect, either individually or in the aggregate.
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(f)    Marketing. Affinity’s marketing staff has not violated laws applicable to the marketing or enrollment of
Affinity’s health plans in any material respect.  The compensation payable by Affinity to its marketing staff complies in all
material respects with applicable Laws.

(g)    Compliance Program. Affinity has implemented a corporate compliance program which meets all applicable
legal requirements in all material respects and staff to oversee the functioning of its corporate compliance program.  As part of its
corporate compliance program, Affinity has implemented administrative processes, policies and procedures that are reasonably
designed to ensure that Affinity remains in compliance with health care Laws applicable to Affinity’s Business in all material
respects.  Affinity has in place a process to regularly check all applicable Federal Health Care Program or state health care
program exclusion and debarment lists to determine whether any of the following are an Ineligible Person: Affinity, its officers,
directors, managers, employees, and providers of services and any contracted vendor or agent that provides health care related
services to Affinity.  Neither Affinity nor, to the Knowledge of Affinity, any of these individuals or companies is an Ineligible
Person who have been excluded or otherwise debarred from any Federal Health Care Program or other governmental health care
programs.

(h)    Other than as set forth in Section 4.16(h) of the Disclosure Schedules, Affinity has at all times complied
with the requirements of New York State Executive Order 38 and has timely satisfied applicable reporting obligations and waiver
requests thereunder.

(i)    Duly Licensed Employees. Each employee of Affinity that is required to be licensed in connection with his or
her employment holds a valid and unrestricted license to practice his or her profession in New York.

Section 4.17    Related Party Transactions. Other than this Agreement or pursuant to any Affinity Employee Plan listed
in Section 4.13(f) of the Disclosure Schedules, no direct or indirect member, director or officer of Affinity, nor any Subsidiary
or Affiliate of any such direct or indirect member, director or officer, nor any Affiliate of Affinity, nor any FQHC Member, has
any interest in any property or assets owned by Affinity, or has in the past three (3) years engaged in any transaction with or is
currently directly or indirectly a party to any Contract with Affinity, including any agreement, arrangement or understanding,
written or oral, providing for the employment of, furnishing of services by, rental of real or personal property from or otherwise
requiring payment to any such Person.

Section 4.18    Environmental Matters. The Business, and Affinity with respect to the Business and the Purchased
Assets, are in compliance, and for the past six (6) years have complied, with applicable Environmental Laws in all material
respects. Except as would not reasonably be expected to result in material Liability, Affinity, with respect to the Business and the
Purchased Assets, has not caused a Release, and to the Knowledge of Affinity, there has been no Release at, on, under or from the
Leased Real Property. Affinity has made available to Buyer copies of all material environmental assessments, reports, audits and
other material documents in its possession or under its control that relate to the compliance of the operations of the Business and
Purchased Assets with Environmental Laws or the environmental condition of any real
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property currently or formerly owned, operated or leased with respect to the Business and Purchased Assets.

Section 4.19    Insurance Coverage. Set forth in Section 4.19 of the Disclosure Schedules is a complete list of all
material insurance policies and fidelity bonds relating to the Purchased Assets or the Business. There are no material claims by or
on behalf of Affinity pending under any of such policies or bonds as to which coverage has been questioned, denied or disputed
by the underwriters of such policies or bonds or in respect of which such underwriters have reserved their rights. To Affinity’s
Knowledge, each such policy and bond is a valid and binding agreement, is in full force and effect, and has not been subject to
any lapse in coverage. Since January 1, 2019, neither Affinity or, to the Knowledge of Affinity, any other party thereto is in
material default or breach in any respect under the terms of any such policy or bond. Affinity has not received any written notice
of cancellation of, material premium increase related to the Business outside the ordinary course of business with respect to, or
material alteration of coverage with respect to the Business under, any of such policies or bonds. Since January 1, 2019, all
premiums due on such policies or bonds have either been paid or, if due and payable prior to the Closing, shall be paid prior to
the Closing in accordance with the payment terms of each such policy or bond.

Section 4.20    Provider Network. Affinity has made available to Buyer a list of Providers in the Provider Network,
including (a) primary care providers identified by name, such Provider’s distinct National Provider Identifier (“NPI”) and the
number of Enrollees in each such Provider’s panels; and (b) specialist Providers identified by name and such Provider’s distinct
NPI.

ARTICLE V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BUYER

Except as set forth in the Buyer Disclosure Schedules, Buyer hereby represents and warrants to Affinity that the
statements contained in this ARTICLE V are true and correct as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date, except to the
extent that any such representation or warranty refers to a specified date, in which event such representation or warranty shall be
true and correct as of such specified date. The Buyer Disclosure Schedules have been arranged in separately numbered sections
corresponding to the Sections of this ARTICLE V; however, the disclosure of any item in any section of the Buyer Disclosure
Schedules shall be deemed to incorporate by reference all information disclosed in any other section of the Buyer Disclosure
Schedules to which the relevance of such item is reasonably apparent on its face. Capitalized terms used in the Buyer Disclosure
Schedules and not otherwise defined therein have the meanings given to them in this Agreement.

Section 5.01    Organization. Buyer is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the
Laws of the State of Delaware.

Section 5.02    Authority. Buyer has full corporate power and authority to enter into this Agreement and the other
Transaction Documents to which it is or will be a party, to carry out its obligations hereunder and thereunder and to consummate
the transactions contemplated hereby
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and thereby. The execution and delivery by Buyer of this Agreement and any other Transaction Document to which Buyer is or
will be a party, the performance by Buyer of its obligations hereunder and thereunder and the consummation by Buyer of the
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action on the part of Buyer.
This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Buyer, and (assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by
Affinity) this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Buyer, enforceable against Buyer in accordance with
its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar Laws
affecting creditors’ rights generally and by general equitable principles (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a
proceeding at law or in equity). When each other Transaction Document to which Buyer is or will be a party has been duly
executed and delivered by Buyer (assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by each other party thereto), such
Transaction Document will constitute a legal and binding obligation of Buyer enforceable against it in accordance with its terms,
except as such enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar Laws affecting
creditors’ rights generally and by general equitable principles (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding at law
or in equity).

Section 5.03    No Conflicts; Consents. Except as set forth on Section 5.03 of the Buyer Disclosure Schedules, the
execution, delivery and performance by Buyer of this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents to which it is or will be a
party, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, and performance by Buyer of the obligations
hereunder and thereunder, do not and will not:

(a)    conflict with or result in a violation or breach of, or default under, any provision of the certificate of
incorporation, by-laws or other organizational documents of Buyer;

(b)    conflict with or result in a violation or breach of any provision of any material Law or Order applicable to
Buyer;

(c)    require the consent, notice or other action by any Person under, conflict with, result in a violation or breach
of, constitute a default or an event that, with or without notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute a default under, result in
the termination or acceleration of or create in any party a right of purchase, sale, acceleration, termination, modification or
cancellation under, any material Contract or Permit to which Buyer is a party or by which it is bound or affected;

(d)    result in the creation or imposition of any Encumbrance on any of the material properties or assets of Buyer;
or

(e)    require the consent, Permit, Order, declaration or filing with, or notice to, any Governmental Authority by or
with respect to Buyer.

Section 5.04    Brokers. No broker, finder, investment banker or similar intermediary is entitled to any brokerage, finder’s
or other fee or commission or similar compensation in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or any
other Transaction
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Document based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of Buyer, other than as set forth on Section 5.04 of the Buyer
Disclosure Schedules.

Section 5.05    Legal Proceedings. Except as set forth on Section 5.05 of the Buyer Disclosure Schedules, as of the date
hereof, there are no Actions pending or, to Buyer’s knowledge, threatened against or by Buyer that challenge or seek to prevent,
enjoin or otherwise delay the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 5.06    Financial Capability. Buyer currently has, and will at the Closing have, access to sufficient funds to
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. Buyer is currently (a) able to pay its debts as they become due and (b) has
adequate capital to carry on its business.

ARTICLE VI
COVENANTS

Section 6.01    Conduct of Business Prior to the Closing. Except for actions contemplated by this Agreement, and as set
forth in Section 6.01 of the Disclosure Schedules, from the date hereof until the earlier of (A) termination of this Agreement in
accordance with ARTICLE IX or (B) the Closing, except as consented to in writing by Buyer, Affinity shall (i) conduct the
Business in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, (ii) use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain and
preserve intact Affinity’s current business organization, assets, properties and operations and to preserve the rights, goodwill and
relationships of its employees, Providers, Enrollees, suppliers, regulators and others having relationships with the Business, and
(iii) use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain relationships with sufficient Providers to permit Buyer to meet the Minimum
Network Requirements. Without limiting the foregoing, except as otherwise contemplated by this Agreement or consented to in
writing by Buyer, Affinity shall:

(a)    preserve and maintain all Permits required for the conduct of the Business as currently conducted or the
ownership and use of the Purchased Assets;

(b)    pay, discharge or satisfy the Liabilities, Taxes and other obligations of the Business and the Purchased Assets
which are not in dispute when due in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(c)    not make, change or revoke any material Tax election; not settle or compromise any material claim or
assessment in respect of Taxes; not surrender any right to claim a material Tax refund; not amend any material position on a Tax
Return; not change any Tax accounting method; not enter into any closing agreement relating to any material Tax; not consent to
any extension or waiver of the statute of limitations period applicable to any material Tax claim or assessment; and not file or
prepare any material Tax Return on a basis that is inconsistent with past practice;
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(d)    defend and protect the properties and assets included in the Purchased Assets from infringement or
usurpation in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(e)    perform in all material respects all of its obligations under all Provider Contracts and the Payor Contracts in
the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(f)    except as set forth in Section 6.01(f) of the Disclosure Schedules, comply in all material respects with all
Laws applicable to the conduct of the Business or the ownership and use of the Purchased Assets;

(g)    other than as set forth in Section 6.01(g) of the Disclosure Schedules, or as required by any Affinity
Employee Plan or applicable Law, not (i) enter into, adopt, amend or terminate any Affinity Employee Plan (or any other
agreement or arrangement which would be an Affinity Employee Plan if it were in effect as of the date hereof); (ii) increase the
value or amount, or accelerate the receipt of, any compensation or benefits of any of its employees, directors, or officers; or
(iii) increase or alter the Affinity Employee Payables;

(h)    without limitation to Section 4.05(g), not enter into, amend, assign, terminate, fail to renew or waive or
release any material rights under any Material Contract, Real Property Lease or labor agreement, collective bargaining agreement
or similar labor related agreement, except (i) for such immaterial amendments as may from time to time be required by the
Governmental Authority having jurisdiction thereover, except as otherwise set forth in Section 6.01(h)(i) of the Disclosure
Schedules or (ii) as set forth in Section 6.01(h)(ii) of the Disclosure Schedules;

(i)    not take any action intentionally that would render, or that may reasonably be expected to render, any
representation or warranty made by it in this Agreement untrue or inaccurate at the Closing;

(j)    not enter into any Contract to support a community initiative or non-Affiliate non-profit corporation or
similar entity or charitable endeavor that would create any obligation on Buyer;

(k)    not (i) incur or otherwise acquire, or modify in any material respect the terms of, any Indebtedness for
borrowed money or assume, guarantee or endorse or otherwise become responsible for any such Indebtedness of any Person,
make any loans, advances or capital contributions to, or investments in, any other Person or issue or sell any debt securities or
calls, options, warrants, or other rights to acquire any debt securities of Affinity, enter into any “keep well” or Contract to
maintain any financial statement condition of another Person or enter into any arrangement (including any capital lease) having
the economic effect of the foregoing; or (ii) redeem, repurchase, prepay, defease or cancel any Indebtedness for borrowed money,
other than (1) as required in accordance with its terms or expressly required by this Agreement or (2) in the ordinary course of
business consistent with past practice;
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(l)    not sell, transfer, lease, license, mortgage, pledge, encumber, allow to lapse, incur any Encumbrance on (other
than a Permitted Encumbrance), or otherwise dispose of, or agree to do any of the foregoing with respect to, any of the Purchased
Assets except (i) in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, (ii) pursuant to Contracts in force on the date of
this Agreement and made available to Buyer prior to the date hereof, or (iii) such dispositions of assets no longer used in the
ordinary course of business consistent with past practice of Affinity’s’ business as conducted as of the date of this Agreement;

(m)    not make or authorize any payment of, or commitment for, capital expenditures in excess of Two Million
Dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate, except those budgeted for in a budget made available to Buyer prior to the date hereof;

(n)    not change any material financial accounting methods, practices, policies or elections from those utilized in
the preparation of the Audited Financial Statements, other than any such changes as may be required by Applicable Accounting
Principles;

(o)    except as set forth on Section 6.01(o) of the Disclosure Schedules, not commence or settle any Action
relating to the Business, the Purchased Assets or the Assumed Liabilities, except for settlements of Actions or potential Actions
in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and so long as such settlement will not create any material
obligation on behalf of Buyer following the Closing;

(p)    not cancel, amend, compromise, terminate, release or waive any material debts, rights or claims relating to
the Business or the Purchased Assets;

(q)    not conclude of or agree to any corrective action plans, consents, decrees, actions or Orders, other than in the
ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(r)    not adopt any plan of merger, consolidation, reorganization, liquidation or dissolution or filing of a petition in
bankruptcy under any provisions of federal or state bankruptcy Law or consent to the filing of any bankruptcy petition against
Affinity under any similar Law;

(s)    not purchase or otherwise acquire (by merger, exchange, consolidation, acquisition of stock or assets or
otherwise) any property, material asset, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company or other business
organization or division or material assets thereof for which the aggregate consideration paid or payable in the aggregate is in
excess of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000);

(t)    not (i) enter into any transaction with any Affiliate of Affinity, any officers or directors of Affinity (or any of
their respective Affiliates), or any FQHC Member (or any of their respective Affiliates) or (ii) amend, assign, terminate, or waive
or release any material rights under any existing transactions or agreements with any Affiliate of Affinity, any officers or
directors of Affinity (or any of their respective Affiliates) or any FQHC Member (or any of their respective Affiliates), including
any Provider Contracts with any FQHC Member (or any of their respective Affiliates);
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(u)    not allow to lapse any existing policy of insurance relating to the Business or the Purchased Assets;

(v)    not make material loans, advances or capital contributions to, or material investments in, any Provider,
except as required by applicable Law; and

(w)    not enter into a Contract, commitment or arrangement to do any of the foregoing or that would materially
impair its ability to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement in accordance with the terms hereof.

Section 6.02    Access to Information. Affinity shall (a) furnish Buyer and its Representatives with such financial,
operating and other data and information as Buyer or any of its Representatives may reasonably request related to (i) the
Business, or (ii) the Purchased Assets; (b) use commercially reasonable efforts to provide Buyer (i) sufficiently in advance of the
Closing, copies of such information as is reasonably requested by Buyer and its Representatives in order for Buyer to assume
operations on the Closing Date for the transition of the Enrollees, as applicable, and continuity of care, and (ii) copies of such
other information as is necessary for the operation, ownership and management of the Business or which is otherwise reasonably
requested by Buyer, and which Affinity is permitted by applicable Law to provide or which is required in writing to be provided
to Buyer by DOH (and Affinity shall provide such written consents and authorizations as may be reasonably necessary for Buyer
to have access to materials on file with any Governmental Authority), including any information as may be required to permit
Buyer to satisfy its obligations to any Governmental Authority following the Closing, including any third party accreditation or
review organization (such as the National Committee for Quality Assurance); and (c) make available to the officers, employees,
accountants, counsel and other Representatives of Buyer upon the reasonable request of Buyer and during normal working hours,
officers, accountants, counsel, consultants, investment banker and other Representatives or agents of Affinity for discussion of
the Business as Buyer may reasonably request; provided, that Affinity must be given no less than 5 Business Days prior written
notice of, and a representative of Affinity must be given a reasonable opportunity to attend, any meeting, or participate in any
telephone discussion, involving all or substantially all of Affinity’s employees, on the one hand, and any such Person, on the
other hand. Any inquiries pursuant to this Section 6.02 shall be conducted in such manner as not to interfere unreasonably with
the conduct of the Business or any other businesses of Affinity. Nothing in this Agreement or any of the other Transaction
Documents to the contrary shall in any manner restrict the ability of Buyer, from and after the date of this Agreement, to discuss
the business and affairs of Affinity with any Governmental Authority having jurisdiction over Affinity or the fiscal intermediaries
administering Affinity’s payor programs. From the date hereof until the earlier of (i) the Closing Date or (ii) the date this
Agreement is terminated pursuant to ARTICLE IX, Affinity and Buyer shall cooperate to contact such third parties, including
customers, prospective customers, specifying agencies, vendors or suppliers of Affinity, as Buyer deems reasonably necessary.
Prior to the Closing Date and after any termination of this Agreement, each Party shall hold and shall cause its Representatives to
hold, in confidence, all confidential documents and information concerning the other Party’s or any of its Subsidiaries furnished
to a Party or its Representatives in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement in the
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manner and for the time period specified in the Confidentiality Agreement, dated September 25, 2019.

Section 6.03    No Solicitation of Other Bids.

(a)    Affinity shall not, and shall not authorize or permit any of its Representatives (collectively, the “Affinity
Parties”) to, directly or indirectly, (i) knowingly encourage, solicit, initiate, knowingly facilitate, or respond to (other than solely
to decline) inquiries regarding an Acquisition Proposal; (ii) enter into discussions or negotiations with, or provide any
information to, any Person concerning a possible Acquisition Proposal; or (iii) enter into any agreements or other instruments
(whether or not binding) regarding an Acquisition Proposal. Affinity shall immediately cease and or cause to be terminated, and
shall cause the other Affinity Parties to immediately cease and cause to be terminated, all existing activities, discussions or
negotiations with any Persons conducted heretofore with respect to, or that could reasonably be expected to lead to, an
Acquisition Proposal and shall notify each such party that it, or any Representative retained by it, no longer seeks or requires the
making of any Acquisition Proposal, and withdraws any consent theretofore given to the making of an Acquisition Proposal and
shall promptly instruct (to the extent it has contractual authority to do so and has not already done so prior to the date of this
Agreement) or otherwise request, any Person that has executed a confidentiality or non-disclosure agreement within the 48-
month period prior to the date of this Agreement in connection with any actual or potential Acquisition Proposal to return or
destroy all such information or documents or material incorporating confidential information in the possession of such Person or
its Representatives. None of the Affinity Parties shall, directly or indirectly, and each of the Affinity Parties shall cause their
Affiliates and their respective Representatives not to, solicit, initiate or conduct any discussions or negotiations with, or provide
any information to or otherwise cooperate in any other way with, or facilitate or encourage any effort to attempt to, or enter into
any agreement or understanding with, any Person or group of Persons regarding any Acquisition Proposal. For purposes hereof,
“Acquisition Proposal” means any inquiry, proposal or offer from any Person (other than Buyer or any of its Affiliates) relating
to the direct or indirect disposition, whether by sale, merger or otherwise, of all or any portion of the Business or the Purchased
Assets or any public announcement of a proposal, plan or intention to do the foregoing or any agreement to engage in the
foregoing.

(b)    In addition to the other obligations under this Section 6.03, Affinity shall promptly (and in any event within
two (2) Business Days after receipt thereof by any Affinity Party) advise Buyer orally and in writing of any Acquisition Proposal
or any request for information with respect to any Acquisition Proposal, and the identity of the Person making the same and shall
provide Buyer with a copy of all written materials relating to such Acquisition Proposal.

(c)    Affinity agrees that the rights and remedies for noncompliance with this Section 6.03(c) shall include having
such provision specifically enforced by any Court having equity jurisdiction, it being acknowledged and agreed that any such
breach or threatened breach shall cause irreparable injury to Buyer and that money damages would not provide an adequate
remedy to Buyer.
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Section 6.04    Notice of Certain Events.

(a)    From the date hereof until the earlier of termination of this Agreement in accordance with ARTICLE IX or
the Closing, Affinity shall promptly notify Buyer in writing of:

(i)    any fact, circumstance, event or action the existence, occurrence or taking of which (A) has had or
could reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect, (B) has resulted in any
representation or warranty made by Affinity hereunder not being true and correct (to the extent occurring or arising after the date
hereof, a “Disclosure Update”), or (C) has resulted in, or could reasonably be expected to result in, the failure of any of the
conditions set forth in Section 7.02 to be satisfied;

(ii)    any written notice or other written communication from any Person alleging that the consent of such
Person is or may be required in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;

(iii)    any notice or other communication from any Governmental Authority, other than in the ordinary
course of business consistent with past practice and other than that which does not relate to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement or the Transaction Documents; and

(iv)    any Actions commenced or, to Affinity’s Knowledge, threatened against, relating to, involving or
otherwise affecting the Business, the Purchased Assets or the Assumed Liabilities that, if pending on the date hereof, would have
been required to have been disclosed pursuant to Section 4.10 or that relate to the consummation of the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement.

(b)    No Disclosure Update shall be deemed to modify, or cure any breach of Affinity’s representations and
warranties in this Agreement or have any effect for the purpose of determining satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Section
7.02 (other than Section 7.02(c)) or the obligations of Affinity under ARTICLE VII.

Section 6.05    Employees.

(a)    Sixty (60) days prior to the Closing Date, Affinity shall deliver to Buyer an updated version of the file
containing the information referenced in Section 4.13(a) (the “Employee Information”), accurate as of such date. Thereafter and
until the Closing Date, Affinity shall deliver to Buyer a further updated version of the Employee Information as soon as
practicable after change in the information contained therein. Affinity shall provide Buyer with reasonable access during normal
business hours to the employees of the Business not less than forty-five (45) days prior to the Closing Date and with information
reasonably requested by Buyer with respect to employment, compensation and benefits of the employees of the Business. No less
than ten (10) days prior to the Closing Date, to be effective as of the Closing but contingent on the Closing, Buyer or an Affiliate
of Buyer shall offer employment to all individuals who are employed by Affinity in good standing in the operation of the
Business;
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provided however, that Buyer shall not be required to make offers of employment to or hire (i) any employee of Affinity who
does not satisfy Buyer’s employment policies regarding employee documentation, drug testing, background screening, and other
similar matters or (ii) any Inactive Employee, except as set forth in this Section 6.05. Each such offer of employment shall
provide for the payments and benefits required to be provided by Section 6.05(c). Each employee of Affinity who accepts
Buyer’s offer of employment and commences employment with Buyer as of immediately following the Closing shall be
considered a “Hired Employee.” Any Inactive Employee who returns to active employment on or prior to the later of (i) the date
that is six (6) months after the Closing Date or (ii) the latest date on which the Buyer would be required to rehire such Inactive
Employee pursuant to applicable Law and who satisfies Buyer’s employment policies regarding employee documentation, drug
testing, background screening, and other similar matters shall be considered a “Hired Employee” upon such Inactive Employee’s
commencement of employment with Buyer. From the Closing Date through the date six (6) months following the Closing Date,
Buyer shall not terminate any Hired Employee other than (i) for Cause or (ii) due to the occurrence of any material adverse
change to the Business, and if any Hired Employee is terminated during the one (1) year period following the Closing Date other
than for Cause or due to the occurrence of any material adverse change to the Business, Buyer will pay that Hired Employee an
amount equal to the base salary that such Hired Employee would have earned during the remainder of the one (1) year period
following the Closing Date (the “Severance Payment”) in lieu of any other severance payments, unless such Hired Employee has
a contractual right (whether in such Hired Employee’s employment agreement with Affinity or in a change in control agreement
between such Hired Employee and Affinity) as set forth on Section 6.05(a) of the Disclosure Schedules that provides for a
greater benefit upon termination, in which case Buyer will pay the Hired Employee solely the benefits provided in accordance
with such agreement as set forth on Section 6.05(a) of the Disclosure Schedules. For the avoidance of doubt, any termination
payments described in the immediately preceding sentence that are made will be considered to be inclusive of any amounts due
under the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act of 1988.

(b)    Effective as of the Closing Date, Affinity shall terminate the employment of all of the Hired Employees as of
immediately prior to the Closing. Except as otherwise specified herein, effective as of immediately prior to the Closing, all Hired
Employees will cease to be active participants in the Affinity Employee Plans. All Hired Employees shall be eligible to become
participants in the corresponding new or existing plans of Buyer and its Affiliates, including group health and other welfare
benefit plans in each case subject to the terms thereof. Buyer also understands and agrees that (i) certain Affinity employees have
contractual rights that are triggered upon a change in control of Affinity as set forth on Section 6.05(a) of the Disclosure
Schedules; and (ii) Buyer assumes and will perform the obligations pursuant to the contracts under which such rights are granted.

(c)    For a period of one (1) year following the Closing Date, Buyer shall provide or cause to be provided to each
Hired Employee who remains employed with Buyer during such period (i) base salary or base wages and annual or other periodic
cash incentive opportunities (excluding any retention or similar bonuses and other special or non-recurring bonuses or cash
awards) that are no less favorable in the aggregate than those provided to such
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Hired Employee by Affinity immediately before the Closing, and (ii) retirement (excluding pension and retiree medical or
welfare benefits), welfare, fringe and other employee benefits which are substantially comparable in the aggregate to those
provided to the Hired Employee by Affinity immediately prior to the Closing Date under the Affinity Employee Plans or, in
Buyer’s discretion, which are substantially comparable in the aggregate to those made available to similarly situated employees
of Buyer.

(d)    Buyer shall assume Affinity’s Liability for and shall be solely responsible for the payment or satisfaction of
(i) the Affinity Employee Payables payable following the Closing Date, but only to the extent set forth on the AEP Schedule; and
(ii) any and all Liabilities to or with respect to any Hired Employee arising after the Closing Date. Buyer shall have no Liabilities
with respect to any current or former employee of the Business who is not a Hired Employee except for any requirements under
COBRA for all individuals who are “M&A qualified beneficiaries” as such term is defined in Treasury Regulation
Section 54.4980B�9 with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Except as otherwise set forth in the AEP
Schedule, Buyer shall have no Liabilities with respect to any Hired Employee relating to the period prior to and including the
Closing; provided however, that Buyer understands and agrees, as provided in Section 6.05(a), that Buyer is obligated to make a
Severance Payment to any Hired Employees who are terminated during the one (1) year period following the Closing Date or
who have contractual rights that are triggered upon a change in control of Affinity as set forth on Section 6.05(a) of the
Disclosure Schedules.

(e)    Buyer shall ensure that (i) all Hired Employees receive credit for prior service with Affinity (or any
predecessor entities) for purposes of eligibility, participation, vesting and benefit accrual (but not for benefit accruals under any
defined benefit pension plan) under any employee benefit or compensatory plan, program or arrangement of Buyer or any of
Buyer’s Affiliates in which Hired Employees are eligible to participate, except for any employee benefits that are frozen or
grandfathered as of the Closing Date, for purposes of qualifying for subsidized early retirement benefits (including retirement
treatment under Buyer equity incentive plans) or to the extent it would result in a duplication of benefits, and (ii)  except as
otherwise required by Law, all Hired Employees shall receive seven (7) days of paid time off (i.e., personal or sick leave) upon
commencement of employment with Buyer, after which the Hired Employees will accrue benefits and paid time off as provided
under Buyer’s policy. Buyer shall make reasonable best efforts to cause (A) any pre-existing conditions or limitations, eligibility
waiting periods or required physical examinations under any group health benefit plans of Buyer or any of Buyer’s Affiliates to
be waived with respect to Hired Employees and their eligible spouses and dependents, to the extent waived or satisfied under a
corresponding Affinity Employee Plan in which the applicable Hired Employee participated immediately prior to the Closing;
and (B) subject to Affinity providing adequate data to Buyer, in a format reasonably requested by Buyer in writing, that the Hired
Employees and their eligible spouses, dependents and beneficiaries will receive credit for the plan year in which the Closing Date
occurs towards applicable deductibles and annual out-of-pocket limits for expenses incurred prior to the Closing Date that were
credited for the same purpose to such individual under the corresponding Affinity Employee Plan as of the Closing Date. The
aggregate amount of expenses subject to the
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immediately-preceding clause (B) shall be added to (and shall increase) the total value of all items listed on the AEP Schedule.

(f)    Pursuant to the “Standard Procedure” provided in Section 4 of Revenue Procedure 2004-53, (i) Affinity and
Buyer shall report on a predecessor/successor basis as set forth therein, (ii) Affinity will not be relieved from timely filing a Form
W-2 with respect to any Hired Employees with respect to the portion of the calendar year in with the Closing occurs during which
such employees are employed by Affinity and (iii) Buyer will undertake to file (or cause to be filed) a Form W-2 for each such
Hired Employee with respect to the portion of the calendar year in which the Closing occurs during which the Hired Employee is
employed by Buyer.

(g)    This Section 6.05 shall be binding upon and inure solely to the benefit of each of the Parties. Nothing
contained herein shall be deemed to confer upon any Hired Employee or any other Person (or any spouse, dependent, beneficiary
of or other Person claiming through such Hired Employee or other Person) any third party beneficiary rights or remedies of any
nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Section 6.05. Except as expressly set forth in this Section 6.05, nothing in this
Agreement shall be deemed to require Buyer or any of its Affiliates to hire or maintain the employment of any Person for any
length of time, or to provide any element or level of compensation or benefits for any length of time. Nothing in this Agreement
shall be deemed to create or amend any compensation or employee benefit plan, program, policy, practice, agreement or
arrangement.

Section 6.06    Confidentiality. From and after the Closing, the Affinity shall, and shall use its reasonable best efforts to
cause its Affiliates to, hold, and shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to cause their respective Representatives to hold,
in confidence any and all information, whether written or oral, concerning the Business and Purchased Assets, except to the
extent that (a) such information relates to Excluded Assets or Excluded Liabilities, except to the extent such information relates
to the Business, (b) such information is generally available to and known by the public through no fault of Affinity or their
Representatives, or (c) is lawfully acquired by Affinity or any of their Affiliates or Representatives from and after the Closing
from sources (other than Buyer or its Affiliates or their respective Representatives) which, to the Knowledge of Affinity, are not
prohibited from disclosing such information by a legal, contractual or fiduciary obligation. If Affinity or any of its
Representatives are compelled to disclose any information by judicial or administrative process or by other requirements of Law,
Affinity shall promptly notify Buyer in writing, if and to the extent Affinity is permitted by applicable Law to do so, and shall
disclose only that portion of such information which Affinity is advised by its counsel is legally required to be disclosed,
provided that Affinity shall use commercially reasonable efforts, at Buyer’s expense, to obtain an appropriate protective order or
other reasonable assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded such information.

Section 6.07    Non-competition; Non-solicitation.

(a)    During the Restricted Period, Affinity shall not, directly or indirectly, either for Affinity’s own benefit or for
the benefit of any other Person, without the prior consent of Buyer, which consent may be withheld in Buyer’s sole discretion,
(i) engage in, make any
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regulatory application to engage in, enter into any Contract (including any Provider Contract) in anticipation of engaging in, or
assist others in engaging in the Restricted Business in the Territory; (ii) have an interest in any Person that engages directly or
indirectly in the Restricted Business in the Territory in any capacity, including as a partner, shareholder, member, employee,
principal, joint venturer, agent, trustee, volunteer, lender or consultant; or (iii) induce or persuade, or seek or attempt to induce or
persuade, any Provider, Enrollee, supplier or licensor of the Business (including any existing or former Provider, Enrollee,
supplier or licensor of Affinity and any Person known to Affinity to have become a Provider, Enrollee, supplier or licensor of the
Business during the Restricted Period) to terminate or modify its business relationship with the Business in a manner adverse to
the Business.

(b)    During the Restricted Period, Affinity shall not, directly or indirectly, solicit for employment, hire or retain
the employment of any Hired Employee, or encourage any employee of Buyer or its Affiliates to leave such employment or hire
any Person who has left such employment, except pursuant to a general solicitation which is not directed specifically to any
Hired Employees or any employees of Buyer or its Affiliates; provided, however, that nothing in this Section 6.07(b) shall
prevent Affinity from hiring any employee of Buyer whose employment has been terminated by Buyer and such termination was
not directly or indirectly attributable to or influenced by actions of Affinity.

(c)    Affinity acknowledges that the restrictions contained in this Section 6.07 are reasonable and necessary to
protect the legitimate interests of Buyer and constitute a material inducement to Buyer to enter into this Agreement and
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. In the event that any covenant contained in this Section 6.07
should ever be adjudicated to exceed the time, geographic, product or service or other limitations permitted by applicable Law in
any jurisdiction, then any Court is expressly empowered to reform such covenant, and such covenant shall be deemed reformed,
in such jurisdiction to the maximum time, geographic, product or service or other limitations permitted by applicable Law. The
covenants contained in this Section 6.07 and each provision hereof are severable and distinct covenants and provisions. The
invalidity or unenforceability of any such covenant or provision as written shall not invalidate or render unenforceable the
remaining covenants or provisions hereof, and any such invalidity or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or
render unenforceable such covenant or provision in any other jurisdiction.

Section 6.08    Governmental Approvals and Consents.

(a)    Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, including Section 6.08(c), each Party shall
(i) as promptly as possible, use its reasonable best efforts to obtain, or cause to be obtained, all consents, authorizations, orders
and approvals from all Governmental Authorities set forth on Schedule 6.08(a) (collectively, the “Required Governmental
Approvals”), (ii) cooperate fully with the other Party and its Affiliates in promptly seeking to obtain all such Required
Governmental Approvals, and (iii) not willfully take any action for the purpose of delaying, impairing or impeding the receipt of
any such Required Governmental Approvals. If required by the HSR Act and if the appropriate filing pursuant to the HSR Act
has not been filed prior to the date hereof, each Party hereto agrees to
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make an appropriate filing pursuant to the HSR Act with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement as promptly
as practicable after the date hereof, with the exact timing of such filings to be mutually agreed upon by the Parties, and to supply
as promptly as practicable to the appropriate Governmental Authority any additional information and documentary material that
may be requested pursuant to the HSR Act. In addition, each Party shall provide or cause to be provided as promptly as
practicable any information and documentary material that may be requested by the U.S. Department of Justice or Federal Trade
Commission under the HSR Act or by any Governmental Authority with regulatory jurisdiction over enforcement of any
Antitrust Laws. Affinity, on the one hand, and Buyer, on the other hand, shall be responsible for the payment of fifty percent
(50%) of any filing fees under the HSR Act and any other Antitrust Laws.

(b)    Without limiting the generality of Affinity’s and Buyer’s undertakings pursuant to this Section 6.08, and
subject to Section 6.08(c), each Party mutually agrees to use its reasonable best efforts and to take any and all steps necessary to
avoid or eliminate each and every impediment under any Antitrust Law that may be asserted by any Governmental Authority or
any other party so as to enable the Parties to close the transactions contemplated by this Agreement as promptly as possible,
including proposing, negotiating, committing to and effecting, by consent decree, hold separate orders, or otherwise, the sale,
divestiture or disposition of any of its assets, properties or businesses or of the assets, properties or businesses to be acquired by it
pursuant to this Agreement as are required to be divested in order to avoid the entry of, or to effect the dissolution of, any
injunction, temporary restraining order or other order in any suit or proceeding, which would otherwise have the effect of
materially delaying or preventing the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. In addition, each Party
shall use its reasonable best efforts to defend through litigation on the merits any claim asserted in Court by any party in order to
avoid entry of, or to have vacated or terminated, any Order (whether temporary, preliminary or permanent) that would prevent the
consummation of the Closing.

(c)    Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, including this Section 6.08, nothing in this
Agreement shall require Buyer or its Affiliates to take or refrain from taking any action, or to agree to any requirement,
restriction, limitation, requirement, or condition (including any conditions that may be required by any Governmental Authority
to obtain any Required Governmental Approval) that (i) would reasonably be expected to apply to or affect the businesses, assets
or properties of Buyer or its Affiliates or the Business or the Purchased Assets and would, individually or in the aggregate,
reasonably be expected to result in Losses to Buyer, its Affiliates, the Business and/or the Purchased Assets, collectively, that
exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,000); and/or (ii) would reasonably be expected to materially and adversely affect the ability
of Buyer and its Affiliates to provide health care coverage under the New York State Medicaid Managed Care, Health and
Recovery Plan, Child Health Plus, or Essential Plan programs that make up the Business to the extent such health care coverage
is provided by Affinity immediately prior to the Closing (such occurrence, a “Regulatory Material Adverse Effect”).
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(d)    The Parties agree that, with respect to the Required Governmental Approvals, Buyer and Affinity shall
mutually determine in good faith (i) the scheduling of, and strategic planning for, any meeting with or filing with any
Governmental Authority, (ii) the process for receipt of any Required Governmental Approvals and (iii) subject to Section 6.08(c),
the resolution of any investigation or other inquiry of any Governmental Authority; provided, that each Party shall keep the other
Party reasonably apprised of the status of the matters relating to the Required Governmental Approvals, and each Party will work
cooperatively with the other Party in connection with obtaining all such Required Governmental Approvals.  Without limiting the
foregoing, (x) all analyses, appearances, meetings, discussions, presentations, memoranda, briefs, filings, arguments, and
proposals made by or on behalf of either Party before any Governmental Authority or the staff or regulators of any Governmental
Authority, in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder (but, for the avoidance of doubt, not including any
interactions between Affinity or Buyer with Governmental Authorities in the ordinary course of business, any disclosure which is
not permitted by Law or any disclosure containing confidential information) shall be disclosed to the other Party in advance of
any filing, submission or attendance, it being the intent that the Parties will consult and cooperate with one another, and consider
in good faith the views of one another, in connection with any such analyses, appearances, meetings, discussions, presentations,
memoranda, briefs, filings, arguments, and proposals and (y) each Party shall give notice to the other Party with respect to any
meeting, discussion, appearance or contact with any Governmental Authority or the staff or regulators of any Governmental
Authority, with such notice being sufficient to provide the other party with the opportunity to attend and participate in such
meeting, discussion, appearance or contact; provided, however, Affinity shall not be obligated to consult Buyer or provide notice
to Buyer pursuant to the immediately preceding clauses (x) and (y) with respect to matters that that would not create any
obligation on Buyer or otherwise impact the operation of the Business by Buyer or any of its Affiliates (including but not limited
to discussions with the New York State Office of the Attorney General concerning the use of the proceeds from the sale of the
Business under this Agreement by Affinity and the FQHC Members).

(e)    Affinity shall give any notices to third parties in connection with the Required Third Party Consents, and
shall use its reasonable best efforts to obtain the Required Third Party Consents.  Affinity shall regularly consult with Buyer in
connection with the foregoing and shall keep Buyer reasonably apprised of the status of the matters relating to the Required Third
Party Consents.  Affinity shall use its reasonable best efforts to obtain, or cause to be obtained, approval from all FQHC
Members of the execution and delivery by Affinity of this Agreement, the other Transaction Documents and the performance and
consummation by Affinity of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. Buyer shall reasonably cooperate with Affinity in
connection with Affinity’s efforts related thereto.

Section 6.09    New Material Contracts.

(a)    Without limitation to Section 6.01(h), Affinity shall promptly notify Buyer of any new Material Contract
(based on anticipated payments during the twelve (12) months following its execution) proposed to be executed after the date
hereof on behalf of Affinity.
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(b)    Affinity acknowledges that any Provider Contract that provides that it may be assigned by Affinity without
the applicable Provider’s consent shall be deemed to be assigned to Buyer at and subject to the Closing. Affinity acknowledges
and agrees to promptly supply to Buyer, when reasonably requested, such information and materials (including specific answers
or responses) required in connection with receipt of any required consents, authorizations, orders and approvals which relate to
the provider network, the Provider Contracts and the continuity of services (such information and materials to be in such form as
may reasonably be requested for purposes of filings with the applicable regulatory authorities). Without limiting the generality of
Section 2.08, with respect to any Provider Contract requiring consent of the Provider to transfer or assign it: (A) this Agreement
shall not constitute an agreement to assign or transfer any right, benefit or obligation arising thereunder if an assignment or
transfer without the consent of the Provider would constitute a breach or violation thereof or adversely affect the rights of
Affinity or Buyer thereunder (however, the foregoing shall not excuse or waive any breach of any representation or warranty
contained herein) and (B) before the Closing, Affinity shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to cause such Provider
Contract to be assigned with any required consent, and if such consent cannot be obtained, Affinity shall use its commercially
reasonable efforts to assist Buyer to obtain its own direct contract on terms acceptable to Buyer. In addition, Affinity shall, to the
extent reasonably requested by Buyer, use its commercially reasonable efforts to facilitate introductions to, and meetings with,
Providers. Affinity shall provide reasonable access to all information necessary for Buyer to evaluate the extent to which the
provider networks of Buyer and Affinity overlap.

Section 6.10    Closing Conditions. Except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, each Party hereto shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to take such actions as are necessary to expeditiously satisfy the closing conditions relating to
the Closing set forth in ARTICLE VII hereof.

Section 6.11    Public Announcements. Neither Affinity nor Buyer shall make, nor shall they permit any of their
Representatives to make, any public announcements in respect of this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby or
otherwise communicate with any news media without the prior written consent of the other or in accordance with a
communications plan mutually agreed to by the Parties, unless required by applicable Law or any listing agreement with or rules
of the New York Stock Exchange or other stock exchange on which securities of Buyer are listed or as may be requested by a
Governmental Authority, in which case the issuing party shall use its reasonable best efforts to consult with the other party before
issuing any such release or making any such public statement, and the issuing party shall allow the other party reasonable time to
comment on such release or public statement in advance of such issuance and shall consider in good faith any reasonable
comments of such party. Upon execution of this Agreement and upon the Closing, Affinity and Buyer (or their respective
Affiliates) may each issue press releases announcing the transaction, in each case in accordance with a communications plan
mutually agreed to by the Parties.

Section 6.12    Reconciliation. If Buyer collects or receives any Excluded Asset from any third party after the Closing,
then Buyer shall deliver such Excluded Asset to Affinity as soon as reasonably practicable after receipt thereof. If Affinity
collects or receives any
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Purchased Asset from any third party after the Closing, then Affinity shall deliver to Buyer such Purchased Asset(s) as soon as
reasonably practicable after receipt thereof. Likewise, Buyer shall forward any claim for an Excluded Liability to Affinity after
the Closing and Affinity shall forward any claim for an Assumed Liability to Buyer after the Closing. Without limitation to this
Section 6.12, Affinity shall reasonably cooperate with Buyer in Buyer’s collection of the receivables that are Purchased Assets.

Section 6.13    Transition Planning. Affinity shall cooperate with Buyer as may be reasonably requested by Buyer from
time to time to develop and implement an integration and transition plan for the Business for purposes of regulatory reporting and
any other services mutually agreed to by the Parties, and the Parties shall use their commercially reasonable best efforts to enter
into a transition services agreement on terms and conditions to be mutually agreed upon by the Parties. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, Buyer and Affinity shall cooperate to develop and implement a mutually agreeable communications
plan with respect to the Enrollees and Providers. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall Affinity make a general
announcement to its non-executive employees regarding the transactions contemplated by this Agreement before any press
releases have been issued by Buyer or Affinity in accordance with Section 6.11.

Section 6.14    Further Assurances. Following the Closing, each of the Parties shall, and shall cause its respective
Affiliates to, execute and deliver such additional documents, instruments, conveyances and assurances and take such further
actions as may be reasonably required to carry out the provisions hereof and give effect to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement and the other Transaction Documents. Without limiting the generality of the preceding sentence, Affinity shall, on
and after the Closing Date, transfer (or cause to be transferred) to Buyer such records and data (including electronic data files)
that, prior to the Closing, are used by Affinity in providing services related to the operation of the Business, as may be reasonably
requested by Buyer (and, in the case of electronic data files, in such format or formats as may be reasonably requested by Buyer).

Section 6.15    Post-Closing Access to Information.

(a)    After the Closing, each Party shall afford the other Party and its counsel, accountants, consultants and other
Representatives, during normal business hours, reasonable access to the books, records and other information in such Party’s
possession relating to the Business, and the right to make copies and extracts therefrom at its expense, or shall provide copies of
such information to the other Party, in each case to the extent such access is reasonably required by the requesting Party (i) to
comply with reporting, disclosure, filing or other requirements imposed by a Governmental Authority, (ii) for use in any Tax
audits or litigation in which such requesting Party is a party, (iii) to comply with such requesting Party’s obligations under this
Agreement, or (iv) with respect to Buyer, relates to the operation, ownership and management of the Business and which Affinity
is permitted by applicable Law to provide provided, that, Buyer agrees to treat such information as confidential, if applicable.

(b)    In addition, after the Closing Affinity shall provide to Buyer such written certifications, sub-certifications or
the like as may be reasonably requested by Buyer to support
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any attestation or representation required to be provided by Buyer in connection with any audit, accreditation review or similar
proceeding relating to the operation of the Business prior to the Closing. For a period of six (6) years after the Closing Date,
neither Affinity nor Buyer shall, or permit its Affiliates to, destroy or otherwise dispose of any of the books, records or other
information described in this Section 6.15 without first offering in writing to surrender such books, records and other information
to the other Party, and the other Party shall have ten (10) days after such offer to agree in writing to take possession thereof.

Section 6.16    Non-disparagement. (a) Affinity shall not publicly talk about or otherwise publicly communicate to any
third parties (including Providers and Enrollees) in a disparaging or defamatory manner regarding Buyer, or otherwise make or
authorize to be made any written or oral statement that may disparage or damage the reputation of Buyer; and (b) Buyer shall not,
and shall cause their respective Affiliates not to, publicly talk about or otherwise publicly communicate to any third parties
(including Providers and Enrollees) in a disparaging or defamatory manner regarding Affinity, or otherwise make or authorize to
be made any written or oral statement that may disparage or damage the reputation of Affinity; provided, however, that such
restriction shall not prohibit (i) truthful statements compelled by legal process, as part of a response to a request for information
from any Governmental Authority or as testimony in any legal or regulatory process or proceeding, (ii) any statements in
connection with any legal dispute, (iii) filing any necessary documents in accordance with Law or applicable stock exchange
requirements or (iv) factual statements by such Party regarding the business, condition, results or prospects of the Business in
connection with any public earnings call or otherwise, so long as such statements are not reasonably foreseen by such Party as
likely to defame, disparage, or slander any other Party.

Section 6.17    Post-Closing Buyer Covenants.

(a)    From and after the Closing, Buyer shall use commercially reasonable good faith efforts to:

(i)    promote Enrollee health through (A) quality, accessible care and services, (B) partnering with health
professionals to assist in providing health care services, (C) facilitating building linkages and systems for the coordination of care
and services among health care, behavioral and social services, as well as educators, to address the spiritual, emotional, and
physical needs of Enrollees, and (D) advocating for a health policy that accords true dignity and respect for all human persons,
especially the poor and underserved;

(ii)    maintain in all material respects to the extent commercially viable the scope and type of services
currently provided to Enrollees by the Business as conducted immediately prior to the Closing;

(iii)    subject to the limitations set forth in Section 6.17(a)(ii), maintain a corporate presence in the State of
New York no less significant than the operations of the Business in the State of New York immediately prior to the Closing
(including maintaining a regional chief executive officer for the Business that reports directly to Buyer’s national chief executive
officer of community and state programs) and continue to provide a similar or greater
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level of employment opportunities to residents of the State of New York as compared to those provided by the Business
immediately prior to the Closing;

(iv)    promote growth and expansion of the Business through (A) partnering with health professionals with
aligned mission and vision and (B) leveraging Affinity’s existing capabilities for scale and efficiency, for accelerating care and
process innovation, and for developing predictive health capabilities to foster healthier communities; and

(v)    enhance population health capability of the Business by (A) maintaining existing high standards of
quality that endeavor to be cost effective across all populations; (B) focusing on coordination of care and services among health
care, behavioral, and social service needs of Enrollee populations, (C) developing systems to attain greater standards of clinical
excellence and improving Enrollee health status, (D) focusing on a “person-centered” coordination of services and customer
service; and (E) facilitating linkages and systems for coordination of care and services.

(b)    With respect to the covenants contained in this Section 6.17(a), (i) the covenants will survive for a period of
eighteen (18) months from Closing, (ii) nothing herein is intended to or shall confer upon any Enrollee or Person (including any
Governmental Authority) any legal or equitable enforcement or other right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or
by reason of this Agreement and (iii) the covenants are subject to any changes in applicable Laws or economic conditions to the
extent such changes alter the commercially reasonable expectations of the Parties at the time they entered into this Agreement or
the commercial viability of complying with such covenants.

(c)    From and after the Closing until final payment of the Net Asset Value adjustment contemplated by Section
2.07(g), Buyer shall pay or cause to be paid all claims payable and claims payable incurred in the ordinary course of business
consistent with industry standard claims procedures.

(d)    For the period commencing on the Closing Date and continuing through the five-year anniversary of the
Closing Date, Buyer shall cause the headquarters of the Business to remain located in the Bronx, New York.

(e)    For the period commencing on the one-month anniversary of the Closing Date and continuing through the
five-year anniversary of the Closing Date, Buyer shall cause Molina Healthcare of New York, Inc. (“MHNY”) to appoint to its
board of directors a representative designated by the board of directors of Affinity (the “Affinity Representative”) and approved
by Buyer, such approval not to be unreasonably conditioned or withheld. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, (A) the
Affinity Representative shall not be an employee, officer or director of any competitor of Buyer, and (B) Buyer shall have the
right to withhold any information, including any written materials, from the Affinity Representative, and to exclude the Affinity
Representative from any board meeting or committee meeting or portion thereof if, in the reasonable good faith judgment of
either Buyer or the board of directors of MHNY (other than the Affinity Representative), an issue is addressed in such written
materials, or is to be discussed, which is not appropriate to be disclosed to or discussed in the presence of
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the Affinity Representative in order to avoid a conflict of interest as established by Buyer or MHNY policy on the part of the
Affinity Representative or otherwise would require a similarly situated director to recuse himself under New York law.

Section 6.18    Transfer Taxes. All transfer, documentary, sales, use, excise, stamp, registration, value added and other
such Taxes and fees (including any penalties and interest) (collectively, the “Transfer Taxes”) incurred in connection with the
sale of the Purchased Assets pursuant to this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents (including any real property
transfer Tax and any other similar Tax) shall be borne and paid by Affinity when due. Affinity shall duly prepare any Tax Return
or other document with respect to such Taxes or fees (and Buyer shall cooperate with respect thereto as necessary), and shall give
Buyer a copy of each such Tax Return for its review and comment at least fifteen (15) days prior to filing. Following such review
and comment period, Affinity shall file all necessary Tax Returns and other documentation with respect to all Transfer Taxes and,
if required by applicable Law, Buyer shall join Affinity in the execution of any such Tax Returns and other documentation.

Section 6.19    Minimum Network Requirements. In the event that, prior to the Closing, one (1) or more Providers
provide notice of the termination (each, a “Terminating Provider”) of any Provider Contract in accordance with its terms (each, a
“Provider Contract Termination”) and, individually or in the aggregate, such Provider Contract Terminations would reasonably
be expected to result in Buyer’s failure to satisfy the Minimum Network Requirements (a “Network Failure”), then, prior to the
Closing, Affinity shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to assist Buyer in obtaining a direct contract on terms reasonably
satisfactory to Buyer with such Terminating Providers that Buyer requests. If a contract is unattainable with a Terminating
Provider, then upon the request of Buyer, Affinity shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to identify and contract with
(either directly or through its Affiliates) or assist Buyer to contract with alternate Provider(s) as soon as reasonably practicable as
necessary to avoid a Network Failure.

Section 6.20    No Sale or Dissolution; Post-Closing Cooperation. Affinity hereby covenants and agrees that (i) for a
period of six (6) years from the Closing Date (the “Wind-Up Period”), Affinity shall not dissolve, liquidate or wind up its affairs
and (ii) during the Wind-Up Period, Affinity shall employ or retain one or more other representatives reasonably acceptable to
Buyer whom Affinity shall direct and cause to consult with Buyer and its representatives on an as-needed basis regarding the
Business in order to facilitate the transition of the Purchased Assets to Buyer following the Closing, including by responding to
questions from Buyer and its representatives from time to time and providing reasonable cooperation with Buyer in any pending
or future litigation or investigation or other dispute regarding the Business.

Section 6.21    Insurance Coverage. Prior to Closing, Affinity shall tender all actual and potential claims timely and
completely to any insurance policies that may provide coverage to such claims in the format prescribed by the relevant insurance
policy or policies. 

ARTICLE VII
CONDITIONS TO CLOSING
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Section 7.01    Conditions to Obligations of All Parties. The obligations of each Party to consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be subject to the fulfillment, at or prior to the Closing, of each of the following
conditions:

(a)    The filings of Buyer and Affinity pursuant to the HSR Act, if any, shall have been made and the applicable
waiting period and any extensions thereof shall have expired or been terminated.

(b)    All other Required Governmental Approvals shall have been obtained.

(c)    No Governmental Authority shall have enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced or entered any Order or Law
which has, or would have, the effect of (i) making the transactions contemplated by this Agreement illegal, (ii) otherwise
restraining, enjoining or prohibiting consummation of such transactions or (iii) causing any of the transactions contemplated to be
consummated at the Closing to be rescinded following completion thereof (a “Prohibitive Order”), and no Action by a
Governmental Authority of applicable jurisdiction shall be pending for the purpose of obtaining a Prohibitive Order; provided,
that, a Party may not assert its right to not consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement pursuant to this Section
7.01(c) if such Party shall have initiated or caused such Action or Prohibitive Order.

(d)    The Payor Contracts shall have been assigned to Buyer in accordance with Section 2.01 and all approvals,
consents and waivers required in connection with such assignments shall have been received and executed counterparts thereof
shall have been delivered to Buyer and Affinity at or prior to the Closing.

(e)    The Parties shall have received a copy of the Escrow Agreement, duly executed by the Escrow Agent.

Section 7.02    Conditions to Obligations of Buyer. The obligations of Buyer to consummate the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement shall be subject to the fulfillment or Buyer’s written waiver, at or prior to the Closing, of each of
the following conditions:

(a)    (1) The representations and warranties of Affinity set forth in ARTICLE IV (other than the Affinity
Fundamental Representations and the representations and warranties of Affinity set forth in Section 4.13(h) (Employment and
Benefits Matters) and Section 4.16 (Health Care Matters)), the other Transaction Documents and any certificate or other writing
delivered pursuant hereto, disregarding any qualifications or limitations set forth in such representations or warranties as to
materiality, Material Adverse Effect, or any other similar qualifier contained in such representations and warranties shall be true
and correct in all respects, in each case, as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date as though made on and as of such date
except: (i) to the extent that any such representation or warranty refers to a specified date, in which event such representation and
warranty shall be true and correct as of such specified date; and (ii) where the failure of such representations and warranties to be
so true and correct, has not had, and would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material
Adverse Effect; (2) the Affinity Fundamental Representations shall be true and correct in all but de minimis respects, in each case
as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date as
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though made on and as of such date except to the extent that any such representation or warranty refers to a specified date, in
which event such representation and warranty shall be true and correct as of such specified date; and (3) the representations and
warranties of Affinity set forth in Section 4.13(h) (Employment and Benefits Matters) and Section 4.16 (Health Care Matters),
disregarding any qualifications or limitations set forth in such representations or warranties as to materiality, Material Adverse
Effect, or any other similar qualifier contained in such representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all material
respects, in each case, as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date as though made on and as of such date except to the extent
that any such representation or warranty refers to a specified date, in which event such representation and warranty shall be true
and correct in all material respects as of such specified date.

(b)    Affinity shall have duly performed and complied in all material respects with all agreements, covenants and
conditions required by this Agreement and each of the other Transaction Documents to be performed or complied with by it prior
to or on the Closing Date.

(c)    From the date hereof, there shall not have occurred any Material Adverse Effect or Regulatory Material
Adverse Effect, nor shall any event(s), occurrence(s), fact(s), condition(s), change(s) or effect(s) have occurred that, individually
or in the aggregate, with or without the lapse of time, could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect or a
Regulatory Material Adverse Effect.

(d)    Affinity shall have delivered to Buyer duly executed counterparts to the Transaction Documents (other than
this Agreement).

(e)    Affinity shall have delivered to Buyer a duly executed affidavit prepared in accordance with Treasury
Regulations Section 1.1445-2(b) certifying Affinity’s non-foreign status.

(f)    Buyer shall have received a certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary (or equivalent officer) of
Affinity certifying (i) that attached thereto are true and complete copies of all resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors of
Affinity authorizing the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, and that all such resolutions are in full force and effect and
are all the resolutions adopted in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, and (ii) the names and
signatures of the officers of Affinity authorized to sign this Agreement, the Transaction Documents and the other documents to be
delivered hereunder and thereunder.

(g)    Buyer shall have received a certificate, dated as of the Closing Date and signed by a duly authorized officer
of Affinity, that each of the conditions set forth in Section 7.02(a), Section 7.02(b) and Section 7.02(c) have been satisfied.

(h)    Buyer shall have received all Permits that are necessary for it to conduct the Business as conducted by
Affinity as of the Closing Date.
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(i)    Buyer shall have received all consents, approvals and authorizations that are set forth in Exhibit E
(collectively, the “Required Third Party Consents”).

(j)    Affinity shall have delivered to Buyer the Estimated Closing Statement, which in Buyer’s reasonable
judgment complies with this Agreement and is accurate in all material respects.

(k)    Sufficient Provider Contracts shall have been successfully assigned to Buyer to enable Buyer to satisfy the
Minimum Network Requirements.

(l)    Buyer shall have received duly executed copies of the FQHC Non-Compete Agreements, which are valid and
in full force and effect.

(m)    Affinity shall have received approval for this Agreement, the other Transaction Documents and the
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby from the requisite number of FQHC Members pursuant to Section 510(a)-1 of the
New York Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and shall have delivered to Buyer a certificate, dated as of the Closing Date and duly
executed by the requisite number of FQHC Members (pursuant to Section 510(a)-1 of the New York Not-for-Profit Corporation
Law), approving the execution and delivery by Affinity of this Agreement, the other Transaction Documents and the performance
and consummation by Affinity of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.

Section 7.03    Conditions to Obligations of Affinity. The obligations of Affinity to consummate the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement shall be subject to the fulfillment or Affinity’s written waiver, at or prior to the Closing, of each
of the following conditions:

(a)    (1) The representations and warranties of Buyer contained in this Agreement (other than the Buyer
Fundamental Representations), the other Transaction Documents and any certificate or other writing delivered pursuant hereto
disregarding any qualifications or limitations set forth in such representations or warranties as to materiality, Material Adverse
Effect, or any other similar qualifier contained in such representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects, in
each case, as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date as though made on and as of such date except: (i) to the extent that any
such representation or warranty refers to a specified date, in which event such representation and warranty shall be true and
correct as of such specified date; and (ii) where the failure of such representations and warranties to be so true and correct, has
not had, and would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect and (2) the
Buyer Fundamental Representations shall be true and correct in all but de minimis respects, in each case as of the date hereof and
as of the Closing Date as though made on and as of such date except to the extent that any such representation or warranty refers
to a specified date, in which event such representation and warranty shall be true and correct as of such specified date.

(b)    Buyer shall have duly performed and complied in all material respects with all agreements, covenants and
conditions required by this Agreement and each of the other Transaction Documents to be performed or complied with by it prior
to or on the Closing Date.
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(c)    Buyer shall have delivered to Affinity duly executed counterparts to the Transaction Documents (other than
this Agreement).

(d)    Buyer shall have delivered to Affinity an instrument or instruments of assignment and assumption of the
Assumed Liabilities in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Affinity and its counsel.

(e)    Buyer shall have delivered, or shall have caused to be delivered, to Affinity the Cash Purchase Price in
accordance with Section 2.06(a).

(f)    Affinity shall have received a certificate, dated as of the Closing Date and signed by a duly authorized officer
of Buyer, that each of the conditions set forth in Section 7.03(a) and Section 7.03(b) have been satisfied.

ARTICLE VIII

INDEMNIFICATION

Section 8.01    Survival. Subject to the limitations and other provisions of this ARTICLE VIII, (a) the representations
and warranties contained in ARTICLE IV and ARTICLE V (other than the Affinity Fundamental Representations and the
representations and warranties of Affinity set forth in Section 4.13 (Employment and Benefits Matters), Section 4.14 (Taxes) and
Section 4.16 (Health Care Matters)) shall survive the Closing and shall remain in full force and effect during the eighteen (18)
month period from and following the Closing Date (the “Survival Period”), (b) the Affinity Fundamental Representations and the
representations and warranties of Affinity set forth in Section 4.13 (Employment and Benefits Matters), Section 4.14 (Taxes) and
Section 4.16 (Health Care Matters) shall survive the Closing for six (6) years following the Closing Date, (c) all covenants,
agreements and other obligations contained in this Agreement, and the indemnification obligations of the Parties with respect
thereto, shall survive the Closing in accordance with their terms, and (d) each of the Special DOH Indemnity and the Special
HCRA Indemnity shall survive the Closing through and until the sixth (6th) anniversary of the Closing. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, any claims asserted in accordance with this ARTICLE VIII prior to the expiration date of the applicable survival
period shall not thereafter be barred by the expiration of the relevant representation or warranty and such claims shall survive
until finally resolved.

Section 8.02    Indemnification by Affinity. Subject to the other terms and conditions of this ARTICLE VIII, Affinity
shall indemnify and defend each of Buyer, its Affiliates and its Representatives (collectively, the “Buyer Indemnitees”) against,
and shall hold each of them harmless from and against, and shall pay and reimburse each of them for, any and all Losses incurred
or sustained by, or imposed upon, the Buyer Indemnitees based upon, arising out of, with respect to or by reason of:

(a)    any inaccuracy in or breach of any of the representations or warranties of Affinity contained in this
Agreement (other than the Affinity Fundamental Representations and the representations and warranties of Affinity set forth in
Section 4.14 (Taxes));
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(b)    any inaccuracy in or breach of any Affinity Fundamental Representation or the representations and
warranties of Affinity set forth in Section 4.14 (Taxes);

(c)    any breach or non-fulfillment of any covenant, agreement or obligation to be performed by Affinity pursuant
to this Agreement;

(d)    the Special DOH Indemnity;

(e)    the Special HCRA Indemnity;

(f)    any knowing and intentional common law fraud by Affinity in the making of the representations and
warranties set forth in ARTICLE IV;

(g)    any Affinity Transaction Expenses which are outstanding as of the Closing and which are not fully accounted
for in the Final Net Asset Value;

(h)    any Closing Date Indebtedness which is outstanding as of the Closing and which is not fully accounted for in
the Final Net Asset Value;

(i)    any Liabilities in connection with or relating to any Affinity Employee Payables that exceed the amount
itemized in respect thereof on the AEP Schedule and that are not otherwise fully accounted for in the Final Net Asset Value; or

(j)    any Excluded Asset or any Excluded Liability.

Section 8.03    Indemnification by Buyer. Subject to the other terms and conditions of this ARTICLE VIII, Buyer shall
indemnify and defend Affinity, its Affiliates and its Representatives (collectively, the “Affinity Indemnitees”) against, and shall
hold each of them harmless from and against, and shall pay and reimburse each of them for, any and all Losses incurred or
sustained by, or imposed upon, the Affinity Indemnitees based upon, arising out of, with respect to or by reason of:

(a)    any inaccuracy in or breach of any of the representations or warranties of Buyer contained in this Agreement
(other than the Buyer Fundamental Representations);

(b)    any inaccuracy in or breach of any Buyer Fundamental Representation;

(c)    any breach or non-fulfillment of any covenant, agreement or obligation to be performed by Buyer pursuant to
this Agreement;

(d)    any knowing and intentional common law fraud by Buyer in the making of the representations and
warranties set forth in ARTICLE V; or

(e)    the Purchased Assets or Assumed Liabilities.

Section 8.04    Certain Limitations. The Parties’ indemnification obligations under Section 8.02 and Section 8.03 shall
be subject to the following limitations:
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(a)    Neither Affinity nor Buyer shall have any liability for monetary Losses arising under Section 8.02(a) or
Section 8.03(a), until the aggregate amount of Losses related thereto for which the Affinity or Buyer, as applicable, would
otherwise be required to provide indemnification, exceeds an amount equal to Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) (the “Basket
Amount”). The aggregate Liability of Affinity, on the one hand, and Buyer, on the other hand, for any Losses with respect to
matters set forth in this ARTICLE VIII shall not exceed an amount equal to the Escrow Amount (the “Cap”); provided, that the
Cap shall not apply with respect to (i) claims for any knowing and intentional common law fraud or willful breach, or (ii) Losses
resulting from, arising out of or relating to breaches of the Affinity Fundamental Representations.

(b)    Neither Affinity nor Buyer shall have any liability for monetary Losses under Section 8.02(a) or Section
8.03(a) unless and until the aggregate amount of all monetary Losses under Section 8.02(a) or Section 8.03(a) as applicable, for
which Affinity or Buyer, as applicable, would otherwise be required to provide indemnification exceeds on a cumulative basis an
amount equal to the Basket Amount, at which point Affinity or Buyer, as applicable, subject to the other provisions of this
Section 8.04, shall indemnify the Buyer Indemnitees or the Affinity Indemnitees, as applicable, for the full amount of all such
Losses in excess of such Basket Amount, subject in all respects to the Cap.

(c)    From the Closing Date until the sixth (6th) anniversary of the Closing Date, the Buyer Indemnitees shall not
be entitled to recover any Losses under a claim pursuant to Section 8.02(d) unless and until the aggregate amount of all Losses
incurred by the Buyer Indemnitees with respect to the Special DOH Indemnity exceed the amounts accrued related to the Special
DOH Indemnity in the Closing Statement (as finally determined pursuant to Section 2.07(d)).

(d)    Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, any and all indemnification payments required
to be made by Affinity pursuant to Section 8.02 shall be paid solely from the Escrow Fund to the extent available in accordance
with the Escrow Agreement. Affinity shall not be required to pay any Buyer Indemnitee for any indemnifiable Losses under
Section 8.02 once the Escrow Fund has been exhausted; provided, however, that the foregoing limitation shall not apply to (i) any
claims for any knowing and intentional common law fraud or willful breach by Affinity, or (ii) any Losses resulting from, arising
out of or relating to breaches of the Affinity Fundamental Representations. The Escrow Agent shall distribute to Affinity, subject
to the terms and conditions of the Escrow Agreement, immediately following the Survival Period, the then remaining Escrow
Amount in excess of the sum of any amounts with respect to (x) which Buyer is entitled to, but has not yet received,
indemnification, pursuant to this ARTICLE VIII (plus the amount of any interest or income earned on such amount), (y) any
unresolved claims for indemnification as of such date (plus the amount of any interest or income earned on such amount) and
(z) any amounts disputed but not yet resolved pursuant to Section 2.07. Once all indemnification claims are resolved between the
Parties in accordance with this ARTICLE VIII, and all disputes (if any) are resolved between the Parties in accordance with
Section 2.07, as applicable, all remaining amounts in the Escrow Fund, if any, shall be paid to Affinity.
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(e)    The amount of any Losses for which indemnification is provided to an Indemnified Party under this
ARTICLE VIII shall be net of any amounts actually recovered by such Indemnified Party under policies of insurance (less any
costs and expenses of recovery thereof), with respect to such Losses. If and to the extent any insurance proceeds are actually
received by any Indemnified Party after such Indemnified Party has recovered any Losses pursuant to this ARTICLE VIII such
Indemnified Party shall promptly pay to the Indemnifying Party an amount equal to such insurance proceeds to which the
Indemnifying Party is entitled pursuant to the first sentence of this paragraph.

(f)    No Indemnified Party shall be entitled to be compensated more than once for the same Loss.

(g)    Each Indemnified Party shall use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate Losses for which
indemnification may be claimed by such Indemnified Party under this Agreement to the extent required by applicable Law.

(h)    The right of an Indemnified Party to indemnification or to assert or recover on any claim shall not be affected
by any investigation conducted with respect to, or any knowledge acquired (or capable of being acquired) at any time, whether
before or after the execution and delivery of this Agreement or the Closing Date, with respect to the accuracy of, or compliance
with, any of the representations, warranties, covenants, or agreements set forth in this Agreement. The waiver of any condition
based on the accuracy of any representation or warranty, or on the performance of or compliance with any covenant or
agreement, shall not affect the right to indemnification or other remedy based on such representations, warranties, covenants or
agreements.

Section 8.05    Indemnification Procedures. The party making a claim under this ARTICLE VIII is referred to as the
“Indemnified Party”, and the party against which such claim is asserted under this ARTICLE VIII is referred to as the
“Indemnifying Party”.

(a)    Third Party Claims. If any Indemnified Party receives notice of the assertion or commencement of any
Action made or brought by any Person who is not a party to this Agreement or an Affiliate of a party to this Agreement or a
Representative of the foregoing (a “Third Party Claim”) against such Indemnified Party with respect to which the Indemnifying
Party is obligated to provide indemnification under this Agreement, the Indemnified Party shall give the Indemnifying Party
reasonably prompt written notice thereof, but in any event not later than thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of such notice of
such Third Party Claim (a “Claim Notice”). The failure to give a Claim Notice shall not, however, relieve the Indemnifying Party
of its indemnification obligations, except and only to the extent that such failure has a materially prejudicial effect on the
defenses or other rights available to the Indemnifying Party with respect to such Third Party Claim or the indemnification
obligations are materially increased as a result of such failure. A Claim Notice shall describe the Third Party Claim in reasonable
detail, shall include copies of all material written evidence thereof and shall indicate the estimated amount, if reasonably
determinable, of the Loss that has been or may be sustained by the Indemnified Party. The Indemnifying Party shall have the
right to participate in, or by giving written notice to the Indemnified Party within thirty (30) calendar days from receipt
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of the Claim Notice, to assume the defense of any Third Party Claim at the Indemnifying Party’s expense and by the
Indemnifying Party’s own counsel (which choice of counsel shall be subject to the Indemnified Party’s prior written consent, not
to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), and the Indemnified Party shall cooperate in good faith in such defense;
provided, that (i) the Indemnifying Party shall have acknowledged in writing to the Indemnified Party its obligation to indemnify
the Indemnified Party as provided hereunder in respect thereof, (ii) the Indemnifying Party must conduct the defense of the Third
Party Claim actively and diligently in order to preserve its rights in this regard and (iii) notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Indemnifying Party shall not have the right to elect to defend the Indemnified Party against a Third Party Claim (and the
Indemnified Party shall have the sole power to direct and control such defense) if the Third Party Claim (A) could result in any
Adverse Claim Consequences or (B) seeks non-monetary relief, relates to a criminal action or involves claims by a Provider or
Governmental Authority. In the event that the Indemnifying Party assumes the defense of any Third Party Claim, subject to
Section 8.05(b), it shall have the right to take such action as it deems necessary to avoid, dispute, defend, appeal or make
counterclaims pertaining to any such Third Party Claim in the name and on behalf of the Indemnified Party. The Indemnified
Party shall have the right to participate in the defense of any Third Party Claim with counsel selected by it subject to the
Indemnifying Party’s right to control the defense thereof. The fees and disbursements of such counsel shall be at the expense of
the Indemnified Party, provided, that (A) if the Indemnifying Party requests that the Indemnified Party participates in the defense
of such Third Party Claim or (B) if, in the reasonable written opinion of counsel to the Indemnified Party, (x) there are legal
defenses available to an Indemnified Party that are different from or additional to those available to the Indemnifying Party or (y)
there exists a conflict of interest between the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified Party that cannot be waived, the
Indemnifying Party shall be liable for the reasonable documented fees and expenses of one counsel to the Indemnified Party in
each jurisdiction for which the Indemnified Party determines counsel is required. If the Indemnifying Party elects not to
compromise or defend such Third Party Claim or fails to promptly notify the Indemnified Party in writing of its election to
defend as provided in this Agreement, the Indemnified Party may, subject to Section 8.05(b), pay, compromise, defend such
Third Party Claim and seek indemnification for any and all Losses based upon, arising from or relating to such Third Party
Claim. Affinity and Buyer shall cooperate with each other in all reasonable respects in connection with the defense of any Third
Party Claim, including making available (subject to the provisions of Section 6.05(a)) records relating to such Third Party Claim
and using commercially reasonably efforts to furnish, without expense to the defending party, management employees of the non-
defending party as may be reasonably necessary for the preparation of the defense of such Third Party Claim. The Indemnified
Party and the Indemnifying Party shall use commercially reasonable efforts to avoid production of confidential information
(consistent with applicable Law), and to cause all communications among employees, counsel and others representing any party
to a Third Party Claim to be made so as to preserve any applicable attorney-client or work-product privileges.

(b)    Settlement of Third Party Claims. If the Indemnifying Party assumes the defense of a Third Party Claim, the
Indemnifying Party shall not, without the prior written consent of the Indemnified Party, settle, compromise or offer to settle or
compromise any Third Party Claim if the terms of such settlement do not contain a release of the Indemnified Parties or
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(i) would result in the imposition of a consent order, injunction or decree that would restrict the future activity or conduct of the
Indemnified Party, (ii) would result in a finding or admission of wrongdoing or violation of Law by the Indemnified Party,
(iii) would result in any monetary Liability of the Indemnified Party that will not be paid or reimbursed by the Indemnifying
Party, or (iv) has an adverse effect on any ongoing business of the Indemnified Party (any of the foregoing, “Adverse Claim
Consequences”). If the Indemnifying Party assumes the defense of a Third Party Claim, the Indemnified Party shall not admit
any Liability with respect to, settle, compromise or discharge, such Third Party Claim without the Indemnifying Party’s prior
written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

(c)    Direct Claims. Any Action by an Indemnified Party on account of a Loss which does not result from a Third
Party Claim (a “Direct Claim”) shall be asserted by the Indemnified Party giving the Indemnifying Party reasonably prompt
written notice thereof, but in any event not later than thirty (30) calendar days after the Indemnified Party becomes aware of such
Direct Claim. The failure to give such prompt written notice shall not, however, relieve the Indemnifying Party of its
indemnification obligations, except and only to the extent that such failure has a materially prejudicial effect on the defenses or
other rights available to the Indemnifying Party with respect to such Direct Claim. Such notice by the Indemnified Party shall
describe the Direct Claim in reasonable detail, shall include copies of all material written evidence thereof and shall indicate the
estimated amount, if reasonably practicable, of the Loss that has been or may be sustained by the Indemnified Party. The
Indemnifying Party shall have thirty (30) calendar days after its receipt of such notice to respond in writing to such Direct Claim.
The Indemnified Party shall reasonably cooperate with the Indemnifying Party and its professional advisors to allow the
Indemnified Party to investigate the matter or circumstance alleged to give rise to the Direct Claim, and whether and to what
extent any amount is payable in respect of the Direct Claim and the Indemnified Party shall assist the Indemnifying Party’s
investigation by providing reasonable access (including access to the Indemnified Party’s premises and personnel, documents or
records during normal business hours on a mutually convenient basis) as the Indemnifying Party or any of its professional
advisors may reasonably request. If the Indemnifying Party notifies the Indemnified Party that it does not dispute the claim
described in such notice, or fails to so respond within such thirty (30) calendar day period that the Indemnifying Party disputes
the claim described in such notice, the Losses in the amount specified in the Indemnified Party’s notice will be conclusively
deemed a Liability of the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified Party shall be entitled to recover the amount of such Losses
from the Indemnifying Party in accordance with the terms and conditions of this ARTICLE VIII. If the Indemnifying Party has
timely disputed its Liability with respect to such claim, the Indemnifying Party and Indemnified Party will proceed in good faith
to negotiate a resolution of such dispute and if no such resolution is reached, to litigate such dispute.

Section 8.06    Payments. Once a Loss is agreed to by the Indemnifying Party or finally adjudicated to be payable
pursuant to this ARTICLE VIII, the Indemnifying Party shall satisfy its obligations within ten (10) Business Days of such final,
non-appealable adjudication by wire transfer of immediately available funds (or, if the Indemnifying Party is Affinity, in
accordance with the Escrow Agreement).
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Section 8.07    Tax Treatment of Indemnification Payments. All indemnification payments made under this Agreement
shall be treated by the Parties as an adjustment to the Purchase Price for Tax purposes, unless otherwise required by Law.

Section 8.08    Exclusive Remedy. Except in the case of Section 8.02(f) or Section 8.02(d), claims for equitable relief
(including the enforcement of any covenant requiring performance following the Closing) or Liabilities or Claims based on any
knowing and intentional common law fraud or willful breach, from and after the Closing, the sole and exclusive remedy for all
Losses relating to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby shall be the indemnification provisions set forth in this
ARTICLE VIII.

Section 8.09    Materiality. For purposes of Section 8.02(a), Section 8.02(b), Section 8.03(a), and Section 8.03(b), any
qualifications as to materiality, Material Adverse Effect, material adverse effect or similar qualification contained in the
representations or warranties in this Agreement (other than with respect to the representations and warranties contained in
Section 4.05, as to which this Section 8.09 shall not apply), shall be disregarded and have no effect.

ARTICLE IX

TERMINATION

Section 9.01    Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Closing only as follows:

(a)    by the mutual written consent of Affinity and Buyer;

(b)    by Buyer by written notice to Affinity if Buyer is not then in material breach of any provision of this
Agreement and:

(i)    an event or condition occurs that has had a Material Adverse Effect on the Business;

(ii)    Buyer suffers a Regulatory Material Adverse Effect; or

(iii)    there has been a breach or inaccuracy in any representation or warranty, or failure to perform any
covenant or agreement made by Affinity pursuant to this Agreement that would give rise to the failure of any of the conditions
specified in ARTICLE VII and such breach, inaccuracy or failure has not been cured by Affinity within thirty (30) calendar days
of Affinity’s receipt of written notice of such breach from Buyer.

(c)    by Affinity by written notice to Buyer if Affinity is not then in material breach of any provision of this
Agreement and there has been a breach, inaccuracy in or failure to perform any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement
made by Buyer pursuant to this Agreement that would give rise to the failure of any of the conditions specified in ARTICLE VII
and such breach, inaccuracy or failure has not been cured by Buyer within thirty (30) calendar days of Buyer’s receipt of written
notice of such breach from Affinity.
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(d)    by Buyer or Affinity, by written notice to the other party, in the event that:

(i)    any Governmental Authority shall have issued a Prohibitive Order restraining or enjoining the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and such Prohibitive Order shall have become final and non-appealable; provided
that the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 9.01(d)(i) shall not be available to any party whose failure to
fulfill any obligation under this Agreement shall have been a material cause of, or resulted in, the occurrence of such Prohibitive
Order, or who has initiated or taken any action in support of such Prohibitive Order; or

(ii)    the Closing shall not have occurred on or prior to December 31, 2021 (the “Initial Termination
Date”); provided that if prior to the Initial Termination Date, any of the conditions set forth in Section 7.01(a), Section 7.01(b),
Section 7.01(c) (to the extent that such Order or Law by the Governmental Authority relates to the filing and/or approvals
referenced in Section 7.01(a) and Section 7.01(b)) or Section 7.01(c) have not been satisfied (or waived) but all other conditions
to the Closing (other than those conditions which by their terms cannot be satisfied until the Closing) have been satisfied or
waived by the Initial Termination Date, the Initial Termination Date may be extended by either Affinity or Buyer for up to three
(3) months from the Initial Termination Date (the Initial Termination Date, as it may be extended pursuant to this Section 9.01(d)
(ii), is referred to herein as the “Termination Date”); provided, further, that the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this
Section 9.01(d)(ii) shall not be available to any party whose failure to fulfill any obligation under this Agreement has been the
cause of, or resulted in, the failure of the Closing to occur on or prior to such date.

Section 9.02    Effect of Termination.

(a)    In the event of the termination of this Agreement in accordance with this ARTICLE IX, this Agreement
shall forthwith become void (in whole or in part, as applicable) and there shall be no liability on the part of any Party hereto (nor
any of its Representatives or Affiliates) except:

(i)    as set forth in this ARTICLE IX, in Section 6.06 and in ARTICLE X hereof; and

(ii)    nothing herein shall relieve any Party hereto from Liability or Losses for any fraud, willful breach or
intentional misrepresentation or any breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement
prior to the date of termination.

ARTICLE X
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10.01    Expenses. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, all Expenses incurred in connection with this
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby shall be paid by the Party incurring such Expenses, whether or not the
Closing shall have occurred.
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Section 10.02    Notices. All notices, demands and other communications to be given or delivered under or by reason of
the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given (a) when personally delivered, (b)
upon transmission by e-mail with confirmation of receipt, (c) one (1) day after deposit with Federal Express or similar overnight
courier service, or (d) three (3) days after being mailed by first class mail, return receipt requested. Notices, demands, and
communications to the Parties shall, unless another address is specified in writing, be sent to the addresses indicated below (or at
such other address for a Party as shall be specified in a notice given in accordance with this Section 10.02):

If to Affinity: Affinity Health Plan, Inc.
Address: 1776 Eastchester Road
Bronx, New York 10461
Attention: Michael Murphy
E-Mail: mmurphy@affinityplan.org

with a copy to (which notice shall not constitute
notice):

Greenberg Traurig LLP
54 State Street
Albany, New York 12207
Attention: Harold Iselin
E-Mail: iselinh@gtlaw.com

If to Buyer: Molina Healthcare, Inc.

200 Oceangate, Suite 100
Long Beach, California 90802
Attention: Jeff Barlow, Chief Legal Officer & Burt
Park, Deputy General Counsel
Facsimile: (916) 646-4572
Email: jeff.barlow@molinahealthcare.com and
burt.park@molinahealthcare.com

with a copy to (which notice shall not constitute
notice):

Milbank LLP
55 Hudson Yards
New York, New York 10001

Attention: Scott Golenbock
E-Mail: sgolenbock@milbank.com

Section 10.03    Interpretation. For purposes of this Agreement, whenever the context requires, the singular number shall
include the plural, and vice versa; the masculine gender shall include the feminine and neuter genders; the feminine gender shall
include the masculine and neuter genders; and the neuter gender shall include the masculine and feminine genders. As used in
this Agreement, the words “include” and “including,” and variations thereof, shall not be
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deemed to be terms of limitation, but rather shall be deemed to be followed by the words “without limitation.” Except as
otherwise indicated, all references in this Agreement to Articles, Sections and Exhibits are intended to refer to Articles or
Sections of this Agreement and Exhibits to this Agreement. All terms defined in this Agreement shall have the defined meanings
when used in any certificates, reports or other documents made or delivered pursuant hereto or thereto, unless the context
otherwise requires. Any reference to $ in this Agreement shall mean the lawful currency of the United States. All references to
statutes or related regulations shall include all amendments of the same and any successor or replacement statutes and
regulations, in each case as in effect on the date of this Agreement, and all references to any Person shall be deemed to mean and
include the successors and permitted assigns of such Person (or, in the case of a Governmental Authority, Persons succeeding to
the relevant functions of such Person). Any capitalized terms used in the Disclosure Schedules, the Buyer Disclosure Schedules
or in any Exhibit hereto, but not otherwise defined therein, shall have the meanings as defined in this Agreement. All references
to statutes and related regulations shall include all amendments of the same and any successor or replacement statutes and
regulations.

Section 10.04    Headings. The headings in this Agreement, the Disclosure Schedules or the Buyer Disclosure Schedules
are for reference only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

Section 10.05    Severability. The unenforceability or invalidity of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the
enforceability or validity of any other provision. If any provision of this Agreement or the application of any such provision to
any Person or circumstance shall be declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, void or unenforceable
in any respect, all other provisions of this Agreement, or the application of such provision to Persons or circumstances other than
those as to which it has been held invalid, illegal, void or unenforceable, shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect and will
in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby. Upon such determination that any provision, or the application of any
such provision, is invalid, illegal, void or unenforceable, the Parties shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as
to effect the original intent of the Parties as closely as possible to the fullest extent permitted by applicable Law in an acceptable
manner to the end that the transactions contemplated hereby are fulfilled to the greatest extent possible.

Section 10.06    Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including the Disclosure Schedules, the Buyer Disclosure
Schedules and Exhibits attached hereto), the Transaction Documents, and other documents delivered at the Closing pursuant
hereto or thereto, contain the entire understanding of the Parties in respect of their subject matter and supersede all prior
agreements and understandings (oral or written) between the Parties with respect to such subject matter. The Disclosure
Schedules, the Buyer Disclosure Schedules and Exhibits attached hereto are hereby incorporated in and made a part of this
Agreement as if set forth in full herein. In the event of any inconsistency between the statements in the body of this Agreement
and those in the other Transaction Documents, the Exhibits, the Disclosure Schedules and the Buyer Disclosure Schedules (other
than an exception expressly set forth as such in the Disclosure Schedules or the Buyer Disclosure Schedules), the statements in
the body of this Agreement will control.
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Section 10.07    Disclosure Schedules. The Disclosure Schedules and the Buyer Disclosure Schedules shall be arranged
in sections and subsections corresponding to the numbered and lettered sections and subsections contained in ARTICLE IV and
ARTICLE V, respectively, and any information set forth in a particular section of the Disclosure Schedules or the Buyer
Disclosure Schedules shall qualify or modify (a) the correspondingly numbered section in this Agreement and (b) to the extent
the relevance of such information to another section or subsection of this Agreement is reasonably apparent on the face of such
disclosure, such other section or subsection. No reference to or disclosure of any item or other matter in the Disclosure Schedules
or the Buyer Disclosure Schedules shall: (i) represent a determination that such item or other matter is material (or otherwise
establish a standard of materiality) or that such item or matter is required to be referred to or disclosed in the Disclosure
Schedules or the Buyer Disclosure Schedules; and (ii) represent a determination that such item or other matter did not arise in the
ordinary course of business. The information contained in the Disclosure Schedules and the Buyer Disclosure Schedules is
provided solely for purposes of making disclosures to each Party under this Agreement. In disclosing such information, each
Party does not waive any attorney-client privilege associated with such information or any protection afforded by the work-
product doctrine with respect to any of the matters disclosed or discussed in the Disclosure Schedules and the Buyer Disclosure
Schedules.

Section 10.08    Successors and Assigns. The rights and obligations of this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit
of the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. Except as expressly provided herein, the rights and
obligations of this Agreement may not be assigned (by operation of law or otherwise) by any Party without the prior written
consent of the other Party; provided, however, that Buyer may, without the prior written consent of Affinity, assign any of its
rights and interests hereunder to any of its Affiliates; provided, further, that no such assignment shall relieve Buyer of any of its
obligations or liabilities hereunder.

Section 10.09    No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties and each of their
permitted successors and assigns, and nothing herein expressed or implied shall give or be construed to give any Person, other
than the Parties and such permitted successors and assigns, any legal or equitable rights hereunder; provided, that the Buyer
Indemnitees and the Affinity Indemnitees are intended third party beneficiaries of ARTICLE VIII.

Section 10.10    Amendment and Modification; Waiver. This Agreement may not be amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified except in a written instrument executed by each Party. No waiver by either Party of any default,
misrepresentation or breach of warranty or covenant hereunder, whether intentional or not, shall be deemed to extend to any prior
or subsequent default, misrepresentation or breach of warranty or covenant hereunder or affect in any way any rights arising by
virtue of any prior or subsequent such occurrence. No waiver by either Party of any of the provisions hereof shall be effective
unless explicitly set forth in writing and executed by the Party sought to be charged with such waiver. No failure by either Party
to exercise, or delay in exercising, any right, remedy, power or privilege arising from this Agreement shall operate or be
construed as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial
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exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any
other right, remedy, power or privilege.

Section 10.11    Governing Law; Submission to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial.

(a)    All matters relating to the interpretation, construction, validity and enforcement of this Agreement shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with the domestic Laws of the State of New York without giving effect to any choice or
conflict of Law provision or rule (whether of the State of New York or any other jurisdiction) that would cause the application of
Laws of any jurisdiction other than the State of New York.

(b)    ANY LEGAL SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING (WHETHER AT LAW, IN EQUITY, IN CONTRACT,
IN TORT OR OTHERWISE) ARISING OUT OF OR BASED UPON THIS AGREEMENT, THE OTHER TRANSACTION
DOCUMENTS OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY MAY ONLY BE INSTITUTED IN
THE FEDERAL OR STATE COURTS LOCATED IN THE BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN (AND ANY FEDERAL OR STATE
APPELLATE COURT THEREFROM), AND EACH PARTY IRREVOCABLY SUBMITS TO THE EXCLUSIVE
JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURTS IN ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING. SERVICE OF PROCESS,
SUMMONS, NOTICE OR OTHER DOCUMENT BY MAIL TO SUCH PARTY’S ADDRESS SET FORTH HEREIN SHALL
BE EFFECTIVE SERVICE OF PROCESS FOR ANY SUIT, ACTION OR OTHER PROCEEDING BROUGHT IN ANY
SUCH COURT. Nothing in this Agreement will affect the right of any Party to this Agreement to serve process in any other
manner permitted by law. THE PARTIES IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVE ANY OBJECTION TO THE
LAYING OF VENUE OF ANY SUIT, ACTION OR ANY PROCEEDING IN SUCH COURTS AND IRREVOCABLY WAIVE
AND AGREE NOT TO PLEAD OR CLAIM IN ANY SUCH COURT THAT ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING
BROUGHT IN ANY SUCH COURT HAS BEEN BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT FORUM.

(c)    EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT ANY CONTROVERSY WHICH MAY ARISE
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR THE OTHER TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS IS LIKELY TO INVOLVE COMPLICATED
AND DIFFICULT ISSUES AND, THEREFORE, EACH SUCH PARTY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY
WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LEGAL ACTION ARISING OUT OF
OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE OTHER TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS OR THE TRANSACTIONS
CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY. EACH PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT CERTIFIES AND ACKNOWLEDGES
THAT (i) NO REPRESENTATIVE OF ANY OTHER PARTY HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT
SUCH OTHER PARTY WOULD NOT SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVER IN THE EVENT OF A LEGAL
ACTION, (ii) SUCH PARTY HAS CONSIDERED THE IMPLICATIONS OF THIS WAIVER, (iii) SUCH PARTY MAKES
THIS WAIVER VOLUNTARILY, AND (iv) SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT
BY,
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AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION 10.11(C).

Section 10.12    Specific Performance. Without intending to limit the remedies available to the Parties hereunder, the
Parties agree that irreparable damage may occur if any provision of this Agreement are not performed in accordance with the
terms hereof, for which damages, even if available, will not be an adequate remedy. Accordingly, the Parties shall be entitled to
seek an injunction, specific performance and other equitable relief to prevent or restrain breaches or threatened breaches of this
Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms hereof, without, in any such case, the requirement to post any bond or other
undertaking, in addition to any other remedy to which they are entitled at law or in equity. Each Party agrees not to oppose the
granting of such injunctive relief on the basis that monetary damages are an adequate remedy.

Section 10.13    No Recourse Against Non-Recourse Parties. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained
herein, this Agreement may be enforced only against, and any Claim based upon, arising out of or related to this Agreement, any
Transaction Documents or the negotiation, execution or performance of this Agreement, any Transaction Documents or the
transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, may be brought only against the Persons that are expressly named as parties hereto
or thereto and then only with respect to the specific obligations set forth herein or therein with respect to such party. With respect
to each named party to this Agreement or any Transaction Document, no Non-Recourse Party of such named party shall have any
liability (whether in contract, tort or otherwise) for any one or more of the representations, warranties, covenants, agreements or
other obligations or liabilities of such named party or for any Claim based on, arising out of or related to this Agreement, any
Transaction Documents or the negotiation, execution or performance of this Agreement, any Transaction Documents or the
transactions contemplated hereby or thereby. Without limiting the rights of (a) a Party against another Party in the case of this
Agreement, in no event shall such Party or any of its Affiliates seek to enforce this Agreement against, make any Claims for any
breach of this Agreement against, or seek to recover any Losses from, any Non-Recourse Party of such other Party and (b) a party
to a Transaction Document against another party to such Transaction Document in the case of a Transaction Document, in no
event shall such party or any of its Affiliates seek to enforce such Transaction Document against, make any Claims for any
breach of such Transaction Document against, or seek to recover any Losses from, any Non-Recourse Party of such other party
thereto. In furtherance of the foregoing, each Party, on behalf of itself and each of its Affiliates, hereby (i) waives and releases
any and all Claims that may otherwise be available to such Party or any of its Affiliates at Law or in equity, granted by statute or
otherwise, to avoid or disregard the entity form of any other Party or otherwise impose liability of any other Party on any Non-
Recourse Party of such other Party (whether granted by statute or based on theories of equity, agency, control, instrumentality,
alter ego, domination, sham, single business enterprise, piercing the veil, unfairness, undercapitalization or otherwise) and (ii)
covenants that neither such Party nor any of such Party’s Non-Recourse Parties will (and that such Party will cause all other
Persons who may seek to claim as, by, through or in relation to such Party or any of such Party’s Non-Recourse Parties not to)
sue, or bring or otherwise pursue any Claim against, any Non-Recourse Party of any other Party on the basis of or in any way
relating to this Agreement, any of the Transaction Documents or any transaction
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contemplated hereby or thereby (regardless of whether this Section 10.13 is enforceable under, or prohibited by, applicable Law
or otherwise).

Section 10.14    Acknowledgements; Disclaimers.

(a)    The parties acknowledge and agree that Buyer is an informed and sophisticated Person, and has engaged
expert advisors experienced in the evaluation and acquisition of the Purchased Assets and Assumed Liabilities as contemplated
hereunder. Buyer has had an opportunity to conduct its own independent investigation and due diligence review of Affinity, the
Business and Affinity’s assets and condition, financial and otherwise. Buyer acknowledges that: (1) in making its decision to
enter into this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby, Buyer has relied solely upon its own
investigation and the express representations and warranties of Affinity set forth in ARTICLE IV of this Agreement (including
the related portions of the Disclosure Schedules); and (2) neither Affinity nor any other Person has made any representation or
warranty as to Affinity, the Business, the assets or this Agreement except as expressly set forth in ARTICLE IV of this
Agreement (including related portions of the Disclosure Schedules).

(b)    NEITHER AFFINITY NOR ITS REPRESENTATIVES, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES OR
MEMBERS HAS MADE, AND SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO HAVE MADE, ANY REPRESENTATIONS OR
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, OF ANY NATURE WHATSOEVER RELATING TO ANY ONE OR MORE OF
AFFINITY, THE BUSINESS, THE PURCHASED ASSETS OR THE ASSUMED LIABILITIES OR OTHERWISE IN
CONNECTION WITH THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY, OTHER THAN THOSE REPRESENTATIONS
AND WARRANTIES EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN ARTICLE IV.

(c)    NEITHER BUYER NOR ITS SUBSIDIARIES, THEIR RESPECTIVE REPRESENTATIVES,
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES OR MEMBERS HAS MADE, AND SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO HAVE MADE,
ANY REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, OF ANY NATURE WHATSOEVER RELATING
TO ANY ONE OR MORE OF BUYER OR ANY OF ITS SUBSIDIARIES, THEIR RESPECTIVE BUSINESSES OR
OTHERWISE IN CONNECTION WITH THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY, OTHER THAN THOSE
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN ARTICLE V (INCLUDING RELATED
PORTIONS OF THE BUYER DISCLOSURE SCHEDULES).

(d)    With respect to all materials that are described as having been made available or delivered to Buyer, such
materials shall be deemed to have been delivered or made available to Buyer if Buyer or any of its representatives or agents have
been granted access to a dataroom, electronic dataroom or website in which such materials were available or by transmitting such
materials to Buyer or its representatives or agents by any other electronic means. Buyer further agrees that neither Affinity nor
any other Person (including the Non-Recourse Parties of Affinity) shall have or be subject to any liability to Buyer or any other
Person resulting from the distribution to Buyer, or Buyer’s use of, any information, documents or materials made available to
Buyer or Buyer’s representatives in certain “data rooms,”
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management presentations or any other form in expectation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 10.15    Prevailing Party. If any Party seeks to enforce its rights under this Agreement by any judicial action,
legal proceeding, case or the like against the other Party, the applicable adjudicating body shall award to the prevailing party or
parties (as the case may be), if any, the costs and expenses (including attorneys’ fees and costs of investigation and preparation)
reasonably incurred by the prevailing party or parties (as the case may be) in connection with such judicial action, legal
proceeding, case or the like, and, if the adjudicating body determines a party or parties to be the prevailing party or parties under
circumstances where the prevailing party or parties won on some but not all of the claims and counterclaims, the adjudicating
body may award the prevailing party or parties an appropriate percentage of the costs and expenses (including attorneys’ fees and
costs of investigation and preparation) reasonably incurred by the prevailing party or parties in connection with such judicial
action, legal proceeding, case or the like.

Section 10.16    Release. Effective as of the Closing, Buyer, on behalf of itself and its past, present and future Affiliates
and each of its and their respective past, present and future equity holders, directors, officers, employees, members, managers,
counsel, agents and representatives and each of its and their respective successors and assigns (collectively, the “Releasing
Parties”), hereby voluntarily, unconditionally and irrevocably and forever releases and discharges (i) Affinity, (ii) each of
Affinity’s Affiliates, (iii) all past, present and future, directors, officers, employees, members, managers, counsel, agents and
representatives of Affinity or any of its Affiliates and (iv) all of the successors and/or assigns of any of the foregoing Persons in
the immediately preceding clauses (i) through (iii) (all of the foregoing Persons in the immediately preceding clauses (i) through
(iv) are collectively referred to herein as the “Released Parties”) of and from, and hereby voluntarily, unconditionally and
irrevocably waive, any and all claims, counterclaims, debts, demands, Losses, costs, fees, expenses, penalties, proceedings,
covenants, suits, judgments, damages, Actions and causes of Action, obligations, accounts and Liabilities of any kind or character
whatsoever, known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, in contract, contingent or absolute, matured or unmatured, liquidated
or unliquidated, direct or indirect, at Law or in equity (collectively, “Claims”) that any of the Releasing Parties ever had, now has
or ever may have or claim to have against any of the Released Parties for or by reason of any matter, circumstance, event, action,
inaction, omission, error, negligence, breach of contract, tort, violation of Law, cause or thing whatsoever arising prior to the
Closing to the extent arising out of or relating to the Business or the Purchased Assets (including with respect to the management
or operation of Affinity or the Business) (collectively, the “Released Claims”). Buyer, on behalf of itself and each of the other
Releasing Parties, covenants that none of the Releasing Parties will (and that Buyer will cause all other Persons who may seek to
claim as, by, through or in relation to any of the Releasing Parties or any of the matters released by or on behalf of the Releasing
Parties in this Section 10.16 not to) sue, or bring or otherwise pursue any Claim against, any of the Released Parties on the basis
of or in any way relating to any of the Released Claims (regardless of whether the release of any such Released Claim is
enforceable under, or prohibited by, applicable Law or otherwise).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing contained in this
Section 10.16 shall (A) constitute a
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release or waiver of any rights of Buyer or (B) release or relieve any obligations of Affinity, in either case of clauses (A) and (B),
that are expressly set forth in this Agreement or any Transaction Document. The foregoing release and waiver of Released
Claims (X) was made with the advice of counsel and fully, finally and forever settles and releases the Released Claims and (Y)
shall be and remain in effect notwithstanding the discovery of any additional Claims or facts relating to any of the Released
Claims.

Section 10.17    Counterparts. This Agreement and any amendments hereto may be executed and delivered in
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same
agreement. This Agreement and any amendments hereto, to the extent signed and delivered by means of a facsimile machine or
electronic transmission in portable document format (pdf), shall be treated in all manner and respects as an original thereof and
shall be considered to have the same binding legal effects as if it were the original signed version thereof delivered in person.
Minor variations in the form of the signature page, including footers from earlier versions of this Agreement or any such other
document, shall be disregarded in determining the party’s intent or the effectiveness of such signature. No Party hereto shall raise
the use of a facsimile machine or electronic transmission in pdf to deliver a signature or the fact that any signature or document
was transmitted or communicated electronically as a defense to the formation of a contract, and each such Party forever waives
any such defense.

Section 10.18    No Strict Construction. The Parties have participated jointly in the negotiation and drafting of this
Agreement. In the event an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted
jointly by the Parties, and no presumption or burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any Party by virtue of the
authorship of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first written above
by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized.

AFFINITY: AFFINITY HEALTH PLAN, INC.

By: /s/ Michael G. Murphy
Name: Michael G. Murphy
Title: Chief Executive Officer

[ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT SIGNATURE PAGE]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first written above
by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized.

BUYER: MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC.

By: /s/ Mark Keim
Name: Mark Keim
Title: Executive Vice President of Strategic Planning, Corporate

Development and Transformation

[ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT SIGNATURE PAGE]





EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Joseph M. Zubretsky, certify that:

1. I have reviewed the report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2020 of Molina Healthcare, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, the report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by the report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in the report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in the report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period for which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in the report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by the report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in the report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and to the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
 

Dated: October 29, 2020  /s/ Joseph M. Zubretsky

  Joseph M. Zubretsky
  Chief Executive Officer, President and Director



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Thomas L. Tran, certify that:

1. I have reviewed the report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2020 of Molina Healthcare, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, the report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by the report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in the report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in the report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period for which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in the report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by the report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in the report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and to the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: October 29, 2020  /s/ Thomas L. Tran

  Thomas L. Tran
  Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the report of Molina Healthcare, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2020 (the
“Report”), I, Joseph M. Zubretsky, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

Dated: October 29, 2020 /s/ Joseph M. Zubretsky
Joseph M. Zubretsky
Chief Executive Officer, President and Director



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the report of Molina Healthcare, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2020 (the
“Report”), I, Thomas L. Tran, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

Dated: October 29, 2020  /s/ Thomas L. Tran

  Thomas L. Tran
  Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer


